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WHO WE ARE

We are a materials technology group. Our activities are centered on four business areas:
Advanced Materials, Precious Metals Products and Catalysts, Precious Metals Services and Zinc
Specialties. Each business area is divided into market-focused business units.

We focus on application areas where our expertise in materials science, chemistry and
metalturgy can make a real difference, be it in products that are essential to everyday life or
thase at the cutting edge of new technological developments. Our target of sustainable value
creation is based on our ambition to develop, produce and recycle materials and offer material
solutions, in line with our mission: materials for a better life.

application
know-how

chemistry "
material science materia
metallurgy solutions

the Umicore approach to materials technology

We are a member of the World Business Council for Sustainable Development. We are part
of the FFSE4Good Index, have been awarded a “best in dlass” rating by Storebrand Socially
Responsible Investments and are par! of the Kempen / SNS Smalfer Europe SRI Index.
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WHAT WE BELIEVE

We believe that materials have been a key efement in furthering the progress of mankind, that they
are at the core of teday’s life and will continue to be enablers for future wealth creation.

We believe that metal retated materials have a vital role, as they can be efficientty and infinitely
recycled, which makes them the basis for sustainable products and services.

We want Umicore to be a leader in providing and creating material based solutions which contribute
to improvements in the quality of life.

We are committed to the growth of our business through the competence of our people, excellence
in cperations and technological innovation.

We recognize that our commitment to financial success must also take into account the broader
economig, environmental and social impact of our cperations.

We subscribe to the following principles in our pursuit of sustainable development:

- We inlegrate sustainable developrent considerations within the corporate decision-making process.
- We implement risk management strategies based on valid data and sound science.

« We seek continual improvement of our environmental performance.

- We actively participate in the management and remediation of risks that are the result of historical
operations.

- We facilitate and encourage respansible design, use, re-use, recycling and disposal of our producis.

- We engage with our stakeholders and implement effective and transparent communication and
independently verified reporting arrangements.

- We strive to be a preferred employer of both current and potential employees.

- We uphold fundamental human rights and respect those fights in conducting the Graup’s aperations
throughout the world.

We hold the values of openness, respect, innovation, teamwaork and commitment 10 be crudial to
its success. We promote these values and ensure that deficiencies in living up to these values are
addressed in an appropriate way.

Excerpt from “The Umicore Way”




2007 REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS
AND SOCIETY

Economic Report p. 6
Total 2007 shareholder return of 34.3%
ROCE of 19.7%
Succesful IPO of Nyrstar
R&D spend at 6% of revenues; total spend of € 125 million

Environmental Report p. 38
Major pragress on achieving environmental objectives
Progress in erasing historical environmental legacy

Social Report P. 62
Umicore and associates employ 14,844 people in 38 countries
Progress in implementing social objectives at 84 sites
People opinion survey: 83% participation rate - results show consistent progress
Group safety target for 2007 not met: targeted action plans ongoing

Financial statements p. 81
Dividend of €0.65 per share - up 55%
Net financial debt reduced significantly
€264 million worth of shares bought back, €400 million buy-back launched

Governance report p. 134




ABOUT THIS REPORT

GRI REPORT

This report covers Umicore’s operations for the financial / calendar year 2007. The scope of our operations
changed significantly during 2007 as a result of the contribution of the Zinc Alloys operations to Nyrstar -
an entity that was floated as an independent company on Euranext Brussels in late October. The financial
contribution of these “discontinued operations” appears in specific lines of the financial staterments and
financial key figures. The environmental and social information for the most part excludes data from these
operations for the full year. A number of acquisitions, notably the Delphi Catalyst operations, were added
10 the scope of the company’s operations during the year. The economic contributions of these operations
are consolidated in our financial statements as from the effective date of the acquisition. The complexities
of integration means that the incorporation of social and environmental elements is often a longer process
and will only be included in the performance analysis as of 2008.

The economic scope of the report covers all fully consclidated operations. In addition, the contributions
of all associate and joint venture companies are included in the financial reporting. Ownership detaits
of fully consolidated companies, associates and joint ventures can be found in the notes to the financial
statements. Dialogue with financial analysis and investors results in ongoing adaptations to the economic
and financial metrics published.

During 2005 we completed a process to set out our sustainable development approach. This process involved
setting five group objectives for both environmental and sacial performance for the period 2006-2010
which, combined with our “traditional’ economic report, form the basis of this Report to Shareholders and
Society and the previous reports for 2005 and 2006. The objectives were established through a process of
broad internal and external consultation that included dialogue with external experts, and managers from
the different business segments, while also taking inte consideration the views of other stakeholders such
as environmental groups and various local, national and regional authorities. The data for the environment-
tal and social performance indicators, which are linked to the various objectives, are collected through
our environmental and social data management sysiems. The scope of the envirenmental and social
objectives and indicators, along with a discussion of the progress made in 2007, are reported between
pages 38 and 77.

The key social elements of the report are presented to the international trade unions during the joint
manitoring committee in March, while the entire document is presented io shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting in late April and to a more diverse group of stakeholders in May.

The financial statements and notes have been audited by PriceWaterhouseCoopers while assurance re-
garding the sustainability elements has been provided by ERM Certification and Verification Services. The
third-party statements can be found on page 132 to 133 of the repart. The report was published on-line on
2 April 2008. The report has achieved the ¢+ level of application of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI).

The guiding document for our sustainable development approach is The Umicore Way. This sets out the
Group vision and the values we seek 10 promote. We have also developed a comprehensive framework for
ethical business practice through our Code of Conduct and a Corporate Governance Charter which set cut
our management philasophy and governance principles. These documents are avaitable on our website
WWW.UMICOre.com.







MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS AND SOCIETY

In 2007 the new Umicore emerged fully as a dynamic, forward-locking, global materials technglogy company with a strong com-
mitment to sustainable development. In a way, the past year marked the conclusion of a ten-year transformation process, we
have maved from being a mainly base metals producer with a burdensome environmental legacy and roots in the 19th Century
to becoeming a company that is truly fit for the 21st Century. With our portfolio of activities and world feadership positions - from
precious metals recycling 1o passenger car emission control catalysts - we are ideally placed to make a telling contribution to a
more sustainable world.

in 2007 we again posted a very satisfactory financial performance and made further progress towards our environmental and
social abjectives. Most businesses posted further improvements on what was already an outstanding year in 2006, leading to our
best-ever results. Return on capital empleyed - our key financial performance metric - approached 20% and, once again, we were
able to outperiorm our peer group in terms of total shareholder return.

The successiul contribution of our zinc alloys assets 1o Nyrstar - and this company’s subsequent IPQ in late October - marked the
completion of a strategic metamorphosis for Umicore. The cash inflow from this operation also transformed our balance sheet. Qus
eneigies can naw be fully directed towards wiiting the next chapter in our development. In this context, our capital expendiiures
increased again in 2007 and are expected to grow further in 2008 and 2009. We have also continued our screening of potential
acquisition and partnership opportunities; the acquisition of the automotive catalyst activities of Delphi Corporation in 2007 further
bolstered our position in this market and we can now stake claim to being the world’s leading producer of emission control catalysts
for light duty vehicles.

We believe that the material solutions that we develop can help achieve the goal of sustainability in a general context whilsi also
offering the passibility for people to enjoy better lives. In 2007 our R&GD spending reached another record level of €125 million.
Some 80% of this amount was dedicated to “clean” technologies and during the year mare resources were directed towards the
development of new automotive catalysts, next generation rechargeable battery materials, fuel cell catalysts and membranes and
materials for photovoltaic applications. We also turther refined our capabitities in the area of recycling processes. It is our belief
that the successful development and introduction of such technotogies will provide the foundations for the longer-term success of
our company,

We continue to make disciplined efforts to ensure that our own environmental footprint - past, present and future - is reduced as
much as pessible. In 2007 our environmental perfarmance evolved positively with reduced emissions of metals to air and water
and lower emissions of greenhouse gases. Progress was made towards our 2010 énvironmental objectives. Many of the technical
hurdles to addressing certain objectives have been overcome and a far greater proportion of sites have been able to move to initiate
actions during ihe year. Further positive steps were also taken in terms of addressing our histarical environmental legacy. In terms
of social performance the results of our most recent employee opinion survey were encouraging, with continued improvements
in the resylts in all categories. Further improvements are necessary, however, for us to reach the very highest levels of employee
satisfaction. Good progress was also made during the year towards our 2010 social objectives. Unfortunately our year was marred
by the deaths of two workers, one in France and one in China. Although the overall evolution of health and safety performance
was positive, such incidents are tolally unacceptable and we are redoubling our efforts to minimize the risks of such incidents
happening again.

We would like to take this opportunity to extend our thanks and appreciation to ail Umicore employees, who have enabled so much
progress to be made in such a short space of time. We would also like to highlight the importance of constructive relationships
and dialogue with our various stakeholders through the year. Such dialogue is of fundamental importance in enabling us to better
identify and address important issues and to get a more objective view on our strengths and weaknesses.

We are confident that this report represents a balanced and reasonable presentation of our organization’s economic, environmental,
and social performance for 2007 We believe that it offers the reader a complete picture of the progress we have made during the
year and of the opportunities and challenges that we will face in the future. We have prepared this report in accordance with the
GRI Guidelines Version 3 (G3). The transition to this new set of reparting guidelines has been foreseen in two steps and we expect
to be able to provide an even more comprehensive report in 2009.

e
f A-Av\j/\/\_-‘
Thomas Leysen Karel Vinck
Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Umicote / Anhual Repor: 2007 / 3




KEY FIGURES®

{in million €) 2003 2004 2008 2006 2007
furnover 4,6771 5.685.0 6,566.5 8,205.7 8,309.9
Revenues (excluding melaf) 1,358.0 1,692.9 1,725.0 1,685.4 1,910.0
EBITDA 2774 441.4 39041 470.9 528.8
Recurring EBIT 145.9 280.3 2331 3292 3591
of which associates 18.0 311 34.0 38.2 26.8
Non-recurring EBIT (39.4) {10.8) {40.3) (9.3) (28.6)
1AS 39 effect - - {9.1} (6.3) 4.0

Total EBIT 106.5 2695 183.7 3136 3344
Recurring EBIF margin 10.7% 14.7% 11.5% 17.3% 17.4%

Result from discontinued operations - 213 20.8 {19.4} 425.8

Net recurring consolidated profit, Group share
- without discontinued operations

Net consolidated profit, Group share 60.1 1779 142.2 195.8 653.1
- with discontinued operalions

89.6 1743 151.5 2183 225.7

Capital expenditure 1483 142.8 145.4 108.2
Cash flow before financing (527.8} 118.7 1331 (213.3)
Total assets of continued operations, end of period 3,108.7 3,5333 2,936.9 37759
Group shareholder's equity, end of period 1,129.4 1,236.9 971.1 939.0
Consalidated net financial debt of continued 6191 590.0 509.5 7731
operations, end of period
Net debt / (net debt + equity), end of period 34.20% 31.5% 33.4% 43.9%
Capital employed, end of period 2,071.2 1,769.1 1,788.4 1,752.4
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) 8.3% 15.3% 13.6% 19.2%
Workforce, end of period 14,549 14,026 14,142 13,932
of which associates 3,070 413 4,314 4,879

Per share data can be found on page 10-11.

(1) The key figures have been adjusted for discontinued items for the year prior to the discontinuation. This means that 2006 data (but not daia from
previous periods) has been adjusted for the discontinuation of the Zinc Alloys activities in 2007. Similarly, 2004 data (but not data from 2003) hes
been adjusted for the discontinuation of the Copper activities in 2005,

4 / Umicore / Annual Report 2007




Key economic indicators
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Key social indicators
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ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL REVIEW®

Revenues

REVEMUES

—

W svonced mareriats 15%
l Precious Melals Products
& Catalysts 51%

Precious Melals Services 9%

D I Specialties 15%
Corporate nol included

Recurring EBIT

EBIT, RECURRING

/—“

. Advanced materials 15w
l Precicus Metals Produtts
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D Zinc Specialties 11%
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Capital employed

CAPITAL EMPLOYED, AYERAGE
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{in raifthon €)

2003 2004 X005 2006

— Returm ory capetal exnployed (ROCE), requrming
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Revenues increased by 13.3% compared to 2006. The
recurring EBIT margin (revenues / recurring EBIT of fully
consolidated operations) increased slightly year-on-year.
Revenue growth was recorded in all business segments,
with the most significant increase coming in the Precicus
Metals Products and Catalysts activities. Turnover increased
only slightly but this was in line with the average evolution
of the various metals prices in Euro terms during the year.
For Umicore, revenue is a more meaningful metric of “top-
line” performance than turover as it excludes the impact
of metal price fluctuations.

Recurring EBIT was 9.1% ahead of 2006, All businesses
showed an increase year-on-year, with the exception of
the 7inc Specialties activities. Strong growth was achieved
in Advanced Materials and Precious Metals Products and
Catalysts, while Precious Metals Services was able to im-
prove slightly on what was already an outstanding per-
formance in 2006.

Year-end capital employed ncreased by € 125.6 million in
2007, This was the result ol investments made during the
year (both capital expenditures and acquisitions), Warking
capital requirements decieased by € 6.2 million during the
vear. The combination of strong earnings growth coupled
with only a slight increase in average capital employed
meant that return on capilal employed reached another
record level of 19.7%.

(" Data in al! charts except net financial debt has been adjusted for discontinued items for the year prior to the discontinuation. This means that
2006 data (but not data from previous periods) has been adjusted for the discontinuation of the Zinc Alloys activities in 2007, Similarly, 2004
data {but not data from 2003) has been adjusted for the discontinuation of the Copper activities in 2005.
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Total EBIT was negatively impacted by the non-recurring
EBIT of € -28.6 million, offset somewhat by a positive 1AS
39 effect of € 2.9 million. Full details on the non-recurring
results can be found in the notes to the financial statements
on page 96. Depreciation charges totalled € 113.3 million
with other non-cash items such as provisions totalling
€ 811 million, Overall EBITOA improved by 12.3% com-
pared with 2006.

Capital expenditures were more than 40% higher than in
2006. The most significant increase took place in Precious
Meitals Services due to the investment in the pre-concen-
tration project. Investments were higher in most of the
Precious Metals Products and Catalysts businesses as well
as the Cobalt and Specially Materials business. At Group
level, some 40% of the total capital expenditures were for
growth projects. Capital expenditure was heavily weighted
towards Europe in 2007, A number of invesiments in Asia
are not included in the break-down as they are carried out
by non-consolidated subsidiaries.

Overall R&GD expendiiure was up by 12.4%, reaching 5.8% of
revenues, Of the total spend of € 124.5 million, € 10.1 mil-
lion was spent at corporate level. Approximately 80% of
the total expenditure is dedicated to projects in the area
of clean technology such as fuel cells, solar grade silicon
production technology, rechargeable batteries, automotive
catalysts and precious metals recycling. For more informa-
tion on Umicore’s clean technologies please see pages 12
to 18 of this report. Umicore increased the number of pat-
ents filed from 34 in 2006 to 50 in 2007.

EBIT, EBITDA & non-recurring elements

{in milhon €) EBITDA
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Financials cost & taxes
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The tatal tax charge for the period was € 7.7 million highzr
than in 2006. The recurring tax charge for the period of
€ 83.9 million corresponded 0 an overall recurring effec
tive tax rate of 28.7% on recurring pre-1ax consolidated
income, same 11.2% higher than in 2006. Net interest
charges were somewhat lower than in 2006 as a restit
of lower indebtedness towards the end of the year. Net
interest charges were € 2.7 million lower at € 27:5 millicn
compared 10 2006.

Umicore generated strong operating cash flows during
2007. The biggest single inflow of cash during the year
came from disposals of assets, primarily in the form of
proceeds received from the Nyrstar IPO. The cash outflovr
includes all standard elements such as capital expenditure,
acquisitions, dividends and taxes but also € 251.4 million
of net share buy-backs. During the year Umnicore completed
a € 150 million share buv-back pregramme and launched
a further € 400 million buy-back which it expects to com-
plete in 2008.

The net financial debt at the end of 2007 was well below
that at the end of 2006. This was due 1o the cash inflow
received from the Nyrsiar PO towards the end of the year
and the strong cash flow generation during the course of
the year. Equity increasec during the year due to signifi-
cantly higher net earnings for the year {primarily due to the
contribution from discontitued operations) and fair value
movements. The combination of lower debt and higher
equity meant that the end-of-year gearing ratio dipped
below 10%. The proportion of floating rate debt was lower
than usual at year end as a result of the reduction in net
debt following the Nyrstar IPQ. The average proportion of
floating rate debt for the whole year was 43%.




Distribution of economic benefits

0Of Umicore’s total censclidated turnover, the most sig-
nificant portion was used to secure the melal component
of raw materials. After subtraciing other raw materials
costs, energy-related costs and depreciation, the remain-
ing economic benefits avaitable far distribution stood at
€1,311 million.

The biggest portion was distributed to employees in the
form of salaries and ather benefits, Umicore paid taxes
to the goveinments and authorities where it operates
and also repaid inlerest to its creditors. Gross dividends
paid to shareholders increased by 55% assuming that the
proposed dividend of € 0.65 per share is accepted by
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting at the
end of April 2008, Benefits 1o shareholders also include
a gross amount of € 264 million effectively returned to
shareholders by way of the share buy-back operations
during the year.

The cempany put some € 576 million of the economic
benefits back into the company in the form of retained
earnings. This figure also excludes the nel cash outflow
spent an share buy-backs. This figure deducts the pro-
posed 2007 dividend to be paid and booked in 2008
(3djusted for treasury shares and canceliations to end
February 2008) instead of the actual 2006 dividend paid
and booked in 2007. It is therefore somewhat lower than
the olficial retained earnings to be found in the balance
sheet at end 2007. Umicore spent some € 0.2 million on
charitable donations.

The bulk of employee benefits were in the form of
salaries, with the balance being in the form of national
insurance contributions, pensions and other benefits.
Employee benefits are only reported for fully consoli-
dated entities and therefore cannot be readily compared
with total headcount figures, which include associate
companies. A full breakdown of employee numbers by
region and by category can be found on page 64-65.
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EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
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EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION & BENEFITS (i millon €) ' Europe: LYY Dm,fpmtx: Ty
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. Emgloyee salarnies € 417.2 {76%)

. South America: 4%
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SHARE INFORMATION

Dividends (V@ (ne)

If the appropriation of profit proposed is approved, a gross divi- - A, .
dend of € 0.65 per share will be paid for the financial year 2007, m e
Dividends will be paid out from 7 May onwards, at the registered ' _ ! ‘
offices and branches of the following institutions: - I ‘ l

- ING - KBC Bank o "]

* Bank Degroof * Petercam S.A. o1 n ' lI &
(]

2001 2004 2105 006 2007

* Fortis Bartk * Dexia Bank 100 : ]
]
|

Capital structure
:] £PS adpssted, basi:

In February 2008 the company completed a one-for-five stock W ot v dividend {propased)
split, with the number of shares increasing from 25,000,000 to

125,000,000. All share related data in this report has been

adjusted to take account of this stock split. During 2007,

936,500 new shares were created related to the exercise of stock

options with linked subscription rights. All remaining subscription

rights were cancelled in late 2007. During the year Umicore used

699,475 of its treasury shares in the context of the exercise of

stock options.

he company repurchased € 264 million worth of its own shares
during 2007 and at year end the company owned 10,911,770 of
its own shares. The Extraordinary General Meeting of 5 February
agreed to the cancellation of 5,986,625 Umicore shares.

share price & trading volumes

€

40 4,000,000

3,500,000
ﬁwﬂ: 3,600,000
% 2,500,000

2,000,000

35
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" [.L.] LAl 02 03 (1] as os or L 1] o7

= Uricore share price
= Bel 20 index (indexed)
= Do Jones Spedially Chermatals index (indexed)

l umicose yearly / monthly average daily tradirq volume (only januaey and February in 2008)
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Data per sharet"

(in € per share) 2003 2004 2005 2006

EPS excluding discontinued operations ¥

EPS, basic 0.53 1.27 097 1.70
EPS, diluted 0.53 1.22 0.95 1.67
EPS adjusted, basic 0.80 1.41 1.21 1.73
EPS adjusted, diluted 0.79 1.36 1.19 1.70

EPS including discontinued aperations

EPS, basic 0.53 1.44 1.14 1.55
EPS, diluted 0.53 1.3% 1.1 1.52
Gross dividend © 032 0.33 0.37 0.42
Cash flow before financing, basic (4.69) 0.96 1.06 (1.69)
Total assets of continued aperations, end of period, 27.61 28.65 23.48 29.86
basic
Group shareholder's equity, end of period, basic 10.03 10.03 7.76 7.42

Share price @

High 11.39 14.06 19.97 26.00
Low ’ 6.65 9.45 1nn 19.09
Close 11.13 . 1385 19.92 25.80
Average 9.12 1113 14.80 2273

Capital structure

2003 2004 2005 2006

Number of sharest™®

Tota! shares outstanding, end of period 127,100,875 127,274,375 129,055,250 130,050,125 130,986,625

of which registered shares 24,170 31,115 37,995 89,334 149,219

of which treasury shares 3,551,995 3,658,435 3,155,485 3,304,260 10,911,770
Average number of shares, basic EPS 112,607,923 123,307,955 125,073,349 126,469,895 125,233,789
Average number of shares, fully diluted EPS 113,224,544 128,111,169 127,574,880 128,750,009 126,850,152
Capital, end of period {in million €)

Issued capital® 552.4 563.2 459.7 463.2

Group sharehaolder's equity 1,129.4 1,236.9 9711 939.0

Market capitalisation 1,414.4 1,762.8 2,570.8 3,355.3
Shareholder base, end of period

Umicore (treasury shares) 2.79% 2.87% 2.45% 2.54%

Parfina (Parfimmo) - - 3.12% 3.10%

Schroders - - 5.16% -

Fidelity - 6.06% 4.98% -

Merrill Lynch - . 3.10% -

Suez 15.68% 0.54% - -

Free float 84.32% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

{1} Alt data per share and the number of shares have been adjusted for the share split of 5:1, which 100k place on 29 February 2008.

(2) EPS data has been adjusted for discontinued items for the year prior to the discontinuation. This means that 2006 data (but not data from previous ﬁeriods)
has been adjusied for the discontinuation of the Zinc Alloys activities in 2007, Similarly, 2004 data {but not data from 2003} has been adjusted for the
discontinuation aof the Copper activities in 2005.

(3) For those investors subject to Belgian witholding tax, the gross dividend is subject 1o a 25% wilholdin% tax (reduced 10 15% on presentation of YVPR strips).
The 2007 dividend assumes acceptance by the shareholders of the Board's proposal of a gross dividend of € 0.65 per share.

(4} Share prices for 2005 and before have been restated to take account of the Cumerio demerger.

{5) In 2007 Umicore carried out capital increases amounting 10 a total of 536,500 shares created as a resull of the exercise of stock options with linked
subscription rights. In the years 2002 to 2006 Umiccre carried out 3 number of capital increases as a result of: an equity offering in November 2003; the
exercise of stock options with linked subscriptien rights, the conversion of options in the ESOP 1999 plan into ordinary shares.

{6} 1n 2005 the issued capital was adapted following the demerger of Cumeric and the incorparation of share premiums.

Urnicore / Annual Report 2007 / 11




5 in October 2007 Hve Unnicere Soler Tearm came in second place |
race conmecting the morth off tihe ceniiment with neting
mene than the sun to power the vehides. The “Umicar Infinity” |
used Unmicore's Gnﬁ@fmﬂyo{ﬁ”ﬂ@fm* germaniun stbstretes i@ powe? 1 -
o speeds up to 150 kph.

ol i’ " 3 . 7 % - ; :
B T T saEaan gRop Reeeen e sl men g e e a0l 6 se pon Hepgi e oA
A3 RN TSRO STy <\’(< GO AT T

v e Cgnet p ey, N A
BRGNS VO R OY Rl

(Ayers Rock
(Kings Canyon




it

-
ol Repgi¥ 2 3
g™ A .




SOLAR CELLS

Generating energy

Germanium substrates constitute the building
blocks of very efficient solar cells which

are primarily used in satellite solar panels.
Germanium-based solar cells are up to twice
as efficient in converting solar power into
electricity than the traditional, silicon-based,
cells. Other layers of materials - such as
gallium indium phosphide (GalnP) or gallium
arsenide {GaAs) - are "grown” on top of the
germanium substrate: they each convert part
of the solar spectrum inlo energy.

Y/
<7
™\ <J
Paa)
D

Traditional sources of energy such as oil,
coal and gas are limited and pollute the
environment. Why then not turn to an
energy source which will last a lot longer.
The prospects for solar energy have never
been better.

As the world leader in germanium, a
very rare material, Umicore has been
active in this sector for quite some time:
our extremely thin and pure germanium
substrates (or wafers) are the material of

Electricity
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Electrical
contacts

choice for solar cells in space, where size,
efiiciency and power are crucial. These
substrates are used in the majority of the
satellites launched today.

These rare germanium materials are now
also descending o earth: using an array

Solar panel

of lenses and mirrors, solar beams are
concentrated on a tiny germanium wafer.
This requ res a lot less germanium and
limits the cost difference with silicon,
which is cheaper but less efficient.

Umicore, in partnership with Hydro, is

‘also developing a unique production

method allowing for a significant
reduction of the cost of producing
very pure silicon, for use in solar cell
applicatigns.

Germanium substrate
{Umicare product)




AUTOMOTIVE CATALYSTS

Clean air is our business

Harmless exhaus
gases

orous substrate

precious metals precious metals

Combustion
engine

The catalytic active
material is integrated into
a porous substrate through
which the exhaust gases
(hydrocarbons, carbon
monoxide and nitrogen
oxide) flow.

The precious metals
subsequently react with
the exhaust gases,
rendering them harmless.
The entire structure is
encased by 2 metal
housing.

Precious metals enjoy a prominent role in
automotive catalysts. Platinum, rhodium
and palladium react with harmful
emissions from combustion engines
(nitrogen oxide, arganic malecules and
carbon monoxide}, rendering these gases
largely harmless.

The Group’s Automotive Catalyst business
has been busy developing, producing and
engineering catalysts for a wide range of
engines since the 1960s and has become
in 2007 the number one producer of
passenger car catalysts in the world.

Increasingly stringent emission regulation
- not just in the Furopean Unian or North
Armerica but also in Asia and China -
encompassing new categories of vehicles
(such as trucks and buses) puts a high
premium on technological development.

Umicore / Annual Report 2007 / 15




RECHARGEABLE BATTERIES

Storing energy -

A lithium-ion battery comprises a
“negative” electrode (the anode,
covered with a layer of carbon)
and a “positive” electrode {the
cathode, covered with a layer

of lithium cobaltite). Both sides
are separated by a thin polymer
separator, When the battery is
charged, lithium ions (positively
charged lithium atoms) migrate
from the cathode through the
separator towards the anode.

The reverse process takes place
during the discharging process.
At the same time electrons (which
are “split off” from the ions) use
an external channel to move to
the ather side, creating electricity
along the way.

\_ J

requires constant technological efforts
to be able to continue to meet custamer
requirements: the batteries need to be
increasingly light, powerful and safe.

It wasn't that long ago that you had to
pack a spare battery for your mobile
phane to avoid running out of power in
the middle of an important phone call.
The rapid technological development

of the materials used in rechargeable
batteries has allowed mobile phones
and PDAs to become not only a lot more
powerful but also more compact.

These batteries will be used in
environmentaily friendly hybrid

cars, which have more demanding
requirements in terms of the battery’s

Umicore has a world feading position in
the field of cobalt-based materials for
widely used Lithium-ion rechargeable
batteries. That leadership positicn

4 : D
Hybrid cars rely both on a traditional
combustion engine and an electric
motor supported by a powerful
rechargeable battery. The engine
provides most of the vehicle’s
power, while the electric motor
provides auxiliary powey, for
example for accelerating, passing or
even low-speed/low acceleration
driving. This combination allows for
a smaller, more efficient engine to
be used. There is no need o charge
the battery externally as the electric
power is generated by the gasoline
engine or from regenerative braking.

\_ Wy,
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Sepaiator

Anodz

Sepaiator

Cathcde

weight, power and resistance to shoce
and heat.

fn this regard Umicore is also able to
close the loop: old mobile phanes -
batteries included - can be recycled using
our proprietary recycling technology.

Battery supports
comtwstion engine

Energy reieased
from braking




FUEL CELLS

Generating and storing energy

Cathode

Catalyst

Anode

Negative

Fossil fuels not only create greenhouse
gas efmissions, they will alsa run out at
some point in the future. Hydrogen offers
the perspective of allowing significant
reductions in (0, emissions. The mixture
of hydrogen with oxygea results in the
production of energy with the only by-
product being wates. Fuel cells are units
where this reaction happens. They could
be used to power the environmentally
friendly car of the future: doing away
with the problem ¢f exhaust gases.

Hydrogen tank

Hydrogen (H,) enters the “negative” side of the fuel cell
stack, while oxygen {0,) enters the “pesitive” side. Both
sides are separated by a membrane covered with the
(precious) metals-based catalyst material, which causes
hydrogen to split into positively-charged protons and
negatively-charged electrans. The electrons are not able to
pass through the membrane and need to travel to the other
side via an external channel, creating electricity along the
way (the movement of negatively-charged electrons). At
the “positive” side of the fuel cell, oxygen, assisted by the
catalyst material, receives the hydrogen protons, creating
water (H,0) as end product.

J

Fuel cell
store
Flow of
hydrogen ‘

“Negative” side
of fuel cell

lMembrane

electrons

“Positive” side
of fuel cell
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RECYCLING

Recovery of scarce metals

Umicore is a materials technology group
offering high-perfarmance materials for
high-end applications, using as little as
possible scarce and expensive metals.

This strategy is reflected in our goal

to continuously increase the re-use of
materials in our production processes. It
involves products which have reached

Recycled metals
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the end of their life cycle or by-products
of other production processes,

Recycling is particularly important in
the field of precious metals. Although
precious metals are engineered in such
a way that they become increasingly
efficient, the use of modern technology
in everyday applications has exploded

in recent years boosting the demand
far precious metals, which are scarce by
definition.

Meanwhile, Umicore has become the
world’s leading recycler of precious
metals: “he bulk of our inflow of preciou:
metals criginates from secondary
materials.

\

Obsolete mobile phones contain valuablz

precious metals such as silver {Ag), gold (Au) or
palladium (Pd) which Hoboken’s complex recycling
and refining operation is able to capture On average
50,000 mobile phones contain about 1 kq of gold and
10 kg of sifver. Only about 1% of all pho.es discarded
annually are recycled. The potential for this type of
“above ground mining” is therefore hugs.




- N, O ABATEMENT CATALYST

Cutting greenhouse gases

Agriculture relies heavily on the use of Umicore, along with its partner Alvigo,
fertilizers, in which nitric acid plays a has developed a cost-efficient catalyst
prominent role as a key ingredient. Nitric technology that will cut the emission
acid itself is produced via the oxidation of N,0 gases from ammonia oxidation
of ammania: this process however reaciors by more than 90%, depending
generales nitrous oxide (N.0) as a by en the application.

product. The challenge is that “laughing
gas”, 3s M0 is commanly referred to, is a
greenhouse gas and as such contributes
to global warming. N,0 emissions in
2003 accounted for about 17% of all
greenhouse gas emissions from industrial
sousces in the European Union, according
to European Environmenial Agency
statistics.

Reversing this trend and reducing N,0
emissions in the nitric acid industry will
therefore help fight the warming of our
planet and offer the fertilizer industry
the opportunity to contribute its bit to
meeting environmental regulations and
help turn our planet into a sustainable
one!

The catalyst system - in the form of a
honeycombed hexagonal monofithic
structure - does not contain any precious
metals, making it very cost-effective. Unlike
some of its rivals, which rely on heavy
metals, it uses iron to trigger the catalyst
reaction with N, gases, making this a very
environmentally friendly technology.
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rapid growth of a photovolitaic séftd}\,&ed with a short
silicon. Tjakko Zijlema (left) and Erich @ﬁert (right) have
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FCONOMIC REPORT

I've been interested

in the broader issue

ol energy supply, as well
as the spc1al and economic
problems involved, for

a long ume naw. Being
able 10 work on a process
1hat would enable the
development of & truly
sustainable way of producing
energy was a lanlaslic
opportunily for me.

Eric Robert
Project Leader, Umicore
Research, Olen, Belgium
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. dimate change is something
to take seriously if mankind
wants (o sustair life on
this planet, Actially, ane of
the best and eaiest ways
10 achieve a sustainable
future is to clean up aftes
ourselves. Umicire already
invests heavily i1 clean and
energy-efficient materials but
itis also a matter of attitude.
Qur site in Fort Saskatchewan
has strict rules about a clean
working enviranment, if only
out of courtesy towards the
employees, the tustomers
and the people living in our
own area. e




ADVANCED MATERIALS

Profile

The Advanced Materials business group produces high-purity metals, alloys, compounds and engineered prod-
ucts for a wide range of advanced applications. The main materials used are cobalt, germanium and nickel.
The business group is composed of two business units and also comprises a 40% shareholding in Element Six
Abrasives - a joint venture with Element Six.

Cobalt and Specialty Materials (CSM) is a world leader in cobalt and nickel chemicals. Its key products include
cobalt compounds used in rechargeable batteries, fine cobalt powders used in hard-metal and diamond tools
and metallic compounds for ceramics and catalyst applications. Electro-Optic Materials is the world’s foremost
producer of germanium materials. Key products include substrates for photovoltaics and photonics and lenses
and optical assemblies for night vision applications. Forty percent owned Element Six Abrasives produces
synthetic diamonds and other abrasive materials for use in industrial tools.

RECURRING EBIT (in rllion €) REVERUES {in million €) CAPITAL EMPLOYED (n milion €)
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Cobalt & Specialty Materials

In Rechargeable Battery Materials sales of lithium cobaltite
grew strongly year-on-year. The continued increasing price of
cebalt and lithium prices put pressure on the premiums as the
year progressed, thereby offsetting some of the posilive volume
effect on the revenues. Umicore started commercial sales of next
generation rmaterials for Li-lon batleries for use in power tools
and hybrid electric vehicles and increased its research efforts for
these applications.

The Ceramics and Chemicals activities continued to performed
strongly, with revenues well above those of the previous year.
umicore is benefiting from its dedicated customer approach and
has grown its market share in nickel specialties for plating and ca-
talysis applications used in processes such as the desulphurisation
of crude oil. The company completed the acquisition of Corn. van
Loocke, a carboxlates producer based in Belgium. This allowed
the business unit to extend the product offering.

Sales volumes in Tool Materials business were at similar leveis
to 2006 while premiums improved significantly, as a result of re-
duced exports from Chinese competitors {related to the removal
of tax rebates). This more than tompensated for the effects of a
weaker US dollar.

Electro-Optic Materials

Sales volumes in Substrates were well above the levels of 2005.
The bulk of the volume was for space sclar ¢ells, and the business
has benefited from increased aclivity in the space industry. The
continued growth in terrestrial concentrator photovoltaics usirg
germanium substrales, as well as the growth in LED applications,
provided additional momentumn for the business.

In Optics, sales volumes of germanium blanks increased ard
the business regained market shares in Europe. Sales in North
America were stable. The gronvth in sales of optical assemblies
for automotive night vision applications was slower than antici-
nated. Sales volumes for germanium tetrachloride for the optical
fibre industry were down year-on-year.

The European Commission’s 7 Framework confains several fi-
search priorities including the development of automotive detec:
tor systems for the protection of pedestrians, and the devetop-
ment of terrestrial photovoliais concentrator systems. These a'e
areas of development where Umicore’s germanium-based lensas
and solar cells play a role.

At the end of 2007 Umicore purchased the outstanding 40%
minorities in the germanium refining operations in Dong Chuan,
China.

Key figures 2003 2004 2005 2006
{in rniflion €)
Turnover 354.9 552.5 456.4 606.4
Revenues {excluding metal) 2.2 3086 2751 287.2
EBITDA 55.3 106.3 83.6 771
Recusring EBIT 50.1 85.4 59.4 52.9
of which associates ¢! 13.5 18.6 18.4 223
Total EBIT 36.4 76.6 57.7 43.6
Recurring EBIT margin 16.5% 21.7% 14.9% 10.6%
Capital expenditure 17.9 24,9 22.2 15.8
Capital employed, average 203.0 408.5 387.0 380.9
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) 24.7% 20.9% 15.4% 13.9%
Warkforce, end of period 291 4,075 4,330 5515
of which associates 1,584 2,574 2,935 4,139

() Ganzhou Yi Hao Umicore Industries Co. Ltd., Jiangmen Chancsun Umicore Industry Co. Lid

Element Six Abrasives
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Element Six Abrasives’

Elernent Six Abrasives’ contribution to Umicore’s results remained
at a high level despite adverse struclural and translational cur-
rency effects. The main area of growth was in abrasive products,
primarily polycrystalline materials, for tools used in the oil and
gas drilling sectars. Sales volumes in this segment were up by
20%. In the smalter area of abrasives for woodworking and met-
alworking toals, sates volumes were also up significantly, driven
by market demand and also benefiting somewhat from substi-
tution of carbide materials by diamond and cubic baron nitride
products. Sales of diamond grit to external customers increased
by 10%.

Element Six Abrasives completed the acquisition of Barat Carbide
- a leader in the development and manufacturing of tungsten
carbide wear solutions for mining, construction and oil and gas
drilling applications. The combinatien with Barat offers comple-
mentary malterial compeiences 10 Element Six Abrasives. The
business had been successiully integrated into the Element Six
Abrasives operations by the end of 2007.

TURNOVER (BY DESTINATION) RESOURCE EFFICIENCY WORKFORCE, END OF PERIOD
. Europe: 35% . End-of-lile . Europe: A5%
materials: 4%
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Biout avenca, 2% :;fm m‘°:':i Wsouh meice: 30
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materials- 2%
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Sustainability considerations

Rechargeable battery materials {particularly lithium-ion and its derivatives) have significant potential to ac-
celerate the penetration of more energy-efficient vehicles such as hybrid electrical and electric cars. While
germanium has traditionally been used primarily for space photavoltaics, it is increasingly being used for ter-
restrial solar power generation, Managing the issue of cobalt dust in the workplace is a key health and safety
cansideration for CSM; the business also pays particular attention to the ethical sourcing of cobalt ores in Central
Africa, the world’s main source of primary cabalt supply. Some 79% of Advanced Materials’ raw material needs
are sourced from end-of-life and secondary materials.
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PRECIOUS METALS PRODUCTS AND CATALYSTS

Profile

Precious Metals Products and Catalysts produces a range of complex functional materials based on precious met-
als and its expertise in technology platforms such as catalysis and surface technology. The business is organized
in five business units:

Automotive Catalysts is one of the world’s leading producers of catalysts used in automotive emission abate-
ment systems for both light-duty and heavy-duty vehicles. Catalyst Technologies produces precious-metals
based catalysts for the life science and chemical industries and is a key developer of technology for fuel cell
applications. Jewellery and Electroplating produces semi-finished precious metals-based products, for jew-
ellery and industrial applications. It also produces electrolytes for electronic, wear protection and decorative
applications. Technical Materials produces contact and brazing materials for use in electrical and construction
applications and platinum equipment for the production of high quality glass. Thin Film Products produces
metallic targets for producing ultra-thin coatings on a wide range of applications.

RECURRING EBIT in millan €)™ REVENUES {in miilon €)™ CAPITAL EMPLOYED (n milhon €)
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(1) Only 5 months of former PMG activities and 12 months of Thin Film Products
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Automotive Catalysts

The Automotive Catalysts business recorded significant year-on-
year revenue growth, although the phasing out of a customer
platform in North America was largely responsibie for a lower
perfermance in the second half of the year.

Global automotive production grew by S% in 2007. Light duty
vehicle production in North America was down by 2%. Umnicore's
sales volumes in North America were influenced by a build up of
OEM inventory in the first half, In the European market, production
of light duty vehicles increased 5.5%. Umicore’s sales volumes in
the reqgion increased year-on-year, driven by market growth, a
good platform mix and the increased market penetration of diesel
particulate filters.

Light duty vehicte production in Asia continued to grow strongly
with China and South Korea leading the way. Umicore benefited
substantially from this growth through its strong positions in both
countries. The decision was taken to install a third production fine
in Suzhou, completion of which is scheduled for mid-2008. Sales
of Umicore’s products in the South American market were in line
with the solid growth seen in that region.

tn September Umicore completed the acquisition of the catalyst
operations of Delphi Corp. This acquisition provides Umicore with
a complementary customer base, three production facilities and
interesting product and process technologies backed up by addi-
lional research and testing capabilities. As a result of 1the acquisi-
tion, by the end of 2007 Umicore had become the market leader
in catalysts for light duty vehicles. The final purchase price was
appreximately € 50 million.

In 2007, Umicore continued in its efforts to establish a deeper
presence in the Heavy Duty Diesel (HDD) market in bath on-road
and non-road applications. In support of these efforts, approvil
was given for the development of new HDD testing capabilities i1
Germany, Brazil, Korea and the Us.

The results of Automotive Catalysts contain the reversal of a
pravision for a doubtful receivable recorded in 2005. This had 3
positive impact of € 4 million a7 EBIT level.

Catalyst Technologies

Precious Metals Chemistry re;orded an improved performance
for the year with higher sales of products to the fine chemicali
and life science sectors. The decision was taken to relocate the
plant in Guarulhos (Brazil) to a dedicated facility in Americana,
some 150 km to the north of Sao Paalo. Construction of a new
production facility in Buenos Aires, Argentina, commenced during
the year and is set to be compleied by mid-2008.

In Fuel Cells the devetopment of catalysts for fuel cell and referm-
ing applications continued in close cooperation with SolviCore anc
fuel cell producers.

Supplies of materials for the battery and GTL catalyst Recycling
Solutions increased - some 600 tonnes of used rechargeable
batteries were received for recycling during the year,

Key figures 2003 @ 2004 2005 2007
(in million €)
Turnover 646.0 1,678.7 1,860.6 2,940.8
Revenues (excluding metal} 286.9 708.9 766.2 964.2
EBITDA 62.9 166.6 177.7 197.6
Recursing EBIT 42.9 122.8 136.1 . 161.9
of which associates 31 9.0 8.4 , 5.4
Total EBIT 429 122.4 1353 . 151.4
Recurfing EBIT margin 13.9% 16.1% 16.7% . 16.2%
Capital expenditure 137 49.2 43.6 . 40.8
Capital employed, average 538.3 5819 610.1 . 770.8
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) 17.50 21.1% 22.3% . 21.0%
Workforce - end of period 3,319 3273 3,420 4,508
of which associates” 163 178 220 248

(1) ICT Co. Japan, ICT In¢. USA, Ordeg Korea (all Automotive Catalysts); SolviCore (Catalyst Technologies)
(2) Only 5 months of former PMG activities and 12 months of Thin Film Products (previously in Advanced Materials)
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Technical Materials

tn Contact Materials the business was able to generate strong
revenue growth year on year. The business finalized the acquisi-
tion of AMES Electro Materials, a major producer of contact mate-
rials in North America.

In BrazeTec annual revenues were well above thase of 2006. The
European and Chinese operations continued to generate the cor-
nerstone of growth far the business. Growth was achieved both in
the more traditional metallurgical brazing alloys as well as more
specialized products.

In Electronic Packaging Materials sales volumes far die-
attach materials grew in line with the market for semiconductor
electronics.

Platinum Engineered Materials' revenues were well up year-
on-year. Customers comrmissioned more new production lines
and required more frequent replacernent of equiprent in exist-
ing facilities. Deliveries of platinum gauzes and N,0 abatement
catalysts used in the production of fertilizer showed goed year-
on-year growth.

TURNOVER (BY DESTINATION)

RESOURCE EFFICIENCY

Jewellery & Electroplating

Jewellery and Industrial Metals recorded increased annual
sales volumes for both silver and gold preducis. Global demand
for jewellery increased year-on-year and the business also ben-
efited from increased exports by Eurape’s luxury jewellery brands
1o other regions. The unit was also awarded the contract to supply
blanks for the German € 10 coins.

in Electroplating, growth in the electrical and electronics mar-
kets translated into higher demand for high-end components and
services for electrical connectors and printed circuit boards. Sales
volumes of elecirolytes for jeweliery and other decorative ap-
plications were up year-on-year.

Thin Film Products

Steady growth was recorded in Optics and Wear Protection on
the back of general market demand. The acquisition of an optics
operation in China at the beginning of the year also benefited the
business.

The Electronics and Data Storage operations saw revenues for
electronics grow in line with the electronics maket while the data
storage market continued to shrink.

In Large Area Coatings sales volumes of 1T0 targets grew
strongly although premiums continued to be affected by price
pressure.

WORKFORCE, END OF PERIOD
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Sustainability considerations

research and development.

Umicore’s Automotive Catalysts business plays an important role for society and the environment by enabling
continuous reductions in harmful pollutants from vehicles. In Technical Materials, platinum-based catalysts are
used to reduce the emission of nitrous oxides (a harmful greenhouse gas) in the production of fertilizer. The
Catalyst Technologies business develops technologies for fuel cells; although this market is a nascent one, it
offers the potential to provide cleaner power generation for a variety of applications. In Thin Film Products, -
potential exists to contribute to the growth of renewable power generation by producing thin film materials
for photovoltaic use. Approximately half of Umicore’s precious metals requirements in the division could, if
needed, be sourced from the company’s Precious Metals Refining operations. Primary materials represent 90%
of Precious Metals Products & Catalysts’ feed, largely due to the automotive catalyst substrates. Excluding this
effect, secondary materials reach some 37% of the feed. The business is Umicore’s single biggest investor in
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If it weren't for our activities,
we would iss aut on

a unique opportunity to

save natural resources via
recycling: a'simple act adds
important thin¢s to cur daily
life, That's why I'm proud to
be part of the Umicore Group
and share regponsibility for
living up to the challenge of
promoting the recycling of
electroni¢ scrdg and end-of-
life rechargeable batteries in
(Y COUntry.

Ricardo Rodrifjues,
Business Develppment
Manager, Guaifilhos, Brazil
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PRECIOUS METALS SERVICES

Profile

Precious Metals Services is the world market leader in recycling complex waste streams containing precious
and other non-ferrous metals. Its core business is to provide refining and recycling services to an international
customer base. It is divided into two business units:

Precious Metals Refining can recover some 17 precious and other non-ferrous metals from a wide range of
complex industrial intermediate materials and from precious metals-bearing scrap from electronic and catalytic
applications. It sources these materials from a truly global supply base. Precious Metals Refining is unique in the
range of materials it is able to recycle and the flexibility of its operations. The Precious Metals Management
activity offers a range of services to internal and external customers including leasing, hedging and physical
delivery of metals.

RECURRING EBIT (in rullion €) REVENUES {in smullion €} CAPITAL EMPLOYED (n millon €)

A0 e e S4.8%

200
250
m
50
100
50
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 ’ 003 2000 1005 006 07
. regurcng EBIT — REBIT margin — Retum on Capral Emplayed
. Revenues (excluding metal) .(apnal employed, average
EBIT & ERITDA (in millkon €) CAPITAL EXPENDITURE (in million €) WORKFORCE

[ emion B Copesl expendine I worktonce, end of period

. Total EBIT

Umicare / Annual Report 2007 / 31



Precious Metals Refining

The business matched the outstanding operational performance
of 2006.

Supply conditions, the main driver for the performance of the
business, remained favourable throughout the year. The further
increase in availability of raw materials was translated into overall
improvements in commercial terms for all intake categories from
industrial by-products to end-of-life waste streams. The intake of
end-of-lile materials continued to increase in the higher value
segments and Urnicore successfully grew its presence in the
different markets, The refining operaticns processed more high-
grade electronic scrap than was the case in previous years. The
intake of spent catalysts of all cateqories increased significantly
and in 2007 Umicore became one of the world’s top three recy-
clers of spent automotive catalysis. The business is fully focused
on utilizing the flexibility of the operations to select the most
complex and highest value materials from both secondary and
end-of-life sources. The refining operation also fell the benefils
of the synergies brought about from the transifer of the Hanau
recycling activities to Hoboken early in the year.

The business continued to benefit from high metal prices. Prices
for most precious and specialty metals were higher in 2007 than
in 2006. The weakening dollar exchange rate mitigated these in-
creases 1o a certain extent but most metals prices increased even
when expressed in Euro.

Other elements also further enhanced the competiliveness of the
operations: the performance of the sampling and assaying process
persuaded more suppliers to enter into longer-term commercial
relationships. This also improvad the visibility on medium-term
revenues. An accurale and trustworthy sampling process is of
particular impartance to suppliers of materials in a high metal
price environment. The ethical sourcing practices and recognised
eco-efficiency of the Hoboken aperations provided an additioniil
advantage to attract quality suppliers.

The investment in the precious metals pre-concentiation process
neared completion in 2007. This investment aims to further irr -
prove the flow sheet - notably at the pre-concentration step. Th.s
will ensure that the operations become even more flexible ang
offers the paossibility to speed up the flow of materials through
the facility. It is anticipated that the benefits of the investments
will start to be felt from April 2008. Other smaller investments,
which aim to further improve the service level and to master th2
growing complexity of precious metals-bearing materials, werz
launched during the year.

Key figures 2003 2004 2005 2006

(in million €)

Turnover 1,717.0 2,2829 3,133.0 4,005.7

Revenues (excluding metal) 2147 2049 2345 325.0

EBITDA 713 59.0 97.7 162.4

Recurring EBIT 45.7 34.0 56.8 131.3

Of which associatest" {0.1)

Total EBIT 45.7 318 56.5 121.5 128.9
Recurring EBIT margin % 21.3% 16.6% 24.2% 40.4% 37.4%
Capital expenditure 23.2 20.9 235 20.9 52.1
Capital emptoyed - average 240.6 289.9 254.7 276.2 246.0
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) % 19.0% - 11.7% 22.3% 47.5% 54.4%
Workforce - end of period 1,180 1,289 1,297 1,314 1,452

(1) Cycleon (Precious Metals Refining): in 2003 only
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Precious Metals Management

Prices of most precious metals reached all time or multi-year
highs during the second half of 2007. Silver and hodium reached
26-year and 17-year highs respectively, while in December the
platinum price reached an all-time record level. These higher
levels benefited the lease business, while the increased levels of
price volatility provided further trading opportunities.

Demand for physical metal as an investment continued to in-
crease in 2007, particularly during the second half. Deliveries of
gold bars rose significantly, driven by investor demand. for the
metal - a traditional safe-haven during times of financial and
economic uncertainty.

Umicore is a founding pariner in Deutsche Borse Commodities
GmbH, an exchange tiaded gold fund set up in Frankfurt in
December 2007, Umicore will ensure the physicat delivery of trad-
ed metal, thereby enhancing its brand recognition as a provider of
physical precious metals on the German and Swiss markets.

TURNOVER {BY DESTINATION,
EXCLUDING PRECIOUS METALS MANAGEMENT)

RESOURCE EFFICIENCY

WORKFORCE, END OF PERIOD
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Sustainability considerations

Umicore’s feed comes almost completely from secondary sources (industrial by-products and end-of-life materi-
als). The business group’s resource efficiency (use of recycled plus secondary sources) amounts to 83%. The
operations offer the ultimate example of closing the materials loop and using the infinite recyclable properties
of metals to the maximum. Recycling involves significantly less energy use (and greenhouse gas emissions) per
kilogram of recovered metals than primary production (mining). Recycling of precious metals is likely to become
even more important given the potential physical constraints on precious metals supply from primary sources
and the projected increase in demand for precious metals for use in applications such as automotive catalysts
and fuel cells. A program to address historical pollution issues around the Hoboken plant is in the process of
being finalized. In terms of occupational health the level of lead in blood of employees at the Hoboken site and
rare sensitization as a result of exposure to platinum salts are monitored closely.

Umicore / Annual Report 2007 / 33



During the seven yeail

t have been working
for Urmicore Norway |
have wilnessed a fol ¢
improvements, not ju
production-related 1sst
but alse on environme
awareness. And b i
15 unhkely to stop bece
management never ce
Lo encourage the emp
1o brng ferward sugge
foi further improveme

Bjorn Tore Mathisen,]
Fine Zinc Powders, La
Norway

f
on

]

25

1lal
"nd
J5e
1565
3YCes
S00S
il

Fvik,




/INC SPECIALTIES

8
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Profile

Zinc Specialties develops zinc-based chemicals, powders and materials for a wide variety of applications. Zinc
Specialties is organized around three business units:

Zinc Chemicals produces fine powders and oxides which are used primarily for their qualities in providing cor-
rosion or UV protective properties to paints and other materials and also for their catalytic and chemical proper-
ties in applications such as the production of rubber and ceramics. Building Products produces zinc roofing,
rainwater and fagade systems for the construction industry. Zinc Battery Materials focuses on producing zinc
powders for primary alkaline batteries.
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Zinc Chemicals

Premiums for Fine 2inc Powders were higher year-on-year but
gradualty decreased through the year. Sales volumes weie lower,
mainly for paini-grade materials, due to lower demand fiom Asia.
Despite stable activity levels in the container and ship-building
seclors the high level and volatility of the zinc price in the past
18 months drove sormne customers 0 reduce the concentrations
of zinc used in anti-corrasive paints. A new alloyed zinc powder
was approved by a major customer during the year. This material
offers superior corrosion protection in certain applications.

Sales volumes of Zinc Oxides grew only slightly year-cn-year
with better sales in Asia largely offset by reduced demand in
Europe. The high zinc price in previous periods led customers to
reduce their use of oxides wherever possible. Revenues benefited
further from the increased level of premiums. Two new formula-
tions of advanced compounds were qualified for use in cosmetic
and paint applications respectively with sales expected to start
in 2008.

Costs of secondary raw materials for the recycling operations
increased, creating more challenging supply conditions.

Building Products

Full year sales volumes were '10% lower than the previous yeds,
due partly to competitive pressure and product substitution
caused by a high zinc price. Sales in the first menths of the year
were also hampered by de-stacking by customers who had buikt
up high levels of inventory during the significant raw mater al
price increases in late 2006. “he development of new housing
and other construction projects grew enly slightly in Europe, with
certain key markets such as Germany shrinking year-on-year.

The business was also hampered by production yield issues and
significantly increased costs linked to the start-up of sevesal
new production lines. Various technical adjustments needed to
be made to these new lines towards the end of the year. Yiells
started to improve as a result of the adjustments and are ex-
pected to return 10 normal levels in the course of 2008.

The business continued to grow its market position in speciality
products, such as pre-weathered materials and coloured materizls
such as QUARTZ-ZINC®, ANTHRA-ZINC® and PIGMENTO®. Average
sales premiums were well above those of the previous year.

In line with the declining zinc price towards year end, a € 10 m -
lion pre-tax non-recurring impairment charge was booked on the
permanently tied up inventories. A significant portion of thewe
inventories were constituted at the time of the carve out of the
zinc alloys business - a period characterized by high zinc prices.

Key figures 2003 2004 2005 2006
(in million €) _
Turnover 803.6 933.8 940.8 982.9
Revenues {excluding metal) 440.6 482.0 448.4 2355
EBITDA 64.2 134.0 65.1 66.5
Recurring EBIT 28.4 79.9 24.7 50.9
of which associates 0.1 34 7.2 6.8 0.2
Total EBIT 19.3 82.3 (25.4) 452 34.8
Recurring EBIT margin % 6.4% 15.9% 39% 18.7% 14.2%
Capital expenditure 45.0 M5 472 252 25.5
Capital employed - average 264.5 360.5 3835 277.4 359.5
Return on Capital Empioyed (ROCE) % 10.7% 22.2% 6.4% 18.3% 11.6%
workforce - end of period 4,093 4,048 3,977 2,027 2,172
of which associates!” 1,218 1,373 1,159 477 509

(1) Rezinal {Zinc Chernicals); legsa (Building Products)
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Zinc Battery Materials

The business unit generated improved revenues compared with
the previous year. This was primarily due to betler sales volumes
of higher value-added battery powders at the Belgian operations.
This moie than offset the reduced revenues from the Chinese op-
eration where The removal of Chinese tax rebates led 1@ a more
challenging export environment and although last export valumes
were partially compensated by domestic sales, these products

tend to sell at a reduced margin on the demestic market.

TURNOVER (BY DESTINATION) RESOURCE EFFICIENCY WORKFORCE, END OF PERIOD
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Sustainability considerations

The corrasion protection offered by zinc-rich paints, coatings and materials significantly prolongs the life of the
coated material (eg steel). Zinc Specialties is a significant recycler of zinc, with 42% of the feed coming from
recycled sources. “Closing the loop” is a central pillar of the business strategy. In terms of sustainability chal-
lenges, Umicore has been at the forefront of developments of nano-sized zinc and titanium particles used in its
powders. The handling of such material in the workplace is strictly monitored and controlled and the company
also contributes to deepening the understanding of nano-science at the level of the European Union.
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GROUP ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

Scope

This section offers an evaluation of Umicore’s environmental performance for 2007 in comparison with 2006. The
analysis focuses on the material environmental aspects, most of which form the basis of the Group environmental
objectives for the period 2006-2010 (see pages 49-52). Only data from consolidated sites where Umicore has opera-
tional control are included in this report.

Umicore’s zinc alloys business was transferred to Nyrstar in September 2007. Because the environmental perform-
ance data is only generated in October, the 2007 environmental performance of the zinc alloys activities in Auby
(France), Le Vigéant (France) and Balen and Overpelt {Belgium) are no longer available to Umicore. These sites, due
to the nature of their activities, contributed significantly to the Group’s overall environmental impact. Since they are
no longer part of Umicore, the relative environmental impact of Umicore’s remaining activities has changed consid-
erably. The activities of the Precious Metal Refining and Zinc Chemicals business units now show a higher relative
contribution. In order to present a set of comparable data, the 2006 environmental performance was recalculated
excluding the zinc smelting activities. Where relevant, the 2006 figures, including the zinc alloys activities, are
reported in the text.

within the scope of Umicore’s current reporting framework, it was necessary for the majority of the sites to report
environmental performance at the end of the third quarter together with a forecast for the fourth quarter while the
four sites with the largest environmental impact (in 2007: Hoboken, Changsha, Hanau, Glen) seported their fuli-year
figures.

Umicore uses a central environmental database for all the sites to report their data, ensuring a consistent interpreta-
tion of the definitions of the key indicators. In 2007, some of the definitions were refined {pitrous oxide) or added
(volatile organic compounds, ozone depleting substances, biodiversity). Due to these changes and improved data
collection at site level, some performance data for previous years were adjusted in order to better reflect current
knowledge.

The key performance data are summarized in the table on page 47.

Resource efficiency and recycling

FIG. 1: INPUT MATERIALS UMICORE 2007 (in %)

Recycling of metals-related materials is at the core of
Umicore’s business. In order to quantify this aspect,
the company reports on its “resource-efficiency and
recycling capabilities”, each business unit is required to
identify the origin of its incoming materials using the
following definitions:

. primary materiaks: 33%
l Tecycled materials: 25%

Dseomdarymem H . . . -
S * Primary materials: materials that are being used for

the first time. These materials are mainly ores and
concentrates.

* Secondary materials: by-products of primary material
streams

* Recycled materials: materials that have ended their
first life cycle and will be re-processed through recy-
cling, thereby entering a 2™, 39 ... life.
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FIG. 2: WATER CONSUMPTION (1,000 m*)
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FIG. 3: ENERGY CONSUMPTION (in 1)}
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* Incoming materials are regarded as primary by defau't
if their origin is unknown.

The collected data are expressed in terms of total ton-
nage of incoming material.

in 2007, only 38% of Umicore’s incoming materials were
of primary origin comparea to 60% in 2006. This differ-
ence is explained by the divestment of the zinc alloy
activities which have a higher relative intake of primary
materials. Twenty-five percent of the incoming materials
were recycled materials while 37% consisted of second-
ary materials (figure 1).

Water consumgption

The total water consumption covers the use of water for
process and sanitary purposas.

In 2007, total water consumption decreased slightly
from 5,148,000 m3 in 2006 to 4,963,000 m3, represent-
ing a decrease of about 3.6%. This reduction is mainly
due to an improved water intake managernent at the
sites in Viviez and Changsha (Zinc Specialties) (figure 2).
Including the zinc alloys activities, total water intake in
2006 amounted to 7,841,000 m3.

Energy consumption

In order to provide a detailed understanding of Umicore’s
energy consumption, infarmation is collected on all rel-
evant energy carriers. This includes data on electricity,
heavy fuel, gas-oil, natural qas, liquefied propane gas
(LPG), coal as well as data on the energy content of
purchased compressed air and steam. The two main of-
fice buildings (Brussels and Bagnolet) also reported their
energy consumption.

'n 2007, tolal energy consumption was at 7,637 tera-
joules, largely at the same level of 2006, despite sig-
nificant sales growth during the period. Including the
zin alloys activities, the Group’s energy consumption in
2006 amounted to 13,999 terajoules.

The transfer of the Zinc Battery Materials business unit
from Advanced Materials to Zinc Specialties explains the
difference in energy consumpticn between 2006 and 2007
for these two business groups. The site in Hanau recorded
a reduced energy consumption of about 36 terajoules due
to the partial closure of the precious metal refinery plant
(figure 3}. The energy consumption of the two main office
buildings in Brussels and Bagnolet was about 11 tera-
joules. The revamping of the office buitding in Brussels will
further decrease energy consumiption in 2008.




Waste

For the second year, each Umicore site was required
to report separately volumes of both hazardous and
non-hazardous waste as defined by their local legisla-
tion. During 2007, many sites reviewed their waste
management which resulted in more accurate figures
compared to 2006. The figures below do not include the
excavated contaminated soil from the various rehabilita-
tion projects.

In 2007, Umicore generated 62,225 tonnes of waste
compared to 62,031 tonnes in 2006.

The total amount of hazardous waste rose slightly
to 26,921 tonnes n 2007 In 2006, when the zinc al-
loys business was included, the total volume of haz-
ardous waste was about ten times higher that, at
263,000 tonnes, caused by the high volumes of an iron
rich residue (“goethite”) which is generated by the zinc
refining activities.

The increase of hazardous waste in 2007 compared to
the adjusted figure for 2006 is mainly due 1o a deficient
sludge drier in Pforzheim (Precious Metal Products and
Catalysts) resulting in higher volumes. Furthermore, sev-
eral sites identified additional hazardous waste streams
that had not yet been identified in 2006. Examples in-
clude zinc ashes in Viviez {Zinc Specialties); coal tar in
Changsha (Zinc Specialties); spent ethanol in Cheonan
(Advanced Materials) and sludge from the waste water
treatment at the precious metal operation in Suzhou
(Precious Metal Products and Catalysts). All these waste
streams were recycled, resulting in a higher recycling
rate for hazardous wastes of 14.2%, up from 4.4% in
2006 (figure 4).

FIG. 4: TOTAL WASTE PROBULED (in tannes)
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Volumes of non-hazardous wasle decreased from
37,089 tonnes in 2006 to 35,304 tonnes in 2007 mainly
due to less construction debris at the site in Hoboken
(Precious Metals Services). Sixty-eight percent of the
non-hazardous waste was recycled compared to 63%
in 2006.
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Enmnissions to water and air

Emissions to water

In 2007, Umicore reduced its metal emissions to waler
from 7,549 kg to 4,858 kg, a deciease of 36% (figure 5).
Including the zinc alloys business, total metal emissions
to water amounted to 9,118 kg in 2006.

Significant improvemnents were made at the sites in Olen
and subic (Advanced Materials) due to improvements in
the performance of their waste water treatment plants.
Al the plant in Hoboken {Belgium), a detailed analysis
of the different sources of waste water from several
production departments allowed a further reduction
of metal emissions to water. The issue of higher metal
emissions to water at the site in Guarulhos (Precious
Metals Products and Catalysts) in 2006 was resolved
(see 2006 Report to Shareholders and Society, page 35)
(see also “requlatory compliance” section).

In 2007 a total of 268,534 kg of “chemical oxygen de-
mand” (COD) was discharged to surface waters (data not
presented in overview table) compared to 224,268 kg
in 2006. The increase is mainly due to higher volumes
being treated at the site in Oten (Advanced Materials).

FIG. 5: METALS EMITTED TO WATER (in ko)

Prec. metals
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Emissions to air

In 2007 total metal emissions to air amounted to
14,532 kg; down from 18,431 kg the year before (fig-
ure 6). Including the zinc alloys activities, the 2006 fig-
ure was at 33,468 kq.

The decreased levels reparted in the Advanced Materials
section are primarily due to lower emissions at the
plant in Fort Saskaichewan (Canada). In addition, the
transfer of the Zinc Battery Materials activities to the
Zinc Specialties business group further explains the de-
crease in metal emissions to air for the business group
Advanced Materials.

On the other hand, the Hoboken site (Precious Metals
Services) observed increased metal emissions to air,
mainly due to the temporary higher emissions of arsenic
from the lead blast furnace (see also “requlatory compli-
ance” seclion) and higher emissions of lead from the
precious metal concentration and smelting operations.
The site also included the gaseous metal fractions in its
air monitoring sampling.

The sites in Angleur and Changsha (Zinc Specialties)
show a decrease of metal emissions to air. The main
reasons were a closer follow-up and a better control of
process parameters.

FIG. 6: METALS EMITYEL: 1O ALR {n kg)




The SO, emissions to air increased from 751 tonnes
in 2006 to 810 tonnes in 2007. Including the zinc al-
loys activities, SO, emissions in 2006 amounted to
2,243 tonnes,

NO, emissions decreased slightly in 2007 (see overview
table).

Emissions of “volatile organic compounds” (VOC) were
added as an indicator to the Group’s environmental data
collection and reporting system. However, due to a lack
of consistency in the reported data, a global performance
figure cannol be reported. The reporting of this indicator
will be further refined during 2008. For comparison, the
site in Hanau (Precious Metals Products and Catalysts)
reported 183,870 kg compared to 146,872 kg in 2006
(figures not presented in overview table) due to a higher
activity of the catalyst testing centre.

Umicore started the collection of data on ozone deplet-
ing substances (0DS). However, as is the case for VOC,
further efforts will be needed to refine the definition and
the data reporting at site level.

FIG. 7: €O, EMISSION (n tonnes)

D 2006 mo?

Greenhouse Gases

Greenhouse data have been calculated using the WRi/
WBCSD GHG Protocol (2™ edition, 2004) and reported
emissions are associated with both scope 1 (direct
greenhouse gas emissions) and scope 2 (emissions from
purchased electricity, steam and compressed air).

On this basis, total €O, emisstons in 2007 fell to
564,795 tonnes from 571,018 tonnes in 2006 (fiqure 7).
Including the zinc alloys activities, €O, emissions in 2006
amounted to 943,437 tonnes. It is estimated that CH,
and N,0 contribute a further 30,000 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent compared to only some 2,500 tonnes
last year. This increase is due to additional and more
accurate sampling at one of our facilities. This pracess
is currently under review for optimization in order to
decrease the N,O emission.

The company will further refine its greenhouse gas re-
porting in the coming vear as part of a project to respond
to the global challenges of climate change.

Beyond its drive for energy efficiency in its operations,
in 2007 the company launched a project to review

the current scope of its greenhouse gas management
and reporting. This project is looking at screening the
most important risks due to climate change effects on
the product life cycle. Further updates on the progress
of this project will be provided in the 2008 Report,
One of Umicore’s primary focuses from a product and
process perspective is to develop “clean” materials and
recycling technologies that will be able to help combat
environmental degradation including climate change.
For exarmnple, the recycling capabilities of the plant in
Hoboken offer the world access to precious metals at a
significant equivalent saving of CQ, compared to mine
produced material.

Umicore is also aware of the broader risks that could

be caused by the effects of climate change and of the
need for all aciors in society - governments, companies
and individuals - to reduce emissions of greenhouse
gases. Umicore is a signatory of the Prince of Wales
Corporate Leaders Group on Climate Change statement
sent to world leaders on the eve of the Bali climate
change summit in late 2007.This statement, signed by
150 global companies, calls for a comprehensive, legally
binding United Nations framework to tackle climate
change. Umicore’s Chief Executive Officer, Thomas Leysen,
is also a member of the EU High Level Group (HLG) on
Competitiveness, Energy and the Environment. Part of
the mandate of this group is to provide advice for action
on climate change, particularly the EU emissions trading
scheme, energy-efficiency and renewables. J
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Regulatory compliance

In total, over 47,000 environmental measurements were
carried out at all of Umicore’s industrial sites compared
to some 43,000 in 2006. These measurements are done
to verify environmental compliance with the applicable
requlatory requirements, permits and/or focal stand-
ards. They typically include waste water sampling and
ambient air monitoring but also environmental noise
measurements.

in 2007 763 of these measurements exceeded the
environmental standard compared o 1,418 in 2006. As
a result, the overall excess rate for 2007 came down
to 1.6% from 3.3% in 2006 (figure 8). This decrease is
caused by the reduction of non-compliant metals lev-
els in the waste water at the Guarulhos site (Precious
Metals Products and Catalysts) (see also “emissions to
water” section).

The Precious Metal Services business group counted a
higher number of compliance measurements because
of the transfer of the precious metal refining activities at
the Hanau site to that business group.

FIG. B: COMPLIANCE EXCES5 RATE (in %)

A

Advanced Preg, Metals  Precaus Metals  fine Specialties
Maienials Progducts & L
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Biodiversity

Umicore’s policy includes perforrning a detailed environ-
mental impact assessment as part of all major invest-
ments, acquisitions and transfers of land.

The company believes that its current activities have
little adverse impact on the biodiversity of the environ-
ment in which its sites are operating. The historical con-
tarmination caused by past activities is dealt with through
specific soil and groundwater remediation projects (see
page 53).

in 2007, all sites were requested to report whether
they operated in, or adjacent to sensitive areas related
to biodiversity. Six sites reporied that this was effec-
tively the case. However, further investigation will be
required to ensure a consistent interpretation. Over the
years, Umicore has been involved in several biodiver-
sity projects as part of the EU Natura 2000 network, in
particular at the protected site in Angleur where natural
species are being reintroduced. (See 2005 Report to
Shareholders and Society, page 35).




Overview of key environmental performance indicators for
the Umicore Group per business segment

Business Segment Advanced Precious Metals Precious Metals Zinc ™M Umicore
Materials Products and Catalysts Services Spedialties Group
2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007

Environment

Waler consumption 1,000 m* 2,173 2,167 519 499 1,608 1,627 847 669 5,148 4,963
Energy consumption  terajoules 2,678 2,581 833 764 2,616 2,580 1,551 1,712 7,677 7,637
Total waste

produced tonnes 21,587 18,855 5,509 5,635 22,621 21,850 12,314 15,884 62,031 62,225
hazardous waste onnes 11,238 9,887 1,605 2,167 11,516 12,650 534 2,216 24,942 26,91
recycling L 0.28 5.08 42.06 66.84 0.38 0. 59.39 83.22 4.1 14.24
non hazardous waste tonnes 10,349 8,967 3,904 3,468 11,105 9,200 11,730 13,668 37,089 35,304
recycling % 27.60 51.85 36.04 49.22 96.62 93.92 743 66.83 63.93 68.35
Metals emitted to water kg 3,259 1,516 566 203 2,277 1,678 1,447 1,461 7,549 4,858
Metals emitted to aif kg 2,915 878 405 72 1,716 3,175 13,395 10,406 18,431 14,532
50, emission tonnes 26 38 7 2 553 585 164 185 751 810
NO, emission tonnes 125 124 97 87 185 168 115 108 522 487
€0, emission lonnes 183,335 183,059 771,070 72,064 180,706 178,488 124,857 131,184 571,013 564,795
Compliance excess rate Y 0.44 0.55 433 2.34 0.99 0.24 113 0.97 3.28 1.60

(1} Zinc Specialties: Zinc Alloys excluded.
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GROUP:ENVIRONI\/\ENTAL OBJECTIVES 2006-2010

Scope

Umicore has established five Group environmental objectives for the period 2006-2010. They constitute, together with the Group social
objectives (pages 66 to 71) Umicore’s Sustainable Development approach.

while these objeclives build upon the performance achieved during the previous years, they further promate continual improvement
in the company’s environmental performance. They complement the actions undertaken by many sites as part of their environmental
management,

the objectives offer flexibility for all sites to contribute at their own pace o the overall targets sei for 2010.

Obiectives 1, 2 and 3 apply to all 59 industrial sites whereas objective 4 on energy efficiency also includes the two main office buitdings
(Brussels and Bagnolet), Objective S on product safety is reported at business unit level.

A first status report was given in the 2006 Repaort to Shareholders and Society (pages 40-43). while some initial progress was noted, it
was clear that additional efforts were needed to further advance the implementation of the objectives at all sites in order to reach the
self-impased deadline of 2010. To that end, six regional workshaps with the plant managers and the site environmental managers were
organized to share best practices and to discuss how the Group abjectives could be translated into concrete actions at site level.

This section indicates the progress achieved in 2007 for the five environmental objectives.

The information obtained on the status of the cbjectives was collected using the Graup’s environmental data management system. It
also included specific questions in order to clarily the actions refated to the objectives. The external verifier {Environmental Resources
Management Certification and Verification Services Limited - ERM CVS) evaluated the reported progress against the abjectives as part
of its environmental data verification.

In Septernber 2007, Umicore's zinc alloys business with activities in Belgium (Balen, and Overpelt) and France (Auby and Le Vigéant}
was transferred to Nyrstar. Therefore, the 2006 data were recalculated to take these organizational changes into account,

Furthermare, three additional sites that were acquired during 2006 were added to the scope of 1he Group environmental objectives.

In the graphs, the status is reported as a percentage of the total number of sites indicating respectively whether the objectives have
been met, actions are ongoing or have yet to start:

- objective met: all the requirements related to the objective are met
- aclions ongoing: aclions have been launched related to one of the targets

- actions yet to start: no actions have been undertaken on any of the elements related lo the objective

FIG. 1: IMPROVEMENT PLANS EMISSIONS T0 AIR AND WATER Obje(tive 1

{In <3 of telal number of sites)

[ Allindustrial sites are to implement improvernent plans based on
BAT (best available techniques balancing the costs to the opera-
tor against the benefits to the environment} for all types of point
sources to air and water from process operations.

- far all the sites with metal emissicns to air and water above 1
tonne / year, 3 numerical target is required.

» Where relevant, industrial sites must demonstrate continual
improvement in the control of diffuse sources.

The aim of this objective is to establish a systematic appreach to
emission management at all sites, taking inte account social and
lubieclwemel O acvans ongaing @ scrons yel 1o start economic Challenges.

Umicore witnessed a significant improvement of emissions to air
and water over the past year. At the end of 2007, 42% of the sites
had imptemented a plan that fulfilled all the requirements of the
abjective to further control and manage their relevant emissions
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both to air and waler, cornpared 1o 13% in 2006. Furthermore,
46% of he sites are in the process of developing and implement-
ing such a plan {figure 6).

improvement plans for air emissions have been implemented at
56% of the sites while 53% of the siles have an improvement
plan in place for water emissions (figure 1).

It is important to note that all sites monitor their relevant emis-
sions an a reqular basis in order to ensure compliance with their
permits and local regulations. The improvement plans include
process optimization, a reqular evaluation of best available tech-
nologies, reqular sampling programmes and preventive main-
tenance programmes (e.g. of scrubber installations, filters and
waste water treatment plants).

In 2007, additional information was collected with regard 1o
diffuse source emissions, In total, 23 siles reported that diffuse
sources are relevant: 14 of these sites already had a control pro-
gramme in place. These programmes include elements such as
regular cleaning and sprinkling of roads, improved ventilaiion of
buildings and the coverage of bulk materials.

Five sites emitted more than 1 tonne of metal to air and three
sites discharged maore than 1 tenne of metal to water. In line with
the Group objeciive, these sites have all set a numerical reduc
tion target for the periad 2006-2010. The aggregated 2010 target
for metal to air emissions amounts to a reduction of 5 tonnes
whereas the target for metal to water emissicns equals 3 tonnes,
These targets represent a reduction of 27% of metal emissions to
air and 40% of metal emissions to water compared to the 2006
baseline measurement,

e ™\
Higher 50, emissions at the site in
Heusden-Zolder (Belgium) triggered the
implementation of an action plan to better
manage and control the process parameters.
Key aspects, such as the regular refreshing

of process water and pH were optimized in
addition to increasing the scrubber capacity.
This, along with a more detailed folfow-up
and maintenance programme of the entire
installation has decreased 50, emissians from
about 12 tonnes during the first quarter to less
than 0.5 tonnes in the fourth quarter.

- /

In line with the requirements of the

3" environmental Group objective, reinforced
by the intention o relocate to Americana, the
industrial unit of Guarulhos (Brazil) initiated a
soil and groundwater assessment programme,
The company, with the support of external
consultants, is currently involved in exhaustive
exploratory investigations to evaluate
associated risks and actions needed to contain
and remediate any potential contamination.

vy
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Objective 2

All industrial sites will implement an independently certified en-
vironmental management system,

All sites have to comply with the agplicable laws and regutations
and company standards and monitcr their compliance regularly.

Urnicore sirongly befieves that the presence of certified manage-
ment systems is a driver for continual improvement of the site’s
environmental performance.

Forty-four percent of the sites have already implemented bath a
certified environmental management system and a compliance
programme (figure 6).

Sixty-six percent of the sites have alieady obtained the 150 14001
certification, a similar figure compared io 2006 (figure 2). During
2007, three sites obtained their IS0 14001 certification and one
reported to have been successfully -e-certified. Nineteen percent
of the sites have started a project to implement an environmental
management system. One smaller site did not maintain its certifi-
catton due to a significant reduction in industrial activities.

Fifty-nine percent of the sites had an internal programme in pface
to systematically check and implement new regulatory require-
ments (figure 2). These programmes include an internal audit
pracedure and a procedure to track and assess the relevance of
new environmental requlations in their region.

4 ™
In line with its commitment to integrate
environmental management into the overall
business policy, Umicore Materials Taiwan
evaluated all of its activities - from purchasing
and processing to sales and recycling - on
their potential environmental impact. The site
team examined 3l available environmental
performance data, existing procedures and
environmental regulatory requirements. This
assessment formed the basis for the definition
of measurable site targets. Following the
implementation of final corrections identified
during the pre-audit phase, the site obtained
its certification by AFAQ/BestCERT on 9 July
2007,

\. v,

F1G. 2: ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE PROGRAMMES
(0 & ol 1otal numbe f of $ites)
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Objective 3

All industrial sites are 1o assess the nature, extent and related risk
of the impact that their current and past activities are causing
or have caused to soil and groundwater. For those sites where
significant risks have been identified remedial action should be
initiated by the end of 2010.

Objective 4

The "Umicore Way” clearty states that the company “actively par-
ticipates in the management and remediation of risks that are the
result of historical operations”, This commitment already resulted
in risk and impact assessment projects as well as remedial ac-
tions at major sites in several regions of the world {see page 53).
Today, it is Umicore's policy to include soil and groundwater inves-
tigations in any acquisition project. This objective wilt allow a full
understanding of the historic risks of existing sites.

At the end of 2007, 54% of the sites had already implemented an
assessment program in line with the requirements of the objec
tive compared (o 38% last year. Together with external experts,
Umicore is evaluating the soil and groundwater investigations
to assess whether additional remediation projects need to be
implemented.

In 2007, the automotive calalysl' production
facility in Burlington {Canada) engaged in

an energy conservation programme. Energy
gains were booked in the production area

by modifying equipment and improving
production line pregramming {e.g. by
reducing line fans and belt speeds during

idle processes). An on-line follow-up of the
energy consumption through the energy
supplier provided a better inderstanding of
the daily energy usage, with improved energy
management as a result. The lighting in the
plant and the offices have become mare
energy efficient. All staff members have been
made aware of the programme and monthly
communications are done on actual energy
consumption. The results on energy efficiency
will become visible during the next years.

FIG. 3: IMPACT ASSESSMENT PLANS SOIL & GROUNDWATER
(i =2 of total number of wtas)

Al sites (including office buildings) must have an approved and
implemented energy efficiency plan.

For sites with an energy consumption of more than 75,000 giga-
joules per year, a numerical target based upon BAT (“best avail-
able techniques balancing the costs to the operator against the
benefits to the environment”) is required.

The scope of this objective includes all industrial sites as well
as the two main office buildings. Thirty-six percent of the sites
have an energy efficiency plan in place compared to 34% in 2006.
Elements of these plans include a detailed analysis of energy con-
sumpiion, the identification of a relevant output measure, process
optimization, more energy efficient lighting and staff awareness
programmes. Forty-eight percent of the sites are now implement-
ing this pfan, up from 30% in 2006 (figure 4).

The main sites in Belgium and the Netherlands have already
submitted their energy plans in accordance with the condi-
tions of a covenant agreed wilh the regional governments (see
“Environment, Health and Safely report 2003”, page 23). Umicore,
together with Cumerio, is constructing a new “Combined Heat
and Power” {CHP) plant at the companies’ adjacent sites in Olen,
(Belgium). This investment allows a further gain in energy el-
ficiency of some 10%. The new investment will also help to
achieve further reductions in CO, emissions.

The "Operations Support” service located in Hanau has developed
a roadmap to provide assistance to the sites worldwide in imple-
menting this objective.

Seventeen sites had an energy consumplion exceeding
75,000 gigajoules (ref. 2006) These sites have set a numerical
reduction target in terms of energy efficiency as required by the
objective. These targets use different “measures of output” (e.g.
energy use per piece of energy use per tonne produced) relevant
10 the type of activity and will be followed up at site level.

FIG. 4: ENERGY EFFICIENCY PLANS
{1 & of total numnber of sites)
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Objective 5

All business units are to have a basic EHS data set available for
all their products.

Umicore considers proper hazard communication to workers and
customers to be a priorily. To that end, an integrated product
data system has been implemented to allow for the publication
of up-to-date and compliant material safety data sheets (MSDS)
for all Umicore products.

This objective is 1o further improve hazard communication by
enhancing our knowledge about the physical, chemical and
toxicological properties of the products beyond the information
that is already taken into account in the current MSDS sheets. In
2007, additional guidance was developed to provide a consisteni
interpretation of the scope of this objective.

Over 2,400 producis have been identified within the scope of this
objective. For 3% of these products, a complete data set is avail-
able compared to 1% in 2006. An active search for additional data
was initiated for 68% of the products, compared to 18% in 2006.

in the context of the European directive on REACH (“Registration,
Evaluation and Authorization of Chemicals”), the objective was
aligned in order to maximize the data search. The timing is being
adjusted accordingly.

FIG. 5: ADDITIONAL PRODUCT DATA SETS
(in &y of 1013l number cf sites)

REACH

REACH came into force in June 2007 and is generally considered
to be the mast comprehensive risk assessment policy for chemi-
cals in order 1 increase the protection of hurman health and the
environment.

In order to cornply with this new regulation, Umicore has put in
place a REACH implermentation programme: its main focus is on
creating a substance inventory and defining market opportunities,
threats and cost factors. This is implemented via a network of
product managers in each business unit, coordinated by a Group
REACH Implementation Manager.

A clear road map has been established that includes critical mile-
stones, timelines, follow up and monitoring. As part of its aim to
combine forces with other companies in the most efficient man-
ner, Umicore is actively involved in several consortia that are set
up as joint ventures to generale the data necessary to comply with
REACH. In 2007 Umicore signed 8 such consortia agreements (on
substances related 1o precious melals, cadmium, zinc, nickel (3},
cobalt and tead} while others are still being considered.

Conclusion

Compared to 2006 (see 2006 Report to Shareholders and Society,
page 43), major progress has been established in implementing
the Group objectives in order to me=f the 2010 targets. Indeed,
about 80% of the sites have either implemented or are in the
process of implementing a plan in line with the requirements
(figure 6). Umicore will maintain this momentum through a con-
tinued follow-up of all the sites focus2d on meeting their numneri-
cal targets, which should lay the basis for further progress during
2008.

FIG. &: GROUP ENYIRONMENTAL OBJECTIVES 2006-2010
OVERVIEW STATUS 2007
obj 1-4: 35 2 % of lotal n” of sites;
cbj 5: as a % of total n® cf prodixts
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PROGRESS ON ADDRESSING HISTORICAL LEGACY

Umnicore advanced in its quest to address its legacy of historical
pollution. The following section provides an overview of the dif-
ferent remedial actions taken during 2007.

Flemish Region of Belgium

On 23 April 2004, Umicore signed a covenant with the regional
waste authorities (OVAM) and the Regional Minister of the
Environment in the Flemish Regicn of Belgium by which Umnicore
committed ta spend € 62 million in the next 15 years to remedi-
ate the historical pollution at four sites and some surrounding
residential areas.

In Hoboken the remediation of the nearby residential area of
Moretusburg was completed. The contaminated top layer of the
soil in same 700 gardens was excavated and will be safely stared
as part of an on-site barrier to help reduce noise hindrance. The
gardens were relaid and the interior of all houses were cleared
of dust. Preparatory work was started in Hertogvelden, another
nearby residential area where the remediation is scheduled to
commence in 2008.

in Qlen, the on-site groundwater remediation was started. Major
progress was achieved in the excavation of the sediments in the
Bankloop brook.

In 1985-1986, the site in Qlen built a state-of-the-art facility to
ensure the long term storage of a number of radioactive waste
materials. The storage facility was authorised as a temporary
one until a long-term solution could be validated by the Belgian
Government.

ONDRAF/NIRAS (“the Belgian Agency for Radicactive Waste and
Enriched Fissile Materials”) is required to draft a report to the
Federat Government every five years on the long-term manage-
ment of “the nuclear legacy”. The 2008 report will, for the first
lime, detail the materiais that are storad at Olen. During the draft-
ing phase, various oplicns were discussed between ONDRAF/
NIRAS and Umicore. In fine with these discussions, the Group
decided to provision a total of € 17 million for the future monitor-
ing and maintenance of the storage area. Umicore indicated its
willingness to externalise these pravisions.

In the context of the 2004 covenant with OvAM and the Flemish
Regian, a jeint fund of € 30 million (half of which was contributed
by Umicore, the other half by the regional authorities) was cre-
ated to address histarical contamination in a 9 km radius around
the four operational plants of Balen, Qverpel, Hoboken and
Olen. Highlights include the removal of zinc ashes from private
driveways in Lommel-Werkplaatsen; a biological monitoring
programme run by the Flemish authorities to verify the residual
exposure of the local population to cadmium and arsenic, the
iesults of which are expected in 2008. Furthermaore, the removal
of zin¢ ashes was extended to the eniire area covered by the
covenant.

Umicore’s former zinc smelting
activities

In September 2007, the Belgian sites of Balen and Overpelt, and
Auby (France) wese transferred to Nyrstar, including all remaining

obligations to remediate the historical poliution at and around the
sites. Priof to transier, the excavation of contaminated soil was
completed in Overpelt while some 80% of the remediation efforts
at the Balen site have now been completed. Furthermore, the
preliminary proposals for groundwater remediation were drafted
and filed with the competent authorities. The adjacent residential
areas were also cleaned up. In Auby, major sections of the operat-
ing plant, a public park and a schoolyard were remediated.

Walloon Region of Belgium

Soil remediation at Angleur was completed and it is awaiting final
clearance from the Regional Government. The site is currently
monitering the quality of the groundwater. Umicore is in talks
with a regional institution on the necessary remedial actions and
the future development of the site in Grace-Hollogne (3 former
thermal zinc treatment plant which was closed in 1982}

France

In Viviez, Urnicore completed the voluntary remediation of
Laubarede which was used in the past to store concentrates and
waste. [t will host the regional emergency centre. Approximaiely
10,000 m? of contaminated soil were excavated and safely stored.
The remediation of Laubaréde is onty a small portion of the over-
all programme for Viviez that is to be executed between 2009
and 2012.

The site in Calais was shut down in 2006: the demolition of the
industria! installations and the removal of contaminated soil were
well advanced in 2007. The completion is scheduled for the first
half of 2008. The entire site (17 ha) will also be covered with
clean soil which would make the land available for new industrial
development.

Germany

Umicore and its legal predecessors have a long history of min-
ing in Germany, which ended with the closure of the Liderich
zinc mine near Cologne in 1978. A number of underground min-
ing concessions are still in Umicore’s possession. The collapse of
shafts and tunnels of mining areas which are no longer in use
can sometimes lead to subsidence at the surface. In 2007, this
was the case at three sites which were successfully repaired by
Umicore. Orainage water from surface properties linked to these
{ormer mining activities may contain higher concentrations of
metals that sometimes require treatment.

Other regions

Upon closure of the site in Roodepoort South Africa, in 2006,
Umicore initiated an extensive soil and groundwater remediation
programme: 20,000 tonnes of contaminated soil were excavated
and disposed of. The assessment of potential groundwater con-
tamination is still underway.

At Umicore's zing plant in Shanghai (China), contaminated soil was
excavated and disposed of at an authorised landfill. Umicore con-
tinues to treat groundwater al a former mining site in {olorado
{USA).
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SILVER MEDAL FOR UMICORE

SOLAR TEAM

For a few days in late October 2007,
many a Umicore eye was scanning the
internet, eagesly trying to find out mose
infermation about the exploits of a group
af 14 young Belgian students burning
rubber in the immense heat of the
Austratian heartland.

But heat was not all the burning sun
had to offer: the sunlight also provided
the energy needed to pawer a caravan
of more than twenty solar cars in their
quest to be the first solar cell powered
car 1o roll into Victoria Square, Adelaide,
successfully completing a 3,000 ke race
connecting the north {Darwin) and the
south (Adelaide) of Australia.

Umicar Infinity leads the way

ESCLART

f7

The biennial Fanasonic World Salar
Challenge, which celebrated its

20" anniverszry in 2007, is the unofficial
world championship for sclar cars.

Solar fever ran especially high in Belgium
and Australia at the outset of the race
when the Umicore Solar Team quickly
secured the pole position and completed
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Jalar Chalienge seemed

Anreal when we staried out
n this adveniure. To me

il seems as unreal now as
it seemed thar. we aimed
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Umicore Solar Team celebrating its success in Adefaide

the first day of the world Selar Challenge
spearheading the pack.

The Umicore Solar Team consists

of students and recently graduated
engineers from Leuven-based Group T
technical university. Umicore has been an
enthusiastic key sponsor of the tearn for
a number of years, supplying the highly
efiicient germanium substrates as the
base material for the solar cells. Having
access to solar cells is one thing, building
a car from scratch is quite another. More
than a year of designing, wind tunnel
testing and actual produciion preceded
the race, with each team member
offering his or her own expertise.

Hard work to be sure: a sophisticated
engine fits nicely into one of the wheels
and is even able to capture ihe energy
frem braking. The body was made out
of light-weight composite materials to
[imit energy losses. The Umicar “Infinity”
is able to maintain a cruising speed

of 100 km/hour using a 97% efficient
engine with a power source similar to
that of a vacuum cleaner,

The Stuart Highway, alsa known as

the “Track”, was the scene of the solar
odyssey: it is named after explarer john
McDougall Stuart who in 1862 led an
expedition to become the first European
to ¢ross the continent from south to
north, mapping the country for new
human settiement.

The Australian heartland is as harsh now
as it was for Stuari 150 years ago. Make
no rnistake about it: this race is hard

and dangerous: it 15 no walk in the park.
Only half of the twenty teams actually
made it to Adelaide. There is no time

for sight-seeing either as the driver has
{0 keep a close eye on the road ahead.
Imagine what a kangaroo or the tailwind
of one of those giant trucks roaming the
“Track” could do to a car that weighs less
than 200 kq.

Misfortune in the form of a broken
steering column, however, finally {orced

the Umirare Solar Team to give up the
top spot. The “Infinity” entered Adelaide
in second place but that did not spoil the
joy and Umicore’s feeling of immense
pride.

The members of the Salar Team may
not yet be working for Umicore but
they certainly embody our vision of
eco-efficiency, sustainable development
and renewable energy technolegy. They
are the true ambassadors of how solar
enerqy can help turn our society in a
more sustainable one.
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ZERO EMISSIONS ON ANTARCTICA

In 2004 Belgium commissioned the
design and construction of a new Belgian
Antarctic Research station - the Princess
Elisabeth Station. This is Belgium's first
such undertaking for 40 years and has
the added distinciion of becoming the
world's first “zero emission” Antarctic
station.

The station is currently being set up
at Utsteinen, in @ mountain range in

Dronning Maud Land, some 200 km
south of the coast, under the aegis of
the International Polar Foundation and
its president, the famous Belgian polar
explorer Alain Hubert.

The station will be officially inaugurated
in February 2009. The station's metal
struclure was mounted on the Utsteinen
ridge at the beginning of 2008 and
work on building the superstructure is
underway.

The running costs of the station will
be borne by the Belgian government,
but the millions of euras needed for
the construction of the station had to
be raised by the private sector, The
project will help further the research
about climate change and run almost
entirely on renewable energy and other
sustainable technologies, such as an
intelligent energy system to manage
energy requiraments and an efficient
waste treatman: process.




Umicare flag waving next to the polar station in early 2008

The site will typically house up to 20 crew
members and scientists to cover a part

of the Antarctic that is poorly understood
in terms of research and metearological
observations.

The base will help raise awareness
among the wider public of the
impostance of polar research and its
invaluable contribution to a better
understanding of climate change, if only
because the polar regions play a key role
in the global climate system and act as
an “early warning system” showing the
pace and magnitude of climate change.
In fact they are our blue planet’s hard
disk, recording its climate memory.

All of the above sounds very famitiar
to Umicore, which has been working
on technology to make its products
increasingly eco-efficient, revamp its
praduction processes to bring them in
line with the top emission standards
and develop technology and material
solutions for sustainable power
generation and storage.

Umnicore led the corporate fundraising
effort and agreed to invest itself 1 million
euro in the project. The wonders of
Antarctica wese also the theme of the
Group’s Family Festival in Brussels in
September, bringing together maore than
2,000 Umicore employees and members
of their families from Belgium, France

4

= . Y

Umicore Family Festival in Brussels, September 2007

and Germany who had the opportunity
10 pay a visit {0 the station during its
pre-construction phase.

For all updates on the project:
htip://www.antarcticstation.org/
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We Delieve proper education
to offer the best route to
a beiter life for everyone.
Disadvantaged youngsters
in my country unfortunately
don't always have that
opportunity: If we want
to achieve a sustainable
society, we need to help
these kids cut. Our Umicare
social programme assists
these kids in bridging the
educaticnal gap with their
more fortunate peers. After
that, it's all up to them but
I'm certain the efforts they've
had to put in are going io
make a real difference!” — *
Xola Jiketa
HR Manager,

outh Aftica

Social Objectives Health & Safety
Resources




Uricore siot only talks
about sustainability. its
actions are consislent valh
its slatements and that's
why I'h proud to be pal o
1L Unmcore 1s inwvesting 1n
ils Brazthan operations (o
make them more sustaingl
in the long run. In thal
conlext, moving the exsti
operations in Guarulhes

o AmeTicana, some

150 km aveay, makes seiy
cconomigally and in terms
safety and the envicenmer
But the company 15 not
tosing track of the huge
socol impact on the hves
ol those involved. The way
the move was snnounced,
the manner in which ol
crmployecs veere invited
10 move, a4 compichersie
soad! package for those
who chouse not 1o a5 well
as suppoil fei those who
wilk make the move, ¢in
tianslated i only one wai
RESPICT.

Celso Mantovani,

HR Manager South Amer



In the Social Report, some of the major Human Resources challenges and projects are highlighted on this page.
Subsequent pages review the progress made on the Social Objectives. Data is shown for 84 Umicore sites. Additional
key performance indicators are highlighted to illustrate some of the underlying actions. The social repori concludes
with an overview of the health and safety performance of the company.

Talent Management

In 2007, Umicore again carried out its two-yearly Group-wide tal-
ent management review involving afl 1,400 managers around the
world. Managers provided updated career profiles and also gave
input on their aspirations and mobility. 44 Career Review pan-
els were set up covering each of the business units. They were
facilitated by the regionat human resources teams. The results
were consolidated in Career Review panels at Group level where
succession planning scenarios for key positions were discussed.
Subsequent feedback was provided to each manager and devel-
opment plans were drawn up.

What is specific about the talent management process within
Umicore is that it starts with the inpul of the people themselves
and results in an open feedback in line with the company’s value
of openness. The process will be repeated in 2009.

The outcome of the taleni management review allows the com-
pany to be proactive in guiding internal maobility and developing
the next generation of leaders of the company. Mobility is also
a key enabler for further integrating the ditferent entities of the
company.

Integration of new acquisitions

Several new acquisitions were integraled throughout the year,
In early 2007, two new North American sites were added to the
business unit Technical Materials. In the last quarter the integra-
tion process started on {wo other acquisitions. Cobalt & Specialty
Materials began integrating a site in Belgium and Automotive
Catalysts started work on the integration of several sites in the
USA, France, South Africa and Luxemburg. Qedicated teams have
been put in ptace to manage these integrations. Cemmunication
and teambuilding events have been organised to welcome the
new colleagues to Umicore. Organisational changes were pre-
pared to lack for synergies, including moving some key people
between the existing and newly acquired businesses to share
experiences.

People Survey

Umicore conducted another worldwide people survey in 2007 fol-
lowing earlier editicns in 1998, 2001 and 2004/2005. The results
are outlined on pages 72-73. In all, 91 sites in 34 countries took
part in the survey, equating to an overall participation rate of
£3%. The overall resulis show consist progress in all categories.

Announcement of new investments in Brazil

In August 2007, the campany announced a € 40 millien invest-
ment in the construction of new plant in Americana. This facility
will house activities that are currently located al the company’s
site in Guarulhos and will offer improved prospects for further
growth in the coming years. It is anticipated that the move will
be completed by July 2009.

Since the new plant is located some 150 km to the north of the
existing operations, this will heavily impact the life of the em-
ployees currently warking in Guarulhgs.

Alt 440 employees have been offered the opportunily to work
al the new sile, including a relocation package to cover the
expenses and the effort. For those who choose not to move to
Americana, Umicore will provide active suppart to find. a new
employer in 2009. A financial incentive will also be offered to
those who stay with ihe company until such time as their job
moves to Americana.

All employees were interviewed by external consultants to gather
{eedback on their intention to move. Employees from Guarulhos
were invited to come over 1o Americana for the weekend where
they were welcemed by their colleagues, who spontaneously of-
fered their help. This visit offered the employees fram Guarulhos
the possibility to explore the neighborhood and the living condi-
tions in the area of Americana, Other actions will be implemented
prior to the move,
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INTERNATIONAL PRESENCE & WORKFORCE
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Umiccre presence
Production  Other sites  Employees
sites
Europe
Austria i 124
Belgivm 8(1) 1 2,944(60)
(zech Republic 1 2
Denmark 1 15
France 6 2 852
Germany (1) 21 2,032(57)
Hungary 1 8
Ireland 1(1) 658(658)
ltaly 1 3(1) 86(11}
Liechtenstein 1 102
Luxembourg 1 8
Netherlands 2 116
Nofway 1 58
Podand 1 16
Portugal 1 50
Russia 1 6
Slovakia 1 32
Spain 1 14
Sweden 2(1) 1 268(234)
Switzerland 1 2(1) 50(17)
Ukraine t) 597(597)
United Kingdom () 5(2) 99(58)
Asia/Austialia
Australia 1 2 66
China 1003) 6(2) 2,492(1,410)
India 1 15
Japan 201} 2(1) 118(67)
Malaysia 1 62
Philippines 1 108
Singapore 1 23
South Korea 2(1) 1 248(147)
Tawan 1 2(1) 26{5)
Thailand 2 72
Americas
Argenting 1 22
Brazil 3 1) 659{6)
Canada 3 201
ol I el A2 Pefu ) 449{449)
e United States 10 2 634
Africa
South Alrica 3(1) 1 1,512(1,242)
, TOTAL 81(14} 40(10) 14,844(5,018)
,‘: Figures in brackets denote “of which associate companies”.
i = Where a site has both production facilities and offices
| H {eg Hanay, Germany) it is classified as a production site only.
| V) — . S
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Sustainable development Has
become one of the key Lopjcs
ol Urtacore and my site 15
aciively involved in thet.
Advocaiing sustainability
has now become iy No.1
responsibihity. I's important
to realize, however, that
sustainable develapment 1
nol just ahout prolectng th
Cnvitonment. A company r
also a living body, a netwol
ol poople as it were, that
needs to be sustamed.
That's why our site actively
cncouraged its employoes
to take part in the Graup's
opimon survey lo make
Ife betier for everyone, as
well as devoting a ot of
ellon o wllecong key socidl
Indicators.

]

~

Didie Othman,
Personnel & Administratidn
Officer, Pasir Gudang
Johaore, Malaysia




In the “2005 Report to Shareholders and Society” Umicore introduced five Group social objectives for the period
2006 - 2010. They are part of the overall Group Sustainable Development objectives. The objectives offer flexibility

for all the sites to contribute at their own pace to the overall 2010 target.

The sacial objectives apply to 84 siies. This number is significantly
higher compared to the 2006 reporting (63 sites), since most non
industrial sites have now been included. The external report veri-
fier (ERM CVS) reviewed the actions related to the objectives as
part of its verification activities.

In the summary graph (see page 5), the status is reported as

a percentage of the total number of sites, using the following

definitions:

- "objective met™ the improvement plan is fully deployed at the
site

- “actions angoing”: actions are being analyzed and prioritized
and the improvement plan is being developed but not yet fully
deployed .

- “actions yet to start”™ no specific actions have yet been taken

In this section, more details are provided on the status of each
social objective and additional key performance indicators are
reported upon using the Group social data management system.
In 2006, these objectives were deployed for the first time. Some
siles found it difficult to grasp their full exient. This is why inten-
sive training and communication efforts have been made in order
to increase the accuracy of the reparted progress. Particularly the
progress made on social objectives 1 and 2 is linked to these
efforts.

In order to facilitate a comparison with 2007, the 2006 numbers
have been adjusted following the carve-out of the zinc alloys
business and the progress reported during 2006 has been “re-
based” as a result of a clarified understanding of the social objec:
tives. Recent acquisitions which were closed in the final quarter
of 2007 have not yet been added to the reporting an the social
cbjectives and key performance indicators, with the exception of
the headcount numbers and the related gender statistics.
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Objective 1

All industrial sites must develop and implement a local plan to
address accountability to the local community. This plan must
identify relevant stakeholders and deterrnine the process through
which to address stakehoider concerns, as well as set out the
voluntary initiatives towards the local community in which the
site wishes to engage.

Almost 60% of the sites have deployed a plan to address account-.
ability to the local community, while 30% are in the process of
developing such a plan, marking a sirong increase compared 1o
last year.

it is expected that these efforts will continue to grow in the next
twa years, underpinned. by a new group policy on donations and
charitable contributions. Umicore has committed itself, as from
2008, 1o allocate each year about 0.5% of its consolidated EBIT
(earnings before interest and tax) to donations and charitable
contributions. About two thirds of this amount will be spent by
the site management on local initiatives in the communities sur-
rounding Umicare’s operations. The remaining third will be used
at corporate level to be spent mainly on projects and initiatives to
promote sustainable development topics. In 2007 Umicare sup-
ported the Umicore Solar Team which took part in the Panasonic
World Solas Challenge (see pages 56-57) and the Antarctic zero-
emission polar siation {(see pages 58-59).

Many sites are engaged in a dialogue with their local stakehold-
ers. Some sites have a long standing tradition in this respect:
they distribute local magazines and brochures to the surrounding
community, mainly focusing on environmental performance. For
other sites - aften small or medium sized operations or offices

FIG. 1: ACCOUNTABILITY TO LOCAL COMMUNITY
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- this approach is new and started with screening all potential
relevant stakeholders, Some of them organise their stakeholder
dialogue via industry associations grouping different companies
operating in the same area.

Many sites have regular contacts with local authorities and public
services such as the fire brigade or the police. Some of these
contacts were set up at Umicore’s own initiative, while others are
part of a formal lecal consultation process. In Subic, Philippines,
for example a meeting is held every quarter to monitor the im-
paci of the company’s operations on the environment.

On 3 May 2007 a Flemish regional <takeholder dialogue was or-
ganised al Umicore’s Olen site to which stakeholders and local
government officials from all Flemish sites were invited. Umicore
senior management gave an overview of the company’s 2006
economic, environmental and social performance, followed by
discussion with the audience.

Several sites invited neighbours to visit their operations. In 2007,
this was the case at the site in Hobaken (Belgium) and Angleur
{Belgium) and at corporate headquarters in Brussels (Belgism).
Umicore’s main office in Brussels has been completety renovated,
taking into account some of the neighbours” expectations and
making the building much more enesgy-efficient.

Many sites provide support to the lozal community. Examples in-
clude renovating 3 local town hail (Heboken, Belgium), donations
to temples (Bangkok, Thailand), sponsaring a soccer tournament
{Amsterdam, Netherlands) and constructing an irrigation system
for local farmers (Changsha, China). In Brazit, schools in the vicin-
ity of the three Umicore sites were involved in a project 1o collect
old batteries and handsets to help foster a culture of recycling.




Objective 2

All sites must develop and implement a local plan to be a pre-
ferred employer. Taking into account the local culture and labour
practices, this plan sheuld strive to: retain our employees, create
3 positive image towards future valuable employees, encourage
our employees to develop their careers

Umicore also made significant progress in implementing its sec-
ond social objective in 2007. Mare than 50% of the sites have
implemented a lacal plan to be a preferred employer, while mose
than 40% are developing such a plan. In 2006, these percent-
ages were lower because many sites assumed that this objective
was too ambitious for their small or medium size operations. In
mast of the countries where it is active, Umicore is not aiming {o
become a nationally recognized employer. The s¢ale of some of
its operations and the fact thal Umicore is a business-to-business
company with rather low visibility to the general public, means
that such an ambition would be unrealistic. Each site is required
to draft a plan to identify relevant schools and institutions with
which they aim to build contacts and offer partnerships such as
site visits and trainee or research prograrmmes. Nurturing such
contacts should allow Umicore's operations to attract talent for
the future,

Alangside the external dimension of being a preferred employer is
the internal view of people already working inside the company.
Two additional Key Performance Indicators (KPIS) show positive
results in that regard. Only 3.4% of the employees decided 1o leave
the company on a voluntary basis in 2007. This worldwide average
figure contains regional variations, with Asia and North America
showing higher numbers. In most cases this number is lower than
the market average. Also the percentage of days lost through sick-
ness {absenteeism rate at 2.79%) is lower than the market.

Another aspect of the objective of being a preferred employer
i5 10 gauge and act upon the gpinion of people already work-
ing for the company. Qur most imporiant feedback comes from
the people survey that Umicore organises every three years, As
explained in more detail on pages 72 and 73, the 2007 results
again show significant progress. In all countries were Umicore
has a significant presence, the company scores above the general
industry average.

FIG. 2: PREFERRED EMPLOYER

D actions ongoing [:] achions yet to stant
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Umicore received external recognition for being a preferred em-
ployer. In Belgium, the company was again selected among 36
companies as one of the “Best companies to work for”. Umicore
tan use this recognition during the year 2008 in recruitment
campaigns, In Germany, the company was awarded the work-
and-family audit certificate (berufundfamilie®) which is a trade-
mark throughout Europe. This award acknowledges Umicore’s
imptementation of a family-oriented personnel policy and its
continuous efforts to fine tune the balance between work and
family life.

In order to increase its repuiation within the academic community,
Umicore launched the “Urnicore Scientific Award”, {for an amount
of € 10,000) which is granted to a PhD graduate who, through
his/her research, has significantly contributed to science in those
fields that are crucial for the future giowih of both Umicare’s busi-
ness and the prospect of a sustainable society. Three additional
“Umicore Awards” (each for an amaunt of € 2,500) were granied
to masters graduates.

The Belgian Umicore recruitment team attended 12 job fairs &
campus events (such as Leuven, Brussels, Antwerp and Gent). In
North America, Umicore attended job fairs at Kettering University
(UsA) and Edrnonton (Canada). Several sites organized visits for
schools and universities and oiher stakeholders. The Belgian
sites of Hoboken and Olen ran projects with schools on alter-
nating learning and working, covering a two-yearly education
programme.

In the course of 2007, a number of sites were completely renewed
and modernized, thereby improving working conditions. This was
the case for the Brussels headquarters (Belgiumy, the offices in
Perafita (Porlugal) and Blodelsheim (France) and the warehouse
in Asniéres (France). A new heating system was installed in the
offices in Fuhong {China) and in Yangzhong (China) a completely
new office building was inaugurated.

Many sites organized open days lor family members or social
staff events, such as Amsterdam {Netherlands) and Edmonton
(Canada). The Chinese regionai Umicore headquarters organized
a badminton competition to promote the corporate image among
employees and 1o enhance the sense of belonging to the Umicore
Group. The biggest event was organized on Sunday 2 September
in Brussels. Employees from Belgium, France and Germany were
invited to a family day at an event hzll, where the Princess
Elisabeth Polar Station was shown, prior to it being shipped lo
Antarctica. More than 2,700 employees and family members took
parl in this event.
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Objective 3

All sites must develop and implemeni a loca! plan for construc-
tive internal dialogue and open communication. Taking into
account the local culture and labour practices, this plan should
strive to: value the feedback from employees; enhance participa-
tion in the regular Group-wide people surveys and ensure ad-
equate follow-up actions; appraise employees regularly; ensure

construclive dialogue with employees and their represemativeﬂ

The implementation of objective 3 was already well on track
in 2006 and 2007 showed steady growth. Many platferms for
dialogue are in place, ranging from formal works councit meet-
ings to general meetings with all emplayees (50 called “town hall
meetings”). In China, given new labour cantract legislation, com-
munication ¢channels have been put in place to involve employ-
ees in setting or revising company policies which have an impact
on their interests, such as compensalion and benefits, working
schedules, working environment, discipline etc.

The high participation rate {83%) in the people survey, and the
improved scores with respect to the expeclations for manage-
ment’s reaction to the survey itlusirate the improved internal
dialogue.

Tha business unit Precious Metals Refining launched a specific
action to improve internal dialogue: all managers and supervisors
were enfolled in a 360° degree feedback exercise at the sites in
Hoboken (Belgium) and Hanau (Germany). Based on the inpui
they received from their own colleagues, a feedback session
was organised with a consullani and a personal action plan was
drafted. The significant increase in the people survey scores for
this business unit can be linked to this initiative.

The Automotive Catalyst plant in South Africa was the only
Umicore plant io face a strike in 2007. This social conflict was
part of a countrywide strike to demand wage increases in the
chemical sector. In total 601 days were reporied as aclive strike
days, not including the days lost by employees who did not want
to participate in the strike actions but who were unable to come
to work. In total, production at this plant was halted for a pericd
of three weeks.

FIG. 3: INTERNAL DIALOGUE & OPEN COMMUNICATION

In France, a Social Dialogue Charter was signed with all unions.
This charter reinforces the existing good dialogue and commits all
parties 1o further improvemeants. Unions for example will inform
the management prior to any union comenunication.

The Belgian site of Hoboken organised a communication event {0
explain the company’s stakeholder involvement to its employees.
During these sessions input and feedback was covered on such
stakeholders as shareholders, customers, the society as a whole
and the employees themselves, Th2 half day event was organ-
ised twice and in total more than 1,000 employees took part.

On 28 Sepiember 2007 Umicore signed an agreement with two
key internaticnal trade uniens on the Group-wide implementation
of its policies on human rights, equal epportunities, labour condi-
tions, ethical conduct and environmental protecticn. The agree-
ment with the International Metabworkers’ Federation and the
International Federation of Chemical, Energy, Mine and General
workers' Unions will allow both trade unions to participate con-
structively in the pursuit of these chjeclives, A joint monitoring
commitiee composed of both pariies will see to the implementa-
tion of the “Sustainable Development Agreement”.

Objective 4

All sites must develop and implement a local plan to encourage
learning and development of ou- employees.

J

In 2006, a large majority of Umicore sites had already impfement-
ed or were implementing, a local plan for learning and develop-
menl. This trend continued in 2007. Also the average number of
training hours rose significantly from an average of 33.92 hours
(4.2 days per person) to 52.92 hours {6.6 days per person). A
significant amount of this increase is due to a better capturing of
“an-the-job training”. The expectation is that if all sites systemi-
cally capture this information, average training hours may still
increase further at the leved of the Group.

Besides on-the-job training, Umiccre organises a large number
of classroom training sessiens which make use of professional
trainers. Most of these are organised at site level, but a significant
number is also organised at national or regional level, allowing
participants from different sites ic share their learning experi-

FG. 4: LEARNING ANC DEVELOPMENT
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ences. At Corporate level, training is organised for a worldwide
audience,

The following examples illustrate the variety of training experi-
ences offered by Umicore. At the Olen site in Belgium a “salety
week” was organised in April. All employees, contractors and a
number of quests {1,000 people in all) were invited for a half day
plant visit. While touring in groups of 25, actors and consultants
demonstrated real-life sitwations illustrating {unjsafe warking
conditions. Ouring debriefing discussions, participants were moti-
vated to make sure working conditions at their own warking place
were safe. At the Hoboken site in Belgium training programmes
were set up 10 raise security awareness when working wilh pre-
cious metals and a coaching programme was launched for 120
first line managers.

In Germany,-FIT was launched. This is a leadership training pro-
gramme to help-non managers acquire and improve skills to lead
teams. In France, an agreement was signed with the five unions
to implement a forecasting system to align future needs in terms
of manpower, competences and individual and collective training
requirements,

Objective 5

All sites must develop and implement a local plan to apply the
group policies for equal opportunity and diversity, respect of
Human Rights and Umicore’s Code of Conduct,

All sites have implemented Umicore’s Code of Conduct and the
Human Rights policy. Some sites are still in the process of draft-
ing and formalising their local action plans to address equal
opportunity. During 2007, no site reported specific potential risk
concerning non-compliance with the Code of Conduct, including
the Group’s Human Rights pelicy.

In order to raise awareness amongst all levels of staff of the
importance of these policies, a training kit was devised in the
form of a board game. The “Umicore Way game” offers managers
the possibility of arganizing a 2-hour training session with their
teams. The training helps employees o reflect seriously, albeit

F1G. 5: EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES, DIVERSITY, RESPECT OF HUMAN RIGHTS

in a playful manner, on the importance of a range of policies
{Code of Conduct, Human Rights, Sustainable Development) in
their daily work. The material was designed and tested in pilot
groups in 2007 and will be fully rolled out in 2008.

The percentage of female employees continued to grow ai all
levels of the organisation, especially following the carve-out of
the Zinc Alloys business, except at the senior management level.
The number of female senior managers remained constanl. In the
course of 2007, of those promoted into senior management posi-
tions, none were women. The ratio of female employees reveals
important differences between the regions, China marking the
highest ratio with 40% women.

In the course of 2007, panel discussions were organised between
the top management of the company and groups of female
managers to further identily career barriers and initiate actions
to remove them. During the Talent mManagement review (see
page 63). Hurman Resources highlighted the need for gender neu-
tral assessment of growth potential.

In France a proposal was voted into law at the end of 2005
obliging companies to ensure that at least 6% of the workforce
is compromised of workers with a handicap. On a country-wide
level, our French operation started with a ratio of 4.5%. The site of
Bray is taking the lead in a pilot project. Meetings were held with
the unions and the employees to raise awareness for creating
an adapted working environment for colleagues with a handicap.
Simultaneously, all wark stations are being reviewed to possibly
open them up for disabled people (either to allow pecple to con-
tinue working for the company or to attract new handicapped
employees). The Bray site reached a ratio of 9%. Other French
sites will learn from this experience, which will also be shared
internationally.

GENDER BALANCE (w female worklorce}
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PEOPLE OPINION
SURVEY

1n 2007 Umicore completed its fourth world-wide employee opin-
ion survey. In all, 91 sites in 34 countries took part in the survey,
equating to an overall participation rate of 83%. Participation
was facilitated by iranslating the questionnaire into 18 different
languages and organizing classroom sessions dusing working
haurs. The survey data was collected and analysed by an external
consultant in order to guarantee confidentiality and participants’
anonymity in the processing of the data and to allow valid bench-
marking of the results. The survey consisted of aver 100 items
which were later grouped in 19 caiegories, such as “Leadership”,
“Customer Focus” and “Empowerment”. The resulls have been
communicated internally and analysed at group, unit, couniry and
site level by comparing them with the results of previous Umicore
surveys and by comparing them lo international benchmarks. As
in the past, detailed action plans for organisational impravement
will be deployed at unit and local level.

The overall results show consistent progress in all categories
(see graph 1). The most noticeable improvements were made on
“Reaction to the Survey” (reflecting the good follow-up eiforts on
the previous suivey of 2004-2005) and “Perceived Competitive
Position”. The progress made on “Leadership” was also remark-
able. This categary was defined in 2005 as the main target for
improvemnent. Although the management population of Umicore
scored favourably in this category two years ago, more effort
was needed in order to creale the same paositive image towards
other employees.

Internally, the scores between Business Units and between
Regions varied somewhat. However, the variance across coun-
tries and regions of the world can be explained partly by cultural
differences in scoring. In all countries where Umicore has a strong
presence, Umicore generally scores better than the national
“all industries” benchmark in these countries.

UMICORE OVERALL COMPARED TO 2004/5 AND 2001

There is still room for progress when comparing the overall re-
sults of Umicore with other external benchmarks {Global Chemical
Industry and Globat High Performance Norm, a selection of ¢om-
panies combining excellent business results with sound people
management practices). Compared to the Global Chemical Norm,
Umicore scores betler on “Reaction to the survey”, "Cusiomer
Focus” and “Work Organisation & Quality”. Further improvements
need to be made on “Constructive Dialogue & Communication”,
“Learning & Development” and *Direct supervision”. Umicore
improved at a faster pace compared to the average of the Global
Chemicals Norm.

The survey also showed that, while the engagement of managers
within Umicore is clearly ahead of all international benchmarks,
further efforts are needed in order to create the same positive
image towards other employees, Taigeted training programmes
have been designed in parallel with detailed action plans at
unit and site level in order to improve the levels of engage-
ment throughout Umicore. The effectiveness of these plans will
be gauged as part of the next people survey in 2010.

The following graphs illustrate a number of scores and bench-
marks on items that are linked with the five Social Objectives,
outlined on pages 67-71.

Ditterances From 2004/5

Reaction Lo the Survey

Perceived Competitive Position

Policy and Sirategy

Acc. 10 Local Community [Soc. Obj. 1]
Leadership

Conslruct. Dialogue & Cormm.[Soc. Obj. 3]
Learning and Development [So<. Obj. 4]
Direct Supervision

Empowerment

Change Management

Envisconment, Health & Safety
well-Being Index

Work Organisation & Quality
Engagement

Teamwork

Lustomer Focus

Reward & Retognition

Curnulative ditference From 2001
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Accountability to Local Community:

Employees value Umicore’s performance and commitment to act as a socially

responsible member of the community

This itern shows consisient progress. Most
importantly, statistical analyses show that
pride in the company’s accountability to

Preferred Employer:

the local community has a positive impact
on the engagement of our employees.

Taking everything into account, how satisfied are you with Umicore as an

employer?

The score on this question went down
by 2 points, but remained at a high level
of 79%. This result is close to the intes-
national benchmarks: slightly below the
Global Chemical norm, but exceeding the
High Performance Narm.

The percentage of employees who
would recommend Umicore as 3 good
place to work is very high (85%), above
the Chemicals Companies and High
Peirformance benchmarks.

Constructive dialogue and open communication:

There is sufficient contact between management and employees in my

department

This question has shown further improve-
ment, resulting in a score above the
Chemicals benchmark but still below the
High Perfarmance benchmark. Other items

Learning & Development:

show that there is sill room for improve-
ment in the quality and effectiveness of
¢ommunications.

New employees received adequate training for their job

This itemn showed another significant
improvement.

Equal Opportunity:

My unit actively supports equal opportunities for personal development and

growth at Umicore

The results on this question have shown
consistent progress and the comparison to
the 2005 survey results is very favourable
(59% favourable, +6 points). The upskill-
ing associated with the increased tech-

nological complexity of mosi operations

can explain the positive trend witnessed
over the years. While there is no Chemical
benchmark avaifable, the gap with the
High Performance norm {15 points) shows
that some progress in this area can still
be made.
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Lavelay Kizekai,
analytical chemist,
Providence, Rhode Island,
United States




scope of the health reporting

This review focuses on specific issues relevant to the company. The reported data and information have been col-
lected by the sites specified in this review. Umicore has integrated specific occupational health and industrial hygiene

data in its central EHS database.

2007 review

All sites are required to further reduce the health risks refated to
exposure to hazardous substances (such as platinum salts, lead,
cobalt, cadmium) and physical health risks (such as noise and
radiation). In order to better undesstand and define these occupa-
tional health hazards and risks, Umicore is involved in a number
of scientific studies via indusiry associations {e.g. the Cobalt
Development Instilute, the Nickel Institute) or universities. Seme
of these siudies are briefly mentioned in the relevant sections.
This section further reports on two potential occupational health
issues: Indiumn Tin Oxide and nano-materials. ’

Lead

Occupational exposure to lead is still 2 potential health risk at the
site in Hoboken {Belgium). The results of the biological monitor-
ing show a continuous decrease cf the presence of lead in blood:
the level dropped to 15.5 miccogrammes per decilitre of blood
compared to 17.1 in 2006 and 30 in 1997 (figure 1). Only 5.2% of
ihe readings exceed the level of 30 microgrammes per decilitre
of bleod, which is seen as the future EU standard, compared to
8% in 2006. The readings are below the current Belgian standard
(70 microgrammes per decilitre of blood}. Values exceeding the
level of 30 microgrammes of lead per decilitre of blood are mainly
found among workers in the lead smelling department.

Cadmium

In January 2006, the Lancet Oncology published a study associat-
ing the development of lung cancer with environmental exposure
to cadmiym among the people living close to the former Umicore
plants in Balen and Qverpelt (Belgium). As a result, the com-

AVERAGE LEAD IN BLOOD AT UMICORE'S HOBOKEM SITE
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pany committed 1o evaluate the feasibility of a cancer mortality
study amongst its workers who had previously been exposed 10
cadmium.

This study, part of the action plan issued by the Flemish regional
government, was finalized in September 2007. The study made
clear that sufficient information was available to conduct a
comprehensive cancer study at the sites in Balen and Qverpelt.
umicere will cormmunicate the outcome of the feasibility study to
the Flemish authorities. Umicore and Nyrstar, the cuirent owner
of both the sites of Balen and Qverpelt, are jointly evaluating
further steps.

During 2007, two Umicore sites were confronted with higher
cadeniur levels at the workplace: Due to a high dust load in the
building, two workers at the newly acquired site in Glens Falls
(UsA) were found to have increased levels of cadmium present
in their blood. A ihorough cleaning programme reduced the cad-
mium level well below the safe level of five micragrammes per
litre of blood. '

Two workers needed 10 be moved to a cadmium-free working
environment at the Umicore site in Changsha (China). Control
measures, including reducing cadmium presence in incoming
material and improving industrial hygiene measures are be-
ing implemented lo decrease the exposure to cadmium in the
warkplace.

Platinum salts

Twelve sites where platinum salls are handled {Burlington,
Canada; South Plainfield, USA:; Americana and Guarulhos, Brazil;
Buenas Aires, Argentina; Hoboken, Belgium; Hanau and Pfarzheim,
Germany; Vienna,Austria; Amsterdam, the Netherlands; Ibaraki,
japan and Port Elizabeth, South Africa) have implemented a sen-
sitization screening programme based on the guidelines of the
occupational health working group of the (nternational Platinum
Association (“Guidance for the medical surveillance of workers
exposed to complex platinurn salts”, 2002). In 2007, two new
cases of platinumn salt sensitization were diagnosed: one at the
site in Pforzheim (Germany). and one at the site in Port Elizabeth
(South Africa).

Cobalt

ANl production sites involved in handling and producing cobalt
have implemented a biological monitoring programme (Arab,
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USA; Chungnarm, South-Korea; Fort Saskatchewan, Canada; Clen,
Belgium; Shanghai, China; Subic, Philippines). The average co-
balt ir yrine concentration in 2007 was 21.0 microgrammes per
gramme of creatinine, down from 26.0 in 2006. The results differ
very much from site {0 site wiih averages as low as 3 micro-
grammes per gramme of creatinine or as high as more than 50
microgrammes per gramme of creatinine. Nevertheless all sites
show reduced cobalt in urine levels over the past three years.
Further dust reductian actions in the workplace will however be
needed to bring all cobalt biological monitoring results 1o an ac-
ceptable level.

Al the initiative of the Cobalt Development Institute, the Umicore
site in Olen will conduct an epidemiological study to evaluate
a possible relationship between cobalt exposure and the devel-
opment of myocardial changes. The results of the study will be
available in 2009,

Indium Tin Oxide (ITO)

Global production of 110 has increased, due to the increased
manutacturing of liquid-crystal display panels. Two publicly avail-
able epidemiological studies {Chonan 2006, Hamaguchi 2007)
confirmed the findings of two easlier case reports (Homma 2005,
Tanaka 2002) which had associated occupational exposure 1o 1T0
with the development of severe respiratory problemns. Umicore
initiated an experimental study ai the Université Catholique de
Louvain (UCL) (Belgium) that showed an increased 110 cell toxic-
ity, comparable with crystalline silica (Professor Lison, UCL, per-
sonal communication). Umicore has adopied specific measures
at its TG production site in Pravidence (USA) 1o reduce exposure
levels in the workplace. These include enclosed systems for scrap
-crushing, sawing and grinding as well as impraved ventiiation
systems at critical sections. Besides the information available
in the material safety data sheet {MSDS), additional efioris are
being made to inform the customers about the potential health
effects of 1T0.
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Nano materials -

Nano-materials offer significant cornmercial opportunities in a
wide array of applications ranging from catalysts and fuel cells
io diagnosis and drug delivery. Umicore is active in the develop-
ment, preduction and sale of spedific nano-materials (In0, TiO,
Ce0,). A full size production facility for nano-materials is opera-
tional at the Olen site (Belgium).

Very littte is known about the physiological responses to nang-
materials. Although some conventional toxicity, eco-toxicity and
exposure moenitoring tests have been shown Lo be useful, existing
methodologies need 10 be validated in order to be able to evalu-
ate the hazards and exposure levels of nano-materials.

Umicare is working with two expert gioups (BGIA, Sankt Augustin,
Germany and VIO, Mol, Belgiurn) ta conduct specialized nano
particle concentration measuremenis in the workplace. While
overall results showed low cancentrazions compared 18 ather set-
tings {e.g. welding, grinding, airport fields), the sampling meth-
odology and strategy need to be valicated further before any firm
conclusions can be drawn,

In line with Umicore’s EHS policy, the company actively partici-
pates in two EU research consortia {Nanolinteract, NanoSafe2}
to clarify the outstanding issues concerning the impact of nang-
materials on human health and the environment. In the absence
of any clear answers today, the company aims to achieve zero
exposure at its nano-material production facility.




scope of the safety reporting

This report is limited to lost {ime accidents that occurred to Umicore’s staff while at their workplace. Accidents
that might have happened on the road to and from work are not included. Umicore’s zinc alloys business, with
activities in Balen, Overpelt, Auby and Le Vigéant, was transferred to Nyrstar in September 2007. During the period
January-September, 14 lost time accidents were registered for these activities. Since the safety figures for the period
September-December are no longer available 1o Umicore, this 2007 safety review excludes the lost time accidents

that occured at the Nyrstar sites.

2007 review

In 2007, two fatal accidents occurred at Umicore's operations.
In January a machine operator was killed at the site in Viviez,
France while handling a zinc sheet <oil. In December, a waorker
at a Chinese joint venture partner lost his life while filling a reac
tor tank. Full investigations have been carried out to explore the
causes of both events and to define the necessary remedial and
preventive actions.

These accidents erase any satisfaction that the company may
otherwise have had regarding the overall improved Group safety
performance. The company reqgistered 79 losl time accidents,
down from 117 in 2006. This resulted in a frequency rate of 5.3,
down from 7.2 in 2006 but short of the 1arget of 4 (figure 1). In
total, 1,880 days were lost due to accidents resulting in a sever-
ity rate of 0.13 compared to 0.20 in 2006 and the target of 0.15
(figure 2).

Further analysis of the safety figures shows some remarkable
differences between the different business units: some display
an excellent performance while others put up a substandard
performance. The accidents are often linked 10 unusual and unex-
pected working conditions in which the operator may experience
additional pressure to perform the job (incidents, maintenance...).
The sites are developing further action plans to address these
issues during 2003.

New occupational safety targets

“The Umicare Way” states “not to compromise on a safe and
healthy working environment for all and {t0) seek continuat im-
provement of our occupational health and safety performance”.
The 2007 safety performance once again underlined the need to
further strengthen efforts to eliminate all accidents in the work-
place. Ta that end, the Executive Committee has approved new
safety targets for the period 2008-2010 (table 1). The targets for

FIG. 1: ACCIDENT FREQUENCY RATE UMICORE GROUP
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2008 have been kept at the same level as 2007 to allow the sites
to implement targeted action plans that address their specific
needs. All business units have set their own safely targets within
the gverall Group safely targets.

Table 1
Frequency rate Severity rate
2008 4.0 0.15
2009 35 0.13
2010 30 0.1

As of January 2008, the reporting of recordable injuries and con-
tractor safety is mandatory for all sites. These additional indica-
tors will identify a broader range of unsafe situations that will
provide valuable information to improving occupational safety.
The company will include these additional indicators in the 2008
Annual Report.

Process safety

As part of the Group’s overall safety objectives, the company has
also defined 3 process salety objective. indeed, while Umicore
has been paying a loi attention to improve its occupational safety
performance, there was also a need to address process safetyina
mare systematic way. Many sites handle, use and store hazardous
chemical substances that may present a hazard to the employees,
neighboring people and the enviranment. The company needs to
ensure that these risks are identified in a systematic way and that
the necessary actions are taken to prevent, mitigate or contain
those risks. All sites are required to develop and implement or
review their existing process safety plans by the end of 2010.
This in¢cludes key elements such as the identification of all areas
presenting significant risks, analyzing potential situations, the im-
plementation of both preventive and mitigating measures as well
as selting up emergency response planning and training.

FIG. 2: SEVERITY RATE UMICORE WORLD-WIDE
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GLOSSARY

Biological monitering:
Assessment of the health risk and/or exposure of industrial chemi-
cals, through the evaluation of the internal dose.

Greenhouse gases:
Gases contributing to global warming such as (0, methane, etc.

150 14000:
"Iniernational Standards Organisation” specification for environ-
mental management systems {ref. 150).

Biodiversity:

The variability among living organisms from alf sources including,
inter alia, terrestrial, marine and other aquatic ecosystems and the
ecological complexes of which they are part; this includes diversity
within species, between species and of ecosystems.

Secondary raw materials:
By-products of primary material streams.

Recovery:
the collection of waste materials with the aim of returning them to
the recycling process.

Recycled materials:
Materials that have ended a 1% life cycle and will be repracessed
through recycling leading to a 2, 3%... lifecycle.

Risk assessment:

The evaluation of the risks of existing substances to man, including
workers and consumers, and to the environment, in order to ensure
betier management of thase risks.

Sustainable development:

Development that meets the needs of the present without com-
promising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs
(ref. UN World Commission on Environment and Development).

Nano materials:

Materials consisting of microscopic particles with at least one di-
mension less than 100 nanometre.

Global Reporting Initiative® (GRI):

The GRI is a long-terrn multi-stakehalder, international process
whose mission is to develop and disseminate globally applicable
Sustainability Reporting Guidelines.

Frequency rate lost time accidents:
Nurmber of lost time accidents per million hours worked. Accidents
on the road 10 and from work are excluded.

Severity rate lost time accidents:
Number of calendar days lost per thousand hours work. Accidents
on the road to and from work are excluded.

Microgramme per gramme ¢reatinine:
Unit of the metal content in the urine.

Microgramme per decilitre blood:
Unit of metal content in blood.
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Process safety:

Safety issues related Lo the use and <torage of hazardous chemical
substances that may present a hazard to the employees, neigh-
bouring peopie and the environmenl.

Lost-time accident:
A workplace injury resutting in more than one shift being lost from
work.

Recordable injury:

A workplace injury resulting in more than one first aid treatment
or in a modified working pregramme but excluding lost-time
accidents.

BAT:

“Bes! Available Technique” to preverd ar reduce emissions and the
impact on the environiment taking into consideration the costs and
advantages (see: £U Ceuncil Direclive 96/61/EEC on Integrated
Polluticn Prevention and Control).

REACH:
Registration, Evaluation and Authorization of Chemicals; new EU
chemical policy.

Headcount:
Number of employees (blue collar, white collar, managers) on
Umnicore’s payroll at the end of the reported period. Number in-
cludes part-time, old age part-tima and temporary employees but
excludes employees with a dormant coniract and subconiracted
employees.

yoluntary leavers:

Number of employees leaving at their own will (excluding lay-offs,
retirement, and end of fixed-term contract). This number is related
to the totai headcount.

Sickness rate:

Tolal number of warking days lost due to sickness; excluding long-
term sickness and days lost due to raternity feave. This number is
related to the total number of working days per year (260 days).

Strike Days:

Number of days lost due (e “declared” strikes. This figure does not
include days losl due 10 workers who were wiliing to work but
were not able to do so because of the strike. Work-stoppages of
less than one day are not counted, unless they are repeated over a
longer period of time.

Hours of training per person:

Average number of training hours per employee - including interna
and external training and training on-the-job. Training on-the-job
can include the hours a person is bzing trained on the shop-floor,
without being fully productive. The total number of training hours
is divided by the headcount.




Financial definitions

EEIT:

Operating profit (lass) of fully consolidated companies, including
income from other financial investments + Group share in net profit
(loss) of companies accounted for under equity method.

Non-recurring EBIT:

Includes non-recurring items related to restructuring measures,
impairment of assets, and other inccme or expenses arising from
events of transactions that are clearly distinct from the ordinary
activities of the company. Any writedowns on those metal invenio-
ries permanently tied up in operations are part of the non-recurring
EBIT of the business groups.

Recuriing EBIT:
EBIT - nen-recurring EBIT - 1AS 39 effect.

Recurring EBIT masgin:
Recurring EBIT of fully consolidated companies / revenues exclud-
ing metals.

IAS 39 effect:

Non-cash timing differences in revenue recognition in case of non-

application of or non-possibility of obtaining 1AS hedge accounting

to

a) transactional hedges, which implies that hedged items can no
longer be measured a1 fair value, or

b} structural hedges, which implies that the fair value of the related
hedging instruments are recognized in the income statement
instead of the equity and this prior to the occurance of the un-
derlying forecasted or committed transactions, or

¢) Derivatives embedded in executory contracts, which implies
that the change in fair value on the embedded derivatives must
be recognized in the income instatement as opposed to the ex-
ecutory component where the fair vatue change in the income
staternent cannot be recognized.

EBITDA:

EBIT + [depreciation & amortization + non-cash expenses other
than depreciation {j.e. increase and reversal of provisions, inventory
write-downs and write-backs, other impairment result) +/- 1AS 39
eftect] of fully consolidated companies.

Revenues (excluding metal):
All revenue elements - value of purchased metals.

Return on capital employed (ROCE):
Recurring EBIT / average capital employed Historic, previously pub-
lished figures are not restated.

Capital employed:

Total equity (excluding fair value reserves) + net {inancial debt +
provisions for employee benefits - deferred tax assets and liabilities
- 1AS 39 impact,

Capital expenditure:
Capitalized investments in tangible and intangible assets.

Cash flow before financing:
Net cash generated by {used in) operating activities + net cash
generaled by (used in) investing activities.

Net financial debt:
Non-current financial debt + current financial debt - cash and cash
equivalents - loans granied in a non-operating context.

Recurring effeclive tax rate:
Recurring tax charge / recurring profit (lossy befare income tax of
fully consalidated companies.

EPS:
Earnings per share for equity holders.

EPS - basic:
Net earnings, Group share / average number of outstanding shares
- treasury shares,

EPS - diluted:

Net earnings, Group share / [average number of outstanding
shares - treasury shares + (number of potential new shares to be
issued under the existing stock option plans x dilution impact of the
stock option plans)].

EPS adjusted - basic:
Net recurring earnings, Group share / total number of outstanding
shares - treasury shares.

EPS adjusted - diluted:

Net recurring earnings, Group share / [average number of out-
standing shares - treasury shares +{number of potential new
shares to be issued under the existing stock option plans x dilution
impact of the stock option plans)].

Market capitalization:
Closing price x total number of outstanding shares.

NPAT;
Net consolidated profit, Group share, without discontinued
operations.

The above financial definiticns relate te non-IFRS performance indi-
cators except for EPS, basic and EPS, diluted.
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Consolidated income statement

(€ thousz nd)
Notes 2006 200i1
o
Turnover 9 8,205,713 8,309,@&!_’#
Other operating income ) 9 101,916 129,85
Operating intome 8,307,629 8,439, mj
Raw materials and consumables (6,979,320) (7,039,3EL
Payroll and related benefits 10 (504,727} (546,1?_1L
Depreciation and impairments (131,240} (129,035
Other operating expenses (422,011} (443;96({)
Operating expenses (8,037,298) | (8, 158,86&)
Income from other financial investments 12 11,118 28,0941
RESULT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 281,449 308,994;‘
Financial income 11 12,002 20,284’l
Financial expenses 11 (55,396) (55,446-')
Foreign exchange gains and losses 11 (266) (_S_,ZT_éS
Share in result of companies using the equity method 17 32,159 25,454
PROFIT (lOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 269,948 294,016‘__
Income taxes 13 (49,771) (57,460}
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 220177 236,556
Profit (loss) from discontinued opérations 39 (19,404) 425,t££’_1
PROFIT {LOSS) OF THE PERIOD 200,773 662,382:!_‘
of which: Group share 195,848 653,%34
Minority share 4,925 9,299
(€}
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 38 1.70 1;9_11[:
Total basic earnings per share 38 1.55 Sﬂh
Diluted earnings per share from conlinuing operations 38 1.67 1.79)
Total diluted earnings per share 38 1.52 5. 15i{
Dividend per share 0.42 O,ﬁjﬂ‘%

* proposed
The notes on pages 86 1o 131 are an integral part of these consofidated finanial statements.

The consolidated income statement and related notes for 2006 have been restated for discontinued operations. The balance sheet, the cash flow statement and related

notes have not been restated.

82 / Umicore / Annual Report 2007




Consolidated balance sheet

(€ thousand)

Notes 31/12/06 . 31/12/07
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,355,207 | 1,139,751
Intangible assets 14,15 110,734 112,267 *
Property, plant and equipment 16 716,386 622,685 |
Investments accounted for using the equity method 17 211,422 169,706 {
Available-for-sale financial assets 18 48,092 108,230
Loans granted 18 2,606 2651
Trade and other receivables 20 6,269 4,740 ¢
Deferred tax assets 21 259,699 119,472
CURRENT ASSETS 2,420,742 | 2,081,013
Current loans granted 18 37,181 3 7181 _:
Inventories 19 1,152,272 968,668
Trade and other receivables 20 1,047,155 880,033 |
Income tax receivables 9,189 6,152 |
Available-for-sale financial assets 18 328 64 ]
Cash and Cash equivalents 22 174,617 218,914
Assets of discontinued operations 39 64,558
TOTAL ASSETS 3,775,949 3,285,323
EQUITY OF THE GROUP 23 988,142 1,533,197
Group shareholders’ equity 939,037 | 1,491,227
Share capitat and premiums 463,866 469,421
Relained earnings 827,503 1,427,831
Currency translation differences and other reserves {312,810) {109,062) |
Treasury shares (39,521) (296,963)
Minority interest 49,105 41,970
Currency translation differences and other reserves of discontinued operations 23 (2,645)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 813,614 519,274
Provisions for employee benefits 27 215,665 171,796
Financial debt 24 400,074 181,201 |
Trade and other payables 25 3,454 4,987 ]
Deferred tax liabilities 21 44246 37,566 y
Provisions 29, 30 150,174 123,723 |
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,974,193 1,197,813
Financial debt 24 587,793 215,634 |
Trade and ather payables 25 1,279,896 864,816
Income tax payable 49,729 46,204
Pravisions 29, 30 56,775 71,159 |
Liabilities frorn discontinued operations 39 37,68_3__'
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 3,775,949 3,285,323

The nates on pages 86 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The cansolidated income statement and related notes for 2006 have been restated for discontinued operations. The balance sheet, the cash 1l ow statement and related

notes have nol been restated.
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Consolidated cash flow statement

(€ thousar d)
Notes 31/12/06 31/12/07][ |
Profit from continuing operations 200,774 236,5&;‘
Adjustments for profit of equity companies (49,700) {25,455)
Adjustment for non-cash transactions 33 198,139 158,:_1_ZZEH
Adjustments for items to disclose separately or under investing l.
and financing cash Hows 33 69,194 53,703]
Change in working capital requirement 33 (415,549) 6,245 \
Cash flow generated from operations 2,857 429,526 JI
Dividend received 18,673 33’470];
Tax paid during the period {41,676) (56,554)r
Net cash flow generated by (used in) operating activities 33 (20,147) 406,441
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 16 {133,311) {148,'3'02)‘i
Acquisition of intangible assets 14 {4.302) (4,005)‘:,_{
Acquisition of new subsidiaries {net of cash acquired) 8 (35,714) (82,3 Elér'
Acquisition of / capital increase in associates {2,977) (2,06_@)_!;
Acquisition of financial assets 18 (14,139) {1,891)-,
New loans extended 18 (37,188) (11,694)!
Sub-total acquisitions (227,632) (250,873), ;
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 11,492 9,51€-
Disposal of intangible assets 3,409 96_)H
Disposal of subsidiaries and associates (net of cash disposed) 8,589 755,404 F
Cash flows from/to discontinued operations (177.211) 1 |
Capital decrease in associates 985 1,824 ‘
Disposal of financial fixed assets 7,169 30,479 ‘Et
Repayment of loans 18 2,814 2,054 '
Sub-total disposals 34,459 623,030 |
Net cash flow generated by {used in) investing activities 33 (193,173) | 372,158 |
Capital increase 6,948 { 5,555 J
Capital increase/deccease minorities ' 44L];
Own shares (10,944) [ (257,441)
Interest received 7,489 15,77}_];
Interest paid (39,649) (42,480}
New loans 894,784 193,5927;
Repayment of loans (517,359) (704,891_)_3"
Dividends paid to Umicore shareholders (48,537) {52,043) |
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (4,447) (1,095_)_4
Net cash flow generated by (used in) financing activities 33 288,285 |, (842,584) |
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (4,440) (4,348)!
Net cash flow from continuing operations 70,526 (68,332) !
Impact of change in scope and discontinued operations i |
on opening cash and cash equivalents 295 | 116,818
Net cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 22 92,122 162,943 )i
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 22 162943 | 211,429
of which cash and cash equivalents 174,617 218,914 |
of which bank overdrafts (11,675) [ (7,485) I

The netes on pages 86 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated income statement and related notes for 2006 have been restated for discontinued operations. The halance sheet, the cash il ow statement and

related notes have not been restated,
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Consolidated statement of recognized

income and expenses

(€ thousand)
Notes 2006 2007 1'
Changes in available-for-sale financial assets teserves 16,337 | (15,753)_
Changes in cash flow hedge reserves {249,020) 33,596 J
Changes in post-employment benefit reserves 518 14,790 J
Changes in share-based payments reserves 7,712 5812 i
Changes in deferred taxes directly recognized in equity 86,143 (15,869) |
Changes in currency translation differences {44,021) | (38,346)
Net income (expense) recognized directly in equity ‘
of continuing operations 23 (182,331) | (15,769}
|

Net income (expense) recognized directly in equity of discontinued operations 215,065 { '
Profit (loss) of the period . 200,773 662,382 |
Total recognized income 18,442 861,678 }
of which:  Group share 19,092 854,639 l
Minority share {650) 7,039

The notes on pages 36 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The company’s consolidated financial statements and the management report prepared
in accordance with article 119 of the Belgian Companies Code set forth on pages 1 to 80
and 134 to 151, for the year ended 31 December 2007 were authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on 31 March 2008. They have been prepared in accordance with the
legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the consolidated financial statements of
Belgian companies. They include those of the company, its subsidiaries and its interests
in companies accounted for using the equity methed.

1 Basis of preparation

The Group presents its annual consolidated financial statements in accordance with all
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the Evropean Union (EU),

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of euras, rounded to
the nearest thousand, and have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for those
items that are measured at fair value,

The consolidated income statement and refated notes for 2006 have been restated for
discontinued operations. The balance sheet and the cash flow statement and related
notes have not been restated. According to 1AS 33 § 64 all information included in the
present financial statements that refer to number of shares have been restated to take
into account the ane-for-five stock split that took place on 29 February.

2 Accounting policies

2.1 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND SEGMENTATION

Umicare applies a {ull consalidation for its subsidiarfes - entities oves which the company
has control - i.e. the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. Contral is presumed when Umicore owns, directly or indirectly
through subsidiaries, more than 50% of the voting rights.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group
and are no longer consolidated from the date that cantrol ceases,

Note 5 lists all significant subsidiaries of the company at the closing date.

To account for an atquisition, the purchase method is used. The assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired company are measured at their fair value at the
date of acquisition, The cost of acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets given
up, shares issued or liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary is recorded as goodwill, (see
Section 2.6. Intangible Assets). If the Group's share in the fair value of the net assets
exceeds the cost of acquisition, the excess is recognized immediately in profit and loss.

Inter-company trarsactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between Group
tompanies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated, unless such losses are
an indication of impairment. Where necessary, the subsidiaries” accounting policies have
been changed to ensure consistency with the policies the Umicore Group has adopted.

An associate is an entity in which the company has a significant influence over the
financial and operating policies, but no control. Typically this is evidenced by an
ownership of between 20 to 50% of the voting rights. A joint venture is a contractual
arrangement whereby the company and other parties undertake, directly or indirectly,
an economic aclivity that is subject to joint control.

Both associates and joini ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under this
.method, the Groups share of the post-acquisition profits o losses is recognized in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized
in reserves.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the company and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated {o the exten? of the company’s interest in the asseciates and
join? ventures. Unrealized losses are also eliminaled, unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment. :

Investments in companies that are not consolidated through the equity method or
through the full consolidation methed are recorded under “available-for-sale financial
assets”.

The company’s investments in associates and joint veniures include the goodwill on
atquisitions, net of impairment.

Note 17 lists all significant associates and joint ventures of the company as at the dosing
date.

Note 7 provides the Company’s segment information. A business segment is a group of
assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of other business segments, A geagraphical
segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular econamic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
segmenis operating in other environments.

The primary segments of the Group are the business segments. The company’s secondary
segments are the geographical segments.
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2.2 INFLATION ACCOUNTING

As at 31 December there is no subsidiary in the Umicore Group having a functiinal
currency belonging to a hyperini atienary economy.

2.2 INFLATION ACCOUNTING

As at 31 December there is no subsidiary in the Umicore Group having a functinal
currenty belonging to a hyperinf ationary economy.

2.3 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Functional currency: items includ =d in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency that best reflects the economic substance of the
underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity. The consolidated finangial
statements are presented in evrcs which is the functional currency of the parent. To
consalidate the Group and each of its subsidiaries, the financial statements are transtated
as follows:

- Assets and fiabilities at the year-end rate as published by the European Ceniral Bank.
Intome statements at the average exchange rate for the year,
- The components of shareholders” equity at the historical exchange rate.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreijn
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated entities at the period-end exchange rate are
tecorded as part of the shareholders’ equity under “currency translatian differe wces”.

When a foreign operation is partislly disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognized in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustme ts arising an the acquisition of a foreign entily are
treated as local currency assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and are tran:lated
at the closing rate.

2.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are recognized during the period in the functional currency
of each entity at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. The date »f a
transaction is the date at which the transaction first qualifies for recognition. For practical
reasons a rate that approximates the actual rale at the date of the transaction i; used at
some operations, for example, an average rate for the week or the month in which the
transactions occur.

Subsequently, monetary assets ar d liabilities denominated in foreign curencies are
translated at the closing rate at it e balance sheet date,

Gains and losses resulting from tt e settlement of foreign currency transactions, and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curren-ies, are
recognized in the income statement as financial result.

In order to hedge its expesure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Company has
entered into certain forward contracts. (see Chapter 2.21, Financial instrsments)

2.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is vecorded at historical cost, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes all direct costs and appropriale
allocation of indirect costs incurred to bring the asset to working candition for its
intended use.

There are no borrowing costs capi'alized in the costs of the assets. All borrowiny) costs
are recognized as expenses in the period when incurred.

The straight-line depreciation met1od is applied through the estimated useful lite
of the assets. Useful life is the peiiod of time over which an asset is expected tn be used
by the company.

Repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,

if they do not increase the future 2conomic benefits of the asset, Otherwise they are
classified as separate components of items of property, plant and equipment. Those
major components of items of property, plant and equipment that are replaced at regular
intervals are accounted for as sepirate assets as they have useful lives different from
those items of property, plant and equipment to which they relate.




The typical useful life per main type of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land: Non-depreciable

| Buildings:

.- Industrial buildings 20 years

- Improvements to buildings 10 years
- Other buildings such as offices and laboratories 40 years
- Investment properties 40 years
Plant, machinery and equipment: 10 years
- Furnaces 7 years
- Small equipment 5 years

Furniture and vehicles: small equipment

- Vehicles 5 years
- Mobile handling equipment 7 years
- Computer equipment 3 to 5 years

- Furniture and office equipment 5 to 10 years

For material newly acquired or constrected assets, the useful life is separately assessed
at the moment of the investment request and can deviate from the above standards.

Assets are reviewed for an indication of impairment at each balance sheet date to
assess whether they are recoverable in the form of future benefits. If the recoverable
amount has decreased below the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized
and accounted for as an operatianal charge. To assess impairments, assets are grouped
in cash-generating units {CGY} at the lowest level for which separately identifiable cash
flows exist. (see Chapter 2.12 Impairment of assels)

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows {rom other
assets or groups of assets.

2.6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS & EQUITY TRANSACTION EXPENSES

2.6.1 Equity Transaction Expenses
Expenses for formation and capital increase are deducted from the share capital.

2.6.2. Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition of a subsidiary, associate
of jeintly controlled entity over the Group’s share in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
recognized at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill from associates and joint ventures is presented in the balance sheet
on the line “Investments accounted for under the equity method”, together with
the investment itsell.

To assess impairment, goodwill is allocated to a CGU. At each balance sheet date, these
CGUs are tested for impairment, meaning an analysis is performed to determine whether
the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU is fully recoverable. If the carrying
amount is not fully recoverable, an appropriate impairment loss is recognized in the
income statement. These impairment losses are never reversed. '

]

The excess of the Group's intefest in the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
over the cost of acquisition is recognized in the income statement immediately.

2.6.3. Research and Development

Research costs related to the prospect of gaining new scientific or technological
knowtedge and understanding are recognized in the income statement as an incurred
expense.

Development costs are defined as costs incurred for the design of new or substantially
impreved products and for the processes prior to commercial production of use.
They are capitalized if, among others, the following conditions are met:

- the intangible asset will give rise to future economic benefits, or in other words,
the market potential has been clearly demonstrated.

- the expenditures related to the process or product can be dearly identified and .
reliably measured.

In case it is difficult to clearly distinguish between research or development costs,
the costs are considered as being research. If development costs are capitalized they
are amortized using a straight-line methed over the period of their expected benefit.

2.6.4. Other Intangible Assets

All of the following types are recorded at historical cost, bess accumulated amortization
and impairment losses, except for government granted (0, emission rights which are
valued at the prevailing market price at the day of the grant:

- Concessions, patents, licenses: are amortized over the period of their legal protection.

- Software and related internal development costs: are typically amortized over a period
of five years

- (0, emission rights: are not amortized but can be impaired

- Land use rights: are typically amortized over the contractual period.

2.7 LEASE
Lease operalions ¢an be divided into two types of lease:

2.7.1. Finance Lease

Leases under which the company assumes a substantial part of the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. They are measured at the lower of fair value
and the estimated present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the
lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Each fease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant periodic rate of interest on the finance balance outstanding. The
carresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in fong-term
payables. The interest element is tharged to the income statement over the lease period.
Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life and the lease term.

2.7.2. Operating Lease

Leases under which a substantial part of the risks and rewards of ownership are
effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Among ather
items, the group leases metals to and from third parties for specified periods for which
the group receives or pays fees. The metal leases from third parties are dassified as
operating leases and are reported as off balance sheet commitments (see note 34). All
payments or receipts under operating lease are recognized as an operating expense in
the income statement using the straight-line methad.

2.8 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS, LOANS
AND NON CURRENT RECEIVABLES

All movements in available-for-sale financial assets, loans and receivables are accounted
for at trade date.

Financial assets available for sale are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses
from changes in the fair value of such assets ase recognized in equity as available-for-
sale financial assets reserves. When the assets are seld or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments are included in the income statement as gains and losses.

Loans and receivables are caried at amortized cost less any impairment.

All write-downs are recorded on a separate account and are netted with the carrying
amounts when all chances of recovery are depleted.

Own shares, are deducted from equity

2.9  INVENTORY

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost comprises direct
purchase or manufacturing costs and an appropsiate allocation of everheads.

Inventories are classified as:

1. Base products with metal hedging

2. Base products without metal hedging
3. {onsumables

4. Advances paid

5. Contracts in progress

Base products with metal hedging are metal-containing products on which Umicore

is exposed ta metal price fluctuation risks and where Umicore applies an active and
structured risk management process to minimize the potential adverse effects of
market price fluctuations on the financial performance of the Group. The metal contents
are classified in inventory categories that reflect their speific nature and business

use, Depending an the metal inventory category, appropriate hedging mechanisms

are applied. A weighted average is applied per category of inventory except for the
inventories vatued at fair value. (see Chapter 2.21 on Financial instruments)

Base products without metal hedging and consumables are valued using the weighted-
average cost method.
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Write-downs on inventories are recognized when turnover is slow or where the carrying
amount is exceeding the net realizabfe value, meaning the estimated selling price less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
Write-downs are presented separately.

Advances paid are down-payments on transactions with suppliers for which the physical
delivery has not yet taken place and are booked at nominal value.

Contracts in progress are valued using the percentage-of-completion method,

2,10 TRADE AND OTHER RECE{VABLES

Trade and other receivables are measured at amortized cost, i.e. at the net present value
of the receivable amount. Unless the impact of discounting is material, the nominal
value is taken. Receivables are written down for irrecoverable amounts. All write-downs
are recorded on a separate account and are netted with the carrying amounts when all
chances of recovery are depleted.

Trade receivables of which substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred
are derecognized from the balance sheet.

The positive fair value of derivative financia! inskruments is included under this heading.

2.17 (ASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(ash includes cash-in-hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily canvertible into known amaunts of cash, have
maturity dates of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.

These items are carried in the batance sheet at nominal value or amortized cost. Bank
overdrafts are included in the current liabilities on the balance sheet.

2.12 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets, including intangible assets
and financial assets not held for trading, are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in drcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated,

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use.
To estimate the recoverable amount of individual assets the company often determines
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit {CU) to which the asset belengs.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable value, an impairment
less is recognized as an expense immediately. ’

A reversal of impairment losses is recognized when there is an indication that the
impairment losses recognized for the asset or for the (GU no longer exist or have
decreased. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the camying amount that would have been determined,

net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized,

2.13 SHARE CAPITAL AND RETAINED EARNINGS

A. Repurchase of share capital
when the company purchases seme of its own shares, the consideration paid -
including any attributable transaction costs net of income taxes - is deducted from
the total shareholders’ equity as treasury shares. No gain or loss shall be recognized
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of own shares. when such
shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received is indluded in
shareholders’ equity.

B. tncremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity
as a deduction from the proceeds of the issue, net of tax.

€. Dividends of the parent company payable on ordinary shares are only recognized
as 2 liability following approval by the shareholders.

2.14 MINORITY INTERESTS

Minority interests include 2 praportion of the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities recognized upon acquisition of a subsidiary, together with the appropriate
proportion of subsequent profits and losses.

In the income statement, the minarity share in the Company’s profit or loss is presented
separately from the Company’s consolidated result.

2.15 PROVISIONS

Provistons are recognized in the balance sheet when:

- There is a present obligation {Jegal or constructive) as a result of a past event.

- Itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligation.
- Areliable estimate can be made on the amount of the obligation.
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A constructive obligation is an ot ligation that derives from company actions where, by an
established pattern of past practice or published policies, the company has indicated that
it will accept certain responsibilities and, as a result, the company has created a valid
expectation that it wilf discharge those responsibilities.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimale of the expenditure required
fo settle the present abligation at the balance sheet date and taking into account the
probability of the possible outcorne of the event. Where the effect of the time value of
money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the exper.diture
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The result of the yearly discounting of
the provision, if any, is accounted for as a financial resuilt.

The main types of provision are the following:
1. Provisions for employee benelits. (see Chapter 2.16, Employee benefits)
2. Environmental obligations

Environmental provisions are based on legal and constructive obligations fiom

past events, in accordance with the company’s published environmental pelicy
and applicable legal requirerrents. The full amount of the estimated obligation
is recognized at the moment the obliging event occurs. When the obligation is
production/activity related, the provision is recognized gradually dependin) on
normal usage/production level.

3. Other Provisions

Indudes provisions for litigation, onerous contracts, warranties, exposure to equity
investments and restructuring, A provision for restructuring is recognized wt en the
company has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan and the restructuring
has either commenced or has been announced publicly before the balance : heet
date. Any restructuring provision only includes the direct expenditure arising from
the restructuring which is necassarily entailed and is not associated with the engoing
activities of the Company

2.16 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

2.16.1 Short-Term Employe e Benefits

These include wages, salaries and social security contributions, paid annual lease and
sick leave, bonuses and non-mor etary benefits, and are taken as an expense in the
relevant period. Bonuses are received by all company managers and are based on key
target financial indicators. The amount of the bonus is recognized as an expense, based
an an estimation made at the balance sheet date.

2.16.2 Post Employment Benefits {pensions, medical care)

The company has various pension and medical care schemes in accordance with the
conditions and practices of the ccuntries it operates in. The schemes are generilly funded
through payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds.

2.16.2.1 Defined Benefit Plans

The company has accounted for zll legal and constructive obligations both under the
formal terms of defined benefit flans and under the company’s informal practiies.

The amount presented in the balance sheet is based on actuarial talculations {using

the projected unit credit method) and represents the present value of the defired benefit
obligations, adjusted for unrecognized past service costs, and reduced by the fzir valye
of the plan assets.

Unrecognized past service costs rasult from the introduction of new benefit plans or
changes in the benefits payable under an existing plan. The past service costs for which
the benefits are not yet vested (the employees must deliver employee service: before
the benefits are granted) are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the new or amended benefits become vested.

All actvarial gains and lasses following changes in the actuarial assumptions of post-
employment defined benefit plar s are recognized through equity in the period in
which they occur and are disclosed in the statement of income and expense as post
employment benefit reserves.

2.16.2.2 Defined Contribition Plans

The company pays contributions 1o publicly or privately administered insurance plans.
The payments are recognized as uxpenses as they fall due, and as such are induded
in personnel costs.

2.16.3 Other tong-Term Emiployee Benefits {jubilee premiums)

These benefits are accrued for their expected costs over the period of employment
using an accounting methodology simifar to that for defined benefit pension plans.
These obligations are in general valued annually by independent qualified actuaries.
All actuarial losses or gains are inmediately recognized in the income statement.




2.16.4 Termination Benefits {pre-retirement plans,
other termination obligations)

These benefits arise as a resull of the company’s decision to terminate an employee’s -
employment before the normal retirement date or of an employee’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. When they are reasonably
predictable in accordance with the conditions and practices of the countries the company
operates in, future obligations are also recognized.

These benefits are accrued for their expected costs over the period of employment, using
an accounting methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension plans. In genera,
these abligations are valued annually by independent qualified actuaries. All actuarial
losses of gains are immediately recognized in the income statement.

2.16.5 Equity and Equity-related Compensation Benefits
(share based payments IFRS 2)

Different stock option and share programmes allow company employees and company
senior management 1o acquire or oblain shares of the company. The option or share
exercise price equals the market price of the (underlying} shares at the date of the

grant. when the options are exercised, shares are delivered to the beneficiaries from
existing own shares. In both cases, the equity is increased by the amount of the proceeds
received corresponding to the exercise price. For the share programmes, shares are
delivered to the beneficiaries from existing own shares.

The options and shares are typically vested at the moment of the grant and their fair
value is recognized as an employee benefit expense with 2 corresponding increase in
equity as share based payment reserves. For the options, the expense to be recognized is
caleulated by an actuary, using a valuation model which takes inte account all features of
the stock optians, the volatility of the underlying stock and an assumed exercise pattern,

2.16.6 Presentation

The impact of employee benefits on results is booked under operating results in the
income statement, except for the interest and discount rate impacts which are dassified
under financial results,

2.17 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
All movements in finandial liabilities are accounted for at trade date.

Borrowings are initially recognized as proceeds received, net of transaction costs.
Subsequently they are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Amortired cost is cafculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or
premium on issue. Any differences between cost and redemption value are recognized
in the income statement upon redemption.

2.18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables are measured at amortized cost, i.e. at the net present value of the
payable amount. Unless the impact of discounting is material, the nominal value is taken.

The negative fair value of derivative financial instruments is included under this heading.

2.19 INCOME TAXES

Taxes on profit of loss of the year include current and deferred tax. Such taxes are
calculated in accordance with the tax regulations in effect in each country the company
operates in.

Curren? tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income of the year, using tax rates
enacted al the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable {or receivable) in
respect of previous years.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method on tempaorary differences arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. These taxes are measured using the rate prevailing at the balance sheet date
or future applicable tax rates formally announced by the government in the country the
Company operales in.

Deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temposary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset and presented net only if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

2.20 REVENUE RECOGNITION

2.20.1 Goods Sold and Services Rendered

Revenue from the sale of goods in transformation activities is recognized when significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, and no significant
uncertainties remain regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs of the
possible return of the goods.

kevenue from refining activities and services rendered is recognized by reference to the
stage of completion of the transaction when this can be measured reliably.

2.20.2 Government Grants

A government grant is accounted for in the balance sheet initially as deferred income
when there is reasonable assurance that it will be received and that the company will
comply with the conditions attached to it. Grants are recognized in the income statement
over (he period necessary to match them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

2.21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company uses derivative financial and commodity instruments primarily to reduce
the exposure to adverse fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, commaodity prices, interest
rates and other market risks. The company uses mainly spot and forward contracts

to cover the metal and currency risk, and swaps to hedge the interest rate risk. The
operations carried out on the futures markets are not of 3 speculative nature.

2.21.t Transactional Risks - fair value hedging

Derivative financial and commodity instruments are used for the protection of the fair
value of underlying hedged items {assets, liabilities and firm commitments) and are
recognized initially at fair value at trade date.

Ali derivative financial and commaodity instruments are subsequently measured at fair
value at the balance sheet date via the “Mark-to-Market” mechanism. All gains and
losses are immediately recognized in the income statement - as an operating result, if
commodity instruments, and as a financial result in all other cases.

The hedged items (physical commitments and commercial inventory, primarily) are
valued at fair value when hedge accounting can be documented according to the criterla
set out in 1AS 39.

In the absence of obtaining fai value hedge accounting at inception as defined under

1A 39, the hedged items are kept at cost and are submitted to the valuation rufes
applicable to similar non-hedged items, i.¢. the recognition at the lower of cost or market
{IAS 2) for inventories, or the recognition of provisions for onerous contracts {IAS 37} for
physical commitments. {see also note 2.22 - IAS 39 impact).

When there is a consistent practice of trading of metals through the use of commodity
contracts by a dedicated subsidiary or a (GU of the Group 2nd by which the entity takes
delivery of the underlying asset to sell it within a short period after delivery for the
purpose of generating a profit from short-term fluctuaticns in price of trading margins,
the inventory is valued at fair value through the income statement and the related
physical and / or commodity commitments are classified as derivative and measyred at
fair value through the income statement.

2.21.2 Structural Risks - cash flow hedging

Derivative financial and commodity instruments used for the protection of future cash
flows are designated as hedges under cash-flow hedge accounting. The etfective portion
of changes in the fair value of hedging instrements which qualify as cash flow hedges
are recognized in the shareholders equity as hedging reserves until the underlying
forecasted or committed transactions occur {i.e. affect the income statement). At that
time the recognized gains and losses on the hedging instruments are transfesred from
equity to the income statement.

when a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, or if it is exercised before the
underlying forecasted or committed transactions occurred, the profit or loss is maintained
in equity until the hedged transactions occur.

If the hedged transactions are no longer probable or the hedges become ineffective, then
any gains or losses which were deferred in equity are immediately recognized in the
income statement.

In the absence of obtaining cash-flow hedge accounting at inception as defined under
IAS 39, then the fair value of the related hedging instruments is recognized in the
income staternent instead of the equity and this prior to the occurance of the underlying
forecasted or committed transactions. (see also note 2.22 - 1AS 39 impact).

5

2.21.3 Embedded derivatives

Executory contracts (the “host contract™) may sometimes contain embedded derivatives.
Embedded derivatives cause some or all of Lhe cash flows that would otherwise be
expected from the host contract, to be modified according to 3 specified interest rate,
financial instrument price, commaodity price, foreign exchange rate, or other variable.

if it is concluded that such a derivative is nat closely related to the host contract, it is
separated fram the host contract and accounted for under the rules of 1AS 39 (fair value
through profit or loss). The host contract is accounted for using the rules applicable to
executory contracts, which effectively means that such a contract is not recognized in the
balance sheet or profit and loss before defivery on the contract takes place. {see also
note 2.22 - 1AS 39 impact)
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2.22 NON-RECURRING RESULES AND IAS 39 EFFECT

Non-recurring results relate primarily to restructuring measures, impairment of assets
and other income or expenses afising from events of transactions that are clearty distinct
trom the ordinary activities of the company

145 39 effect relates to non-cash timing differences in revenue recognition due to the
non-application of or non-possibility of obtaining 145 39 hedge accounting at inception to

a) transactional hedges, which implies that hedged items can na longer be measured at
fair value and must be submitted to the valuation rules applicable te similar non-hedged
items, i.e. the recognition at the lower of cost or market (IAS 2) for inventories, of the
recognition of provisions for onerous contracts (IAS 37) for physical commitments

b} Structural hedges, which implies that the fair value of the related hedging instruments
are recognized in the income statement instead of equity and this priof to the occurance
of the underlying forecasted or committed transactions

©) Derivatives embedded in executory contracts, which implies that fair vafue on the
embedded derivatives are recognized in the income statement as opposed to the
execytory component where no fair value measurement s allowed.

Note 9 provides more details on these results.

3 Financial risk management

Each of the Group's activities is exposed to a variety of risks, including changes in
metal prices, foreign currency exchange rates, certain market-defined commercial
conditions, and interest rates as well as credit and liquidity risks, The Group’s overall
risk management programme seeks to minimize the adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Group by hedging most of these risks thiough the use of financial
and insurance instruments.

3.1 CURRENCY RISK

Umicore’s currency risk can be split into three distinct categories: structura), transactional
and translational risks. .

3.1.1  Strectural Risk

A portion of Umicore's revenues are structurally related to the US dollar (USD), while
many of the operations are located outside the USD zone (particutarly in Europe and
Asia). Any change in the USD exchange rate against the Euro of othes currencies which
are not pegged to the USD will have an impact on the company's results. The largest
portion of this currency exposure derives fram WSO denominated metals prices, which
have an impact on the value of surplus metal recovered from materials supplied for
treatment.

Umicore has a policy of hedging forward its structural curcency exposure, either in
conjunction with the hedging of structural metal price exposure of in isolation, when the
cutrency exchange rates or the metal price expressed in euros are above their historical
average and at 3 levei where attractive margins can be secured.

In the absence of any hedging of the non-metal-price-related structural USD exposure and
at prevailing exchange rates at the end of 2007, a strengthening of the USD by 1 US cent
towards the Euro gives rise to an increase in revenues and operating result in the order

of EUR 1 million on an annual basis. Conversely, a weakening of the dollar by 1 US cent
against the Euro gives rise to a decrease of the same magnitude on an annua! basis,

The sensitivity level is a short-term guide and is somewhat theoretical since the
exchange rate level often jmpacts changes in commercial conditions negotiated in USD
and elements outside Umicore’s control, such as the influence that the dallar exchange
rate may have on dollar-denaminated metals prices, movements in which have an effect
on Umicore’s earnings (see Metal Price Risk below). There is also a sensitivity to certain
ather currencies such as the 8razilian real, the Xorean won and the South African rand.

Structural currency hedging

Al the time of writing Umicore had no structural currency hedging in place relating o its
non-metal-price-refated currency sensitivity.

3.1.2  Transactional Risk

The company is alse subject to transactional risks in respect of currencies, i.e. the risk of
currency exchange rates fluctuating between the time the price is fixed with a customer
or supplier and the time the transaction is settled. The Group’s palicy is to hedge the
transactional risk to the maximum extent possible, primarily through forward contracts.

3.1.3  Translational Risk

Umicore is an international company and has foreign operations which do not have
the Euro as their functional currency. When the results and the balance sheets of
these operations are conselidated into Umicore’s Group accounts the translated
amount is exposed te variations in the value of such local currencies against the Euro,
predominantly the USD, the Brazilian real, the Karean won, the Chinese yuan and the
South African rand. Umicare principally does not hedge against such risk.
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3.2 METAL PRICE RISK

Umicore’s metal price risk can be split into three distinct categories: structural,
transactional and inventory risks,

3.2.1  Structural Risk

Umicore is exposed to structural metals-related price risks. Those risks relate mzinly to
the impact that metal prices have on surplus metals recovered from materials supplied
for treatment. Umicore has a policy of hedging such metal price exposure if forviard
melal prices expressed in Euros are above their historical average and at a level where
attractive margins can be secured. The extent to which metal price risk can be hedged
depends on the liquidity of the re evant markets.

The Precious Metals Services seqm ent recycles platinum, palladium, rhodium, gcld and
silver and approximately twelve other base and specialty metals such as indium and
selenium. In this segment the short-term sensitivity of revenues and operating profits

to metals prices is material. Howe /ey, given the variability of the raw-material fred

over lime and the variable duration of the supply contracts negotiated, it is not ;vitable
to provide a fixed sensitivity to any particular metal. In general terms, higher m :tals
prices tend to be earnings enhancing for the Precious Metals Services business. In Zing
Specialties and the cobalt activities of Advanced Materials there is an inherent sensitivity
to the zinc price and cobalt price raspectively. This relates primarily ta the recycing /
refining throughput of these metals in each business. In general terms a higher imetal
price carries short term benefits for the profitability of each business. However, other
commercial conditions which are lirgely independent of the metals price, such as product
premiums, are alsa significant and independent drivers of revenues and profitability. The
impact of price changes for the other metals and at other segments is not of paiticular
significance at Group level.

Structural metal price hedging

For some melals quoted on future: markets Umicore hedges part of its forward riefal
exposure. This hedging is based or documentation demonstrating a high probability of
future metal price based cash flow; originating from commercial contracts. In prior years
Umicore hedged part of its forwarc metal exposure for 2007 and 2008, In the course

of 2007, as a result of increased viiibility on future commercial agreements, Umiore
extended such hedges to cover part of the price risks far 2008 and 2009.

3.2.2 Transactional Risk

The Group faces transactional price risks an metals. The majority of its metal-basd
transactions use global metal market references, like the Londen Metal Exchange. If

the underlying metal price were to be constant, the price Umicare pays for the m etal
contained in the raw materials purchased would be passed through ta the custonier as
part of the price charged for the praduct. However, because of the lapse of time jetween
the conversion of purchased raw materials into products and the sale of products, the
volatility in the reference metal prize creates differences between the price paid ‘or the
contained metal and the price received. Accordingly, there is a transactional exposure to
any Auctuations in price between the moment raw materials are purchased (i.e., when
the metal is “priced in") and the moment the products are sold (i.e., when the metal is
“priced out™).

The Group's policy is to hedge the transactional risk to the maximum extent possible,
primarily through forward contracts

3.2.3 Metal inventory Risk

The group faces metal price risks or ils permanently tied up metal inventories. This risk is
related to the market metal price v oving below the carrying value of these inver tories,
Umicore tends not o hedge against this risk.

3.3 INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates relates to the Group’s financial debt
obligations. At the end of December 2007, the Group's gross financial debt stood it

EUR 397 million. As part of the management of its overall cost of funding, the Grcup had
hedged part of its interest rate risk 2xposure by entering into various interest rate swaps,
the notional amount of which stood at EUR 172 million at the end of December. Tris
amount is to be decreased to EUR 85 million an 31 March 2008, with the final ma:urity
date on 31 March 2009. As a result of the interest rate swaps contracted by Umiccre, and
taking inte account the debt instrum ents subject to fixed interest rates such as U icore’s
8-year bond issued in 2004, the por:ion of the financial debt subject to floating ra e
interest at the beginning of 2008 corresponds to 14% of the total gross financial debt.

3.4 (CREDIT RISK

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of non-payment from any counterparty in relation to sales of
goods or metal lease operations. In yrder to manage its credit exposure, Umicore has
determined a credit policy with cred t limit requests, approval procedures, continuuus
monitoring of the credit exposure and dunning precedure in case of delays.




The credit risk resulting from sales is, to a certain extent, covered by credit insurance,
|etters of credit or similar secure payment means. One global credil insurance contract
has been put in place on a warfd-wide basis. This contract protects the group companies
against insolvency, political and commercia! risks with an individual deductible per
invoice of 5%. The global indemnification cap is set at EUR 20 million per annum.

Umicore has determined that in a certain number of cases where the cost of credit
insurance is disproportionate in relation to the risk to be insured or where customer
concentiation is not compatible with the provisions of the existing credit insurance
contracts, no credit coverage will be sought.

It should be noted that some sizeable transactions, such as the sales of precious metals
by Precious Metals Services, have a limited credit risk s payment before delivery is a
widely accepted pratice.

Regarding its risk exposure to financial institutions like banks and brokers, Umicore is also
establishing internal credit fines. Specific limits are set, per financial instrument, covering
the various risks to which it is exposed when transacting with such counterparties.

In 2000, Umicore entered into a securitization program with a major international
bank through which it sold its trade receivables on a recurring, non-recourse basis.
This program, with a maximum coverage of EUR 125 million, expired at the end of
October 2007.

3.5 LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is addressed by maintaining a sufficient degree of diversification of funding
sources. These include committed and uncommitted short-tesm bilateral bank facilities,
2 medium-term syndicated bank facility and a commercial paper programme (the
maximum amount of which was increased to EUR 300 million in May 2006), in addition
to the 8-year EUR 150 million bond issued in 2004,

3.6 (apital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability o continue as
a going concern, 1o provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may for example adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, buy back its
own shares or issue new shares.

The group monitors its capital structure primarily on the basis of the gearing ratio. The
ratio is calculated as net financiat debt divided by the sum of net financial debt and total
Group equity. Net financial debt is calculated as non-current financial debt plus current
financial debt less cash and cash equivalents and loans granted in a non-operating
context.

The Group aims Lo retain the equivalent of an investment-grade credit rating. tn this
context, the Group’s strategy in a normal operating envirenment is to maintain the
gearing ratio at a level under 50%. The Group would consider exceeding this level for
a shost period in the case of an extraordinary event, such as a major acquisition. The
gearing ratios at 31 December 2007 and 2006 were as follows (in EUR million):

2007 2006
Net financial debn 130.00 77310
Equity 1,532.80 988.10
Total 1,662.80 1,761.20
Gearing ratio 7.80% 43.90%

The net financial debt at the end of 2007 was well below that at the end of 2006, due
to the cash inflow received from the Nyrstar PO towards the end of the year and the
strang cash generation of the continued operatiens during the course of the year. Equity
increased during the year due to significantly higher net eamings fer the year {primarily
due 1o the contribution from discontinued operations) and fair valve movements.

This combination of lower debt and higher equity meant that the gearing ratio was
significantly lower year-on-year.

3.7 STRATEGIC AND OPERATIONAL RISK

Umicore faces certain strategic and operational risks that are not necessasily financial in
nature but which have the potential to impact the financial performance of the Group.
These include supply risk, technology risk, the risk of product substitution by customers
and climate change risk. Please refer to the Risk Management pages of the Corporate
Governance section (page 139 to 140} for 3 description of these risks and an outline of
Umicore’s general approach o risk management.

4 (ritical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments used in developing and applying the consolidated entity’s
financial statements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and othes factors, including the expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

Assumptions and estimates are applied when:
- Assessing the need for and measurement of impairment losses,
- Accounting for pension obligations,

Recognizing and measuring provisions for tax, environmental, warranty and litigatian
fisks, product returns, and restructuring,

- Determining inventory write-downs,
- Assessing the extent to which deferred tax assets will be realized,
- Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and tntangible assets excluding goodwill

The writical estimates and judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilities within the next financial year
are listed below

4.1 IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The recoverable amount of each cash generating unit is determined as the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use in accordance with the accounting
policy. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions such as discount
rates, exchange rates, commodity prices future capital requirements and future aperating
performance. As at 31 December 2007 the carrying amount of the goodwill for the
consolidated entity is EUR 94,510 thousand {EUR 92,377 thousand in 2006)-refer to

Note 15.

4.2  REHABILITATION OBLIGATIONS

Provision is made for the anticipated costs of future rehabilitation of industrial sites

and surrounding areas to the extent that a legal or constructive obligation exists in
accordance with accounting policy 2.15. These provisions include future cost estimates
associated with reclamation, plant closures, waste site closures, monitoring, demolition,
decontamination, water purification and permanent sterage of historical residues. These
future cost estimates are discounted o their present value. The calculation of these
provision estimates requires assemptions such as application of envircnmental legislation,
plant closure dates, available technologies and engineering cost estimates. A change

in any of the assumptions used may have a material impact on the carrying value of
rehabilitation provisions, As at 31 December 2007, the carrying amount of rehabilitation
pravisions is EUR 106,011 thousand (EUR 100,910 thousand in 2006)-refes to Note 29.

4.3 DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

An asset or liability in respect of defined benefit plan is recognized on the balance
sheet in accordance with accounting policy 2.16. The present value of 3 defined
benefit obligation is dependent upon a number of factors that are determined on

an actuarial basis. The consolidated entity determines the appropriate discount rate

10 be used at the end of each year. The consolidated entily’s employee benefit
obligations are discussed in more detail in Note 27. At 31 December 2007, a liability
with respect to employee benefit obligations of EUR 171,796 thousand was recognized
{EUR 215,665 thousand in 2006).

4.4 RECOVERY OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, unused tax

losses and fair value reserves entries anly if it is probable that future taxable profits

are available to use those temporary differences and losses. The actual tax results in
future periods may ditfer from the estimate made at the time the deferred taxes are
fecagnized.

Othey assumptions and estimates are disclosed in the respective notes relevant to the
itern where the assumptions or estimates were used for measurement.
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5 Group companies

Below is a list of the main operating companies included in the consolidated financial statements:

% interest 2007 % interest 2007
Argentina  Umicore Argentina S.A. 100.00 Hungary Umicore Building Froducts Hungary l_"'1_00.00
Australia Umicore Australia Ltd. 100.00 Italy Umicore Markeling Services Italia s.rl. 100.00
Umicore Marketing Services Australia 100.00 Ialbras S.p.A. 1100.00
Austria Oequssa GmbH 90.89 Japan Urnicore japan [100.00
Belgium Umicore Financial Services 5.A. (BE 428.179.081) 100.00 Korea Umicore Korea Ltd, }100.00
Umicore Oxyde Belgium N.V. {BE 438.933.809) 100.00 . Umicare Markeling Services Korea Co., Ltd. ‘,'100.00
Urnicore Autocatalyst Recycling Belgium N.V. (BE 466.261.083) | 100.00 Liechtenstein Umicore Materials AG 1100.00
Umicore Marketing Services Belgium S.A. (BE 402.964.625) 100.00 Luxemburg  Umicore Finance Luxemburg j100.00
Umicare Abrasives (BE 881.426.726) 100.00 Umicore Autocat £t xembourg /10000
Umicore Specialty Materials Brugge (BE 0405.150.984) 100.00 Malaysia Umicore Malaysia *dn Bhd jﬁqo.oo
Brazil Coimpa Industiial Ltda 100.00 Netherlands  Schine Edelmetaal BV 90.80
Umicore Brazil Lida 100.00 YUmicore Nederland BV :100.00
(anada Umicore Canada Ing. 100.00 Norway Umicore Norway A% ‘ioo.oo
Umicore Autocat Canada Corp. 100.00 Philippines  Umicore Specialty Jaterials Subic Inc. _] 78.20
Imperial Smelting & Refining Co. of Canada Ltd. 100.00 Polska Umicore Marketing Services Polska ‘ 00.00
China Hunan Fuhong Zinc Industrial Co., Ltd. 100.00 Portugal Umicore Portugal S.A. '100.00
Urnicore Marketing Services Shanghai Co,, Ltd. 100.00 Umicore Marketing Services Lusitana Lda '100.00
Umicore Marketing Services Far East Ltd. 100,00 Singapore  Umicore Precious Metals Singapare Pte Ltd. 00.00
Umicore Shanghai Co., Ltd. 75.00 South Africa  Umicore South Africa (Pty) Ltd. : j00.00 |
Umicore Specialty Oxides Shanghai Co. Ltd. . 100.00 Umnicore Autocat South Africa (Pty) Ltd. 155.00
Umicore Aulocat China Co. Lid. 100.00 Umicore Markeling Services Africa "[00.00
Unniicore Technical Materials Suzhoy 100.00 Umnicore Catalyst South Atrica 1100.00
Umnicore Technical Materials Yangzhong 100.00 Spain Umicore BP iberica 5.1, 100,00
Juc 60.00 sweden  Umicore Autocat Sweden AB '{00.00
Umicore Optical Materials Kunming 60.00 Switzedand  Umicore Switzerland Strub lioo.00
Umicore Optical Materials Yunnan 100.00 Taiwan Umicare Materials Taiwan Co., Ltd. _j U-lﬁa—
Beijing Jubo Photoelectric Technology Co 30.00 Thailand Umicare Markeling services Thailand Co,, Ltd. 3 00.00
France Umicore France 5.A.5. 100.00 Umicore Precious M>2tals Thailand Ltd. 90.80
Umicore Climeta 5.A.5. 100.¢0 United
Umicore IR Glass S.A. 99.98 Kingdom Umicore Coating Services Ltd. $00.00
Umicare Marketing Services France 100.00 Umicore Marketing tervices UK Ltd 1 PQ&
Umicore Autocat France 100.00 UsA Umicore USA Inc. . 1po.oo
Germany  Ummicore AG & Co. KG (%) 100.00 Ummicore Autocat USi inc. I 100.00
Umicore Bausysteme GmbH 100.00 Umicore Building Products USA Inc. 00.00
Umicore Marketing Services Deutschland GmbH 100.00 Umicore Precious Metals NJ LLC D0.00
* Allgemeine Gold- und Silberscheideanstalt AG 90.80 Umicore Marketing ¢ ervices USA Inc. 100.00
Umicore Galvanotechnik GmbH 50.80 Umicore Optical Mat arials Inc. (0.00
benneman GmbH 100.00 Umicore Technica! Materials North America i 10000

An exhaustive list of the Group companies with their registered offices will be filed at the
Belgian Natienal Bank together with the consolidated financial statements.

6 Foreign currency measurement

For the main currencies applicable within the Group's tonsolidated entities and
investments, the prevailing rates used for translation into the Group's presentation

(™) As a result of the integration of Yrnicore AG & Co. KG in the consolidated accounts of
Umicore which is compliant with the Section 325 of the German Commercial Code (HGB),
this company ks exempted from is-uing consolidated financial statements according to
Article 264b of the German Commrcial Code.

currency (EUR), are as set out below. All subsidiaries, assodiates and joint-ventures have
as functional currency the currenty of the country in which they operate, except for

Elernent Six Abrasives (Ireland} where the functional currency is the US dollar.

(losing Rates

Average Rates

2006 2007 2006 2007
American Dollar UsD 1.31700 1.47210 1.25560 137048
UX Pound Sterling GBP 0.67150 0.73335 0.68173 0.68434
(anadian Dollar (AD 1.52810 1.44490 1.42369 1.46785
Swiss Franc CHF 1.606%30 1.65470 157288 1.64272
Japanese Yen JPY 156,93000 164,93000 146.01533 161.25263
Brazilian Real 8RL 2.81575 2.60753 2.74253 2.67486
South African Rand 1IAR 9.21240 10.02980 8.53118 9.65959
Chinese Yuan {NY 10.27930 10.75240 10.00956 10.41782
Thai Baht THB 46.77000 43.80000 47.59363 44,2139%
Korean Won (100} KRW 12.24810 13.77960 11.98581 12.72988
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7 Segment Information

PRIMARY SEGMENT INFORMATION 2006 (by business group)

(€ thousand)
Precious
Metals Precious
Advanced Products & Metals Zinc
Materials Catalysts Services Specialties Corporate  Unallocated Total
Total segment turnover 605,257 2,702,764 4,379,937 982,924 108,587 (577,755) 8,205,713
of which external turnover 606,361 2,502,158 4,005,683 982,924 108,587 8,205,713
of which inter-segment turnover 2,895 200,606 374,254 (577,755)
Operating result 3,420 127,002 121,503 38,211 (28,697) 281,449
Recurring 305N 129,887 131,293 43922 {44,603) 291,070 |
Non-recurring (5,779) (820) (12,500) {813) 15,906 - (‘d,(lgﬂ1
IAS 39 effect {1,372) {2,065) 2,710 {4,888) {5.615)
Equity method companies 20,202 5,240 6,718 32,159
Recurring 12,290 9,126 6118 38,134
Non-recurring {1,442) (3,886) {5,328)
1AS 39 effeqt {645) {646)
Net financial cost {43,660} {43,660)
Income taxes {49,771) (45,171} |
Minority interest (4,925) (4,925}
Net profit for the year 39,849 97,404 125,358 20,055 {69,012) (17,806) 195,848
Consolidated total assets 505,092 1,083,732 604,765 1,291,726 12,599 278,035 3,775,949
Segment assets 398,179 1,040,545 604,765 1,229,574 12,599 3,285,662
Investments in associates 106,913 43,186 62,153 212,252
Unallocated assets 278,036 278,036
Consolidated total liabilities 140,060 407,295 BN 512,139 (22,538) 1,422,530 2,787,806
Segment liabilities 140,060 407,295 32831 512,139 {22,538} 1,365,276
Unallocated liabilities 1,422,530 1,422,530
Capital expenditure 15,777 32,715 20,386 25,190 13,625 108,193
Oepreciation and amortization 24,447 35,391 29,186 9,706 9,161 107,891
Non-tash expenses other than depreciation 3,866 5,568 7,518 8,668 2,637 18,157
Impairment losses,/ {Reversal of impairment losses) 5,205 7,855 4,233 3,222 765 1,279
SECONDARY SEGMENT INFORMATION (by geographical area)
(€ thousand)
North South
Europe Asia-Pacific America America Africa Total
Total segment turnover 5,770,941 843,052 962,365 279,745 349,610 8,205,713
Total assets 2,977,351 384,185 189,795 132,068 92,550 3,775,949
Capital expenditure 87,095 7,898 §,755 5,803 1,642 108,193
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PRIMARY SEGMENT INFORMATION 2007 (by business group)

- J%Pousand!
Precious .
Metals Precious .‘
Advanced Products & Metals Zirc |’
Materials Catalysts Services Spedialties Corporate  Unallocated . Total
Total segment turnover 778,445 3,075,651 3,883,681 1,086,521 76,749 (591,13%) 8,;09,909
of which external turnover 770,671 2,940,790 3,465,567 1,056,131 76,749 | s,j 09,909
of which inter-segment turnover AL 134,861 418,114 30,390 {591,139} | ;
Qperating result 32,33% 145,364 128,892 34,634 {32,234) ! 108,954
Recurring 37,589 156,526 133,933 41,683 (37,42%) ! 132,310
Non-recurring (3,167) {10,961) {4,201) {11,190) 5,187 ! 124333) }
- 1S 39 effect {2,083) (200) (840) 4,141 (1,017
Equity method companies 20,691 6,030 18 {1,452) 125,455
Recurring 22,624 5422 18 (1,452} ! 126,780
Non-recuiring {4,889) 608 {4,281)
15 39 effect 2,956 %L 2,956
Net financial cost (40,434) {10,434)
Income taxes (57,460) (57,460)
Minarity interest {9,299) 1£9,299)
Net profit for the year 52,119 108,360 132,902 (18,218} 383,470 {5,551) 633,083
Consolidated total assets 601,204 1,204,451 621,199 506,556 18,792 332,124 3,215,323
Segment assets 489,782 1,164,123 621,199 488,665 19,725 2,7:‘ 3,495
Investments in assotiates 111,422 40,327 17,891 67 2,435 1!:;9,706 )
Unallocated assets 332124 382,124
Consclidated total liabilities 234,809 378,558 419,512 192,094 (41,951) 2,100,280 3,215,303
Segment liabiiities 236,809 378,558 419,532 192,096 (41,951} 1,115,043
Unallocated liabilities 2,100,280 2,110,280
Capital expenditure 18,736 40,815 52,148 25,515 15,692 12,907 !
Depreciation and amortization 2,18 33,626 32,694 16,258 5524 13,28
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation 2,011 11,981 9,148 (1,774} 43,950 {8,315 ;
impairment lesses/ {Reversal of impairment losses) 2112 594 2573 12,438 (1,985) i5,752 ¢
SECONDARY SEGMENT INFORMATION (by geographical area)
{€ thyusand
North South |
Europe Asia-Pacific America America Afria "Total !
Tota! segment turnover 5,314,147 1,051,443 1,193, 11 A0 428112 8,301,909 :
Total assets 2,482,989 387,934 164,580 134,266 115,504 3,28!.@323 '
Capital expenditure 128,514 7,543 7,635 7,105 2,110 151,907

Seqment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical
segments,

The primary segmentation reflects the business organization. The selected segments
correspond to the business groups, as defined belaw.

The secondary segment is the geographical view whereby the turnover is presented
according to the geographical location of the customers, while assets and investments
are presented according to their actual geographical location.

The segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to the
segment as well as those elements that can reasonably be allocated to a segment.

The pricing of inter-segment sales is based on an arm’s length transter pricing system.
In the absence of relevant market price references, “cost plus™ mechanisms are used.

Business segments
The Group is organized into the following business groups:

Advanced Materials includes the units Cobalt Specialty Materials, Electro-Optic Materials
and Electronic Materials. The business group also includes Umicore’s shareholding in
Element Six Abrasives {Ireland).

Precious Metals Products and Catalysts incfudes the Automotive Catalysts, Thin Film
Products, jewellery & Electroplating, Catafyst Technologies and Technical Materials
business units.

94 / Umicore / Annual Report 2007

Precious Metals Services includes the Precious Metals Refining and the Precious ¥etals
Management business units.

Tint Spetialties intludes Zinc Chemi-als, Building Products and the Zinc Battery Miterials
business units. The former Zinc Alloys unit was transferred to Nyrstar, and the remaining
shareholding in Padaeng Industries Itd (Thailand) is reported as a discontinued oparation
{see note 39),

Corporate covers corporate activities as well as some shared services and the central
Research, Development & Innevation unit.

This disclosure only refers to continuing operations.

Associate companies are allocated ¢ the business group with the closest fit frem
market segment perspective.




8 Business combinations and acquisitions of
associates and joint-ventures

Acquisitions (€ thousand)
Motes Fair value
Non Current Assets 26512 .
Current Assets 112,269
Non Current viabilities 109% |
Current Liabilities 44,190
Net assets acquired 83,595
Group share in net assets acquired 82,81 !
Goodwill 15 8,630
Negative goodwil! 15 (2,844)
Purchase price {88,707)
Non-cash consideration 884
Purchase price in cash (87,823}
Net cash & cash equivalent acquired 5,508
Net cash out for acquistion of subsidiaries (82,315)

In January 2007 Umicore acquired the business of a US based contact materials producer
Ames Electro Materials Corp. (AEMC) - a subsidiary of Ames Goldsmith Corp. at Glens
Falls, NY. The company has been fully integrated into the in Umicore’s Technical Materials
business unit and operates under the name Umicore Technica) Materials Narth America.

In August 2006, Umicore acquired 80% of the shares of Beijing JuBo Photoelectric
Technology Co,, a Chinese supplier of optical coating materials, The acquisition of JuBo,
was finalized on 15 January and has been fully integrated in Umicore’s Thin Film Products
business unit and operates under the name Beijing JuBo Photoeectric Technalogy Co.

On 1 October 2007 Umicore acquired the automotive catalyst business of Delphi Corp. As
part of the transaction, Umicore has acquired, amon? other elements, manufacturing and
research facilities in Tulsa (Umicore Aulocat USA - Tulsa division, US), Florange {Umicore
Autocat France, France) and Port Elizabeth (Umicore Catalyst South Africa, South Africa).
Umicore has a 100% stake in those subsidiaries which have been fully integrated in the
Automotive Catalyst business unit.

9 Result from operating activities

In November 2007, Umicore reached an agreement to acquire Imperial Smelting &
Refining Co. of Canada Ltd,, located in Toronto, Canada. Imperial is the leading supplier
of precious metal products and recycling services for the jewellery industry in Canada
and also supplies the US market. Imperial will continue to trade under the same name
and will be fully integrated in Umicore's Jewellery and Efectroplating business unit. As
imperial Smelting has been acquired and consolidated at the very end of the finandal
year, the fair value exercise has not been finalized yet and therefore the related goodwill

is subjected to changes in 2008,

Since their inclusion in the consolidated financial statements of the group, the
aggregated total loss of the period (Group share) of those investments is amounts to
EUR 2,906 thousand in 2007. It is not praticable to disclose the 12 menths results of the
acquired companies. An aggregrated amount of approximately EUR 4 million for costs of

acquisition has been included in the purchase price.

(€ thousand)

31/12/06 nA 0
TURNOVER
Sales 8,131,870 8,232,339
Services 73,844 77,570
Turnaver 8,205,713 8,309,909
OTHER OPERATING INCOME @ 101,916 129,851 |
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT RESULT
Depreciation of fixed assets (114,452) {113,283}
Impairment loss on fixed assels {7,613) (8,074) |
Inventary and bad debt provisions {9,175) (7,677)
Depreciation and impairment result {131,240) (129,035)
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (4)
Services and outsourced refining and production costs (343,986) {352,436)
Royalties, licence fees, consulting and commissions {37,281) {29,382)
Other operating expenses {10,690) {7,407}
Increase and decrease in provisions {41,658) (72,617)
Use of provisions 14,599 19,615
Capital losses on disposal of assets (2,995) {1,734)

{422,011) {443,960)

(1) Services mainly include the revenues from tolling contracts.

(2) Other operating income mainly includes re-invaicing of costs to third parties
(EUR 74.8 million), result on financial instruments (EUR 12 million), gains on disposals of
fixed assets (EUR 3.7 miltion), negative goodwill directly taken into result (EUR 2.9 million}
royalties and license fees (EUR 16.3 million), operating grants (EUR 2.9 million) and other
intome of EUR 6.2 million linked to the sale of the gold mining concession in Guinea by
Urnicore in 1992. EUR 9.8 million is also linked to the Nyrstar set-up agreements, whereby
Urnicore bought back the Calais site in France, including its related rehabilitation fiabilities,
immediately prior to the creation of Myrstar at the end of August. Umicore obtained
campensatian for the same amount for taking over these liabilities

(3} Impairment losses on fixed assets are mainly due to the decisian to relocate the
Guarulhos facilities to Americana (Brazil) and to the decrease of activities in at Umicore
Autocat Canada linked to the expiry of a significant contract in the North American market.

{4} R&D expenses for the Group In 2007 amounted to EUR 124.5 millien (EUR 110.3 million
in 2006), of which EUR 110.8 million criginated in the fully conselidated companies

{EUR 98.3 million in 2006).
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Non-recurring results and 1AS 39 impact included in the operating results
{€ “housand)
f

2006 2007 Il
Total Non-recuring  1AS 39 effect Recurring Total  Non-recurring  1AS 39 effect Ialr‘&curring

Turnover 8,205,713 60 8205653 | 8,309,909 . AN8 310569 |
Other operating income 101,916 N,503 {23,490} 103,903 129,851 10,627 11,783 ,5,441
Operating income 8,307,629 21,503 (23,425) 8309556 | 8439761 10627 16001 813133 |
Raw materials and consumables used (6,979,320) {115) 30,506 (7.005,731) [ (7.039,3%1) (1818)  (1.654) (7,',' E)gp) )
Payroll and related benefits (504,727) {269) (s0a458) | (sa6dre)  (1133) (s34
Depreciation and impairment results (131,240) {8,555) (346} (122,339) {129,035) {17945) 1,740 ( 12,830)
Other operating expenses (422,011} (26,265) {12,347) (383,399) (443,950) {40,777) {5,070} (i198,113)
Operating expenses (8,037,298) (35,204) 17,613 (8,019,908) | (8,158,850) {61,673) (14,984)  (8082,.203)
Income from other financial investments 11,118 9,69 1,422 28,094 26714 [ 1,380
RESULT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 281,449 {4,005) (5,615) 291,070 308,974 (24,333) 1,007 32,310
Umicore incurred an overall non-recurring operating charge of EUR 24.3 million. Total restructuring provisions total ed EUR 12.7 million relating primarily to the ralocation
The sale of the Cumerio and Nymex shares generated an income of EUR 26.7 million of the Guaruthos activities in Brazil to a new site in Americana,
(SEE.KTIE impacltron available—fo.rl-rsale ﬁ"andil as.set;in nate :'8)' i Other non-recurring items show a negative balance of EUR 2.1 million.

. W r n - , e
ot Ml sl e Gen oy kg, L tatavodte e penlon el ol ot e

An impairment of EUR 10.1 million was made on zinc inventories. 1A5 39 effects are non-cash in nature.

10 Payroll and related benefits

(€ thoysand)

Notes  31/12/06 njn/01
Payroll and related benefits I
Wages, salaries and direct social advantages (352574) + (3"2L71_)
Employer's social security and defined benefit cantributions (107,127) Qj 9,367)
Other charges for personnel {27,491) J 2,9_4§)
Temporary staff (10239) | ([3.495) |
- Contribution to defined contribution plan (L813) | [o0)
employer's voluntary contributions {other) {1,298) _" ﬁ,m) )
Share-based payments (7,449) 5,473)
Pensions paid directly to beneficiaries {7,892) 7,081)
Provisians for employee benefits (-increase / + use and reversals) 1217 | __3{1_,21_
(504,727) (546,475)
Average headcount in consolidated companies i
Executives and managerial staff 1,326 !;1 537
Non managers 8,142 7,503
TOTAL 9,468 9,440
Fair values of the options granted f |
Number of stock options granted . 28 732,625 12,750 |
Valuation model Present Econgmic Valu
Assumed volatility {% pa} B | -‘11';. 2
Risk-free interest rate (% pa) 135 ' 400
Monetary dividend increase (€ pa) 0.08 7__" 0.10
Rate of pre-vesting forfeiture NA i ;[_NA_ _
Rate of post-vesting leaving (% pa) 5.00 _‘w} 500
Minimum gain threshold (% pa) 50.00 ;’m ;
Proportion who exercise given minimum gain achieved (% pa) 30.00 30.00
Fair value per granted instrument determined at the grant date (€) 6.61 | 7.55
Yotal fair value of the options granted (€ thousand) 4,841 5,606
Transfer to discontinved {187) 1(340)

96 / Umicore / Annual Repart 2007




(€ thousand)

Fair values of the shares granted 31/12/08 31/12/07
47,000 shares granted at 21,52 EUR 1,01

7,500 shares granted al 23.00 EUR 173

58,750 shares granted at 25.02 FUR 1,687 17)
16,100 shares granied at 26.31 EUR 424
Total fair value of shares granted 2,871 207
Transfer to discontinued {76}

The item Waqes, salaries and direct social advantages in 2007 includes a positive impact
of EUR 9.6 million that concerns the accrued indemnification that Umicore France will
receive from Nyrstar with regard to the take over of all medical plan liabilities of retirees
from Un)\icore Zinc Alloys France as foreseen in the Nyrstar set-up agreement (see also
nate 27).

The Group recognized a share-based payment expense of EUR 5,473 thousand during
the year. The stock option plan part of this expense is calculated by an external actuary,
using the Present Economic Value model which takes into account all features of the
stock option plans and the volatility of the underlying stock. This volatility has been
determined using the historical volatility of the Group shareholders return over different

11 Finance cost - net

averaging periods and different terms. No other market condition has been included on
the basis of calculation of fair market value.

The free share part of the expense is valued at the markel price of the shares at the
grant date. In 2006 the group recognized an amount of EUR 1,687 thousand regarding
65,500 shares that had been initially ofered to the top management. In the course of
2007, 58,750 of those shares have been accepted and effectively granted. This resulted in
a reduction of the original cost of EUR 217 thousand.

In 2007 an extra 16,100 shares have been granted to top management resulting in an
extra charge of EUR 424 thousands.

(€ thousand)
31/12/06 31/12/07
Interest income 10,594 16,135
Interest expenses {40,835) (43,612)
Discounting of non-current provisions (7.424) {4541) |
Foreign exchange gains and losses (265) {5,278)
Other financial income 1,444 4,149
Gther financial expenses (7,175) (7,287)
(43,660) {40,434)

The net interest charge in 2007 totalled EUR 27,477 thousand. This is somewhat down
compared to the EUR 30,241 thousand of 2006 as a result of lower indebiedness towards
the end of the year.

The discounting of non-current provisions relates mainly to employee benefits and, to a
lesser extent, environmental provisions and provisians for other liabilities and charges.
This amount is influenced by the present value of these liabilities which in tum is
influenced by changes in the discount rate, by the cash-out profile and by the recognition
of new non-current liabilities. Most of the discounting results in 2007 are booked in
Belgium and France

12 Income from other financial investments

Foreign exchange results include realized exchange results and the unrealized translation
adjustments to monetary items using the closing rate of the period. They also include fair
value gains and fosses an other currency finandial instruments (see Note 32). Most of the
foreign exchange results in 2007 were recorded in Belgium, Canada and Brazll

Other financial income in 2007 contains reversals on interest charge provisions on closed
tax litigations files in Brazil, Other financial expenses indlude payment discounts, bank

. expenses ang other financial fees incurred

{€ thousand)
31/12/06 3t/12/07
Capital gains and losses on disposal of financial investments 12,766 n20m
Dividend income 1,284 1,79
Interest income from financial assets 13 _ 37
Impairment results on financial investments (3,056) {816)
11,118 28,094

In 2007, the capila! gains on disposal of financial investmenis are mainly due to the sale
of Cumerio and Nymex shares.

The impairment results on finandal investments relate to the impairment loss on the
Pangaea and (MEA investments.
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13 Income taxes

(€ thousand)
Income 1ax expense 31/12/06 L 3107 |
Recognized in the income statement | .
Current income tax (62,903) (€1730) |
Delerved income tax 13,132 10270
Total tax expense {43, 71) (514;460)
Relationship between tax expense (income) and accounting profit [
Result from operating activities 281,449 308994 .
Finangial result {43,660) (40}434)
Profit (loss) before income tax of consolidated companies 237,788 268560
Weighted average theoretical tax rate 31.00% 28.33%
Income tax calculated at the weighted average theoretical {ax rate (73,723) (77:429)
—
Tax effect of: :
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (23,521) (12326)
intome not subjected to tax: 5,237 1919
Capital gains 4815 7919
Others 422 I
Sundry deduction from the taxable base: 45,6713 33,'052
Investments (39) i134)
Notional interests deduction 24,718 24 940
Qther dedugtions . , 20,995 4245
Tax computed on other basis 8128 594
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 27543 2185
Tax lfosses for the period for which no deferred tax is recognised (2,745) (3.609)
Non-creditable foreign withhelding taxes {972) (2;_038)
Previous years correclions (2,540) i:632)
Other {32,851) (5,176}
Tax expense at the effective tax rate for the year (49,771) (57,460)
Extluding the impact of non-recurring items and of the 145 39 effect, the recurring The amount of the benefit from ¢ previously unrecognized tax loss, tax credit o
effective tax rate for 2007 is 28.7% compared to 27.6% in 2006. temporary difference of a prior prricd that is used to reduce deferred tax expense

The line *Other” is mainly due to the unrecognized deferred tax assets on the difference amaunts to EUR 725 thousand.

between the elimination of dividends on consalidated companies and the dividend
deduction in the tax return of the mother company.
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14 Intangible assets other than goodwill

(€ thousand})
Concessions,
patents, licences, (0, emission  Other intangible
eit. Software rights assets Totat
At the beginning of 2006
Gross value 7,332 59,428 3,377 11,135 81,272
Accumulated amontization {4,554) (43,133) (9,949) (57,638)
Net book value at the beginning of 2006 2,778 16,295 3317 1,186 13,636
- additions 52 1,047 1,713 1,480 4,102
- disposals 753 (3,402) 554 (@
- amartization charged {included in “Depreciation and impairments”) (955) (6,391) (2719) (7,625}
- reversal of amortization
- impairment losses recognized
(included in “Depreciation and impairments”™) (4,491) (4,491)
- reversal of impairment loss {included in “Other operating income™)
- emission fights allowances 4,549 4,549
- transfation adjustments (8) (164) (4) ()
- other movements (94) 1,630 (1,277 259
At the end of 2006 1,172 13,170 1,755 1,660 18,357
Gross value 8,152 60,322 6,246 8,872 83,592
Accumulated amortization (6,380) {47,152) {4,491) {.12) (45,235)
Net book value at the end of 2006 1,712 13,170 1,755 1,660 18,357
- discontinued activities in opening (252) (729) (9_8L)
- acquisitions through business combinations (481) (431)
- additions 216 1,360 2,429 4,005
- disposals (3 (914) m
- amortization charged {included in “Oepreciation and impairments”) (862) (7.137) (277) (S,Zlgl
- feversal of amortization
- impairment losses recognized (induded in *Depreciation and impairments”) (13) (403) (416)
- reversal of impairment loss (included in *Other operating income™)
- emission rights allowances 293 293
- translation adjustments (24) 24
- other movements 6,730 (557) ﬂ
At the end of 2007 ) 1,126 13,831 k| 2,197 17,7157
Gross value 8335 64,413 759 7,876 81,382
Accumulated amortization {7,209) (50,581) {755) (5,079) (63,624)
NET BOOK VALUE 1,126 13,831 3 2,797 17,757
The line “Additions” includes own production for EUR 69 thousand in 2007 (2005-2007). Each year, at the end of February, ene third of these emission rights is put
(EUR 688 thousand in 2006). on an official register. This release of emission rights is capitalized in the intangible assets

in line with guidance of the Belgian Accounting Standards Commission. Umicore owns the
required rights to ensure its normal operating activities. At the dosing balance the owned
fights have been impaired to reflect their market value.

There are no pledges on, or restrictions to, the title on intangible assets, other than
disclosed in note 34.

The line *Disposals” is mainly composed of the amount of emission rights that Umicore
has used during the period.

within the framework of the Kyoto protecol, the EU emission trading system was put in
place in 2005. As a result, the Flemish Government granted a number of emission rights
to the Flemish sites of certain companies, including Umicore, covering a period of 3 years
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15 Goodwill

{€ thousand)

31/12/06 o7
At the end of the preceding financial year !
Gross value 92,781 92,377
. J} —
Impairment losses )i
NET BOCK VALUE OF THE PRECEDING FINANCIAL YEAR 92,781 9‘ _,127__‘
- discontinued operations in opening _‘ ,312) |
- acquisitions through business combinations 1,120 I i
- translation adjustments (1,536) ,233)*‘
- other movements 12
L
——t
At the end of the finantial year 92,3717 21,510
Gross value 92317 S}" 510 |
Accumulated impairment losses I
NET BOOK VALUE 92377 9i(,510

This table includes goodwill related-to fully consolidated companies only, while goodwill
relating to companies accounted for by the equity method is detailed in note 17.

The change of the period mainly relates to qoodwill recognized on the acquisitions
described in Note 8. A negative goadwill of EUR 2.9 million has also been recognized

and immediately booked as a prok.t in the income statement {(under the item “Cther
operating income”).

The goodwill has been allocated to the primary segments as follow:

{€ tl ousand
Pratious '
Metals Precious
Advanced Products & Melals tinc
Materials Catalysts Services Specialties Total
31/12/ 1006 10,387 54,576 9,384 17,570 1317
31/12/1007 12,645 59,599 9,844 12411 94,510

Management tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 2. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units to which goadwill is allocated have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations by means of discounted cash-flow modeling on the basis of the Group’s
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eperational plans. The weighted average cost of capital which is used as discount'ng
factor is adjusted to the situation of each business segment and is at least 9% pri:-tax
based.




16 Property, plant and equipment

(€ thousand)
Plant, Construction
machinery Other in progress
Land and and  Furniture and tangible  and advance
buildings equipment vehicles assets payments Tatal
At the beginning of 2006 |
Gross value 552,434 1,530,973 167,826 75,009 65,245 23_‘:[1‘481_1
Accumulated amortization (320,596)  (1,159,764) {124,595) (73,736} {1,678,691)
Net book value at the beginning of 2006 231,838 3N, 209 2321 1,274 65,245 712,796 |
- atquisitions through business combinations 12,758 15,595 28 1,000 1,172 30,612 |
- additions 10,276 33,327 10,524 573 78,610 133,311
- disposals {1,147 {7.262) {2,359) (29) (1,203) {12,000}
- depreciations {included in “Depreciation and impairments™) (20,751} {91,805) {13,625} (572) (LIg,_?EL
- impairment losses recognized (included in “Depreciation and impairments”) {1,302) (6,824 (48) (B,WQ‘
- reversal of impaisment loss {incuded in “Other operating income”) 160 150 20 3
- translation adjustments {3,768) (5,923} (463) (11) (1,759) {11,923)
- other movements 10,238 55,486 4,349 s sy (1))
At the end of 2006 238,301 363,953 41,716 2,076 70,340 L 71§,386 ﬁ
Gross valve 582,471 1,554,003 166,678 18,319 70,340 2,391,811
Acounylated amortization {342,170} (1,190,049) {124,962) (16,243) (1,_6_':‘_5,‘12?)W
Net book value at the end of 2006 138,301 363,953 41,716 2,076 70,340 716,3£
- impact of discontinued activities (33,277) (85,315) {2,082) 4 {14,693} (135&7%
- a(quisitions through business combinations 6,746 14,876 17 912 22,551 |
- additions 8,735 19,909 8,885 596 100,776 148,902
- disposals {5,650) {1,757) {1,038) {149) (8,594)
- depreciations (included in “Depreciation and impairments”™} {17,305) (74,454) {12,634} (614) {105,007
- impairment Josses recognized {included in “Depreciation and impairments”) (621) (6,346) {14} 1) i (18
- teversal of impairment loss {included in “Other operating income”) 20 347 1
- translation adjustments {944) (2,278) {34) {20} 52
- other movements (19,847) (47,997) {5,454) (150} {78,381)
At the end of the financia! year 215,852 286,933 40,270 2,134 77,444
of which leasing: 2,165 420 122
- e ———
Gross value 479,095 1,113,154 157,553 17,267 77,444 1@4{,.‘1&
Accumulated amortization {263,242) (826,260) {117,282) (15,082) {1,221,867)
NET BOOK VALUE 215,852 286,934 40,21 2,184 T1.444 622,685 |
Leasing ]
Gross value 2422 535 n 3,330 |
Accumulated amortization {257) (115) (251) {623}
NET BOOK VALUE 2,165 420 122 2,707

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges
for property, plant and equipment. Management uses standard estimates based on
a tombination of physical durability and projected product life or industry life cycles.

Impairment losses on fixed assets are mainly due te the dedision to relocate the
Guarulhos facilities to Americana (Brazil) and to the decrease of activities at Umicore
Autocat Canada linked to the expiry of a significant contract in the North American

These useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical innovations, market market.
developments or competitor actions. Management will increase the deprediation charge
where useful lives are sharter than previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-

down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The line *other movements™ mainly includes the amounts of PPE transfered to the
intangible assets.

Thete are no pledges on, of restrictions to, the title on property, plant and equipment,

. at - .
The key non-maintenance related additions to property, plant and equipment are other than disclosed in figte 34,

attributable to technology and infrastructure developments in Precious Metals Services
due to the investment in the pre-concentration project. investments were high in most of
the Precious Metals Products and Catalysts businesses as well as the Cobalt and Spedialty
Materials business.
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17 Investments accounted for using the equity method

The investments in companies accounted for using the equity method are composed
mainly by the following associates and joint ventures:

Measurement currency Perceniage
' 2006 (%) 1007 (%)
Associates i
Ganzhou Yi Hao Urnicare tndustries CNY 40.00 40.00
IEQSA PEN 40.00 40.00
Element Six Abrasives usD 40.22 0.0
Padaeng Indusiry Public Cy Ltd HB 46.90 hoo
Jiangmen Chancsun Umicore Industry Co. LTD CNY 40.00 00
Todini EUR 40.00 000 |
Reaxa GBP 2254 )00
Joint ventures 4;[
Foh! China CNY 50.00 .00
ICT Japan MY 50.00 51).00
1T UsA uso 50.00 siloo |
Qrdeg IRW 50.00 5(L00
Rezinal EUR 50.00 51100
SolviCore GmbH & (o KG EUR 50.00 s{L00
SalviCore Management GmbH EUR 50.00 S(LOO
Hycore 10K 0.00 51,00
(€ thousand)

Net book vi lue Goodwill Tital
At the end of previous year 159,313 51,609 11,422
- discontinued activities in opening {36,219} (7,044 ﬂ—iﬂ 63)
- peofit for the year 25,155 254155
- dividends (16,950) (16,5150)

} - rapital increase 2066 2, iﬁf .
- capital repayment (1,124) , 11,< Ry |
- change in other reserves 055 155

‘ - translation adjustments (7,470} {4y | 8] '}1_2)

- other movements 157) 15 42}

| At the end of the year 125,769 44,437 169,106

of whith joint ventures 43,132 355 43,487

Umicore’s share in the aggregated balance sheet and profit and loss itarns of the
associates would have been as follows:

Umigore’s share in the aggregated jalance sheet items of the joint ventures wou d have
been as follows:

(€ thousand) (€ tt ousand)

31/12/06 31/12/07 31/12/06 nahr |

Assels 257,339 228,488 Current assets 136,898 _ 134865 |
Liabilities 12477 133580 | Non-cument assels 19,103 19,097
Turnoves 203,453 240,677 Current liabilities 95,298 9808
Net result 20,077 2,152 Non-current liabilities 1,657 10,214

In June 2007, Umicore and Hydro joined forces in the production of solar-grade silicon
used in the production of solar cells. The new company is named HyCore and has its
headquarters in Porsgrunn, Narway, HyCore’s first step will be to construct a pilot plant at
Hydro's industrial park at Herya in Porsgrunn. The pilot plant, which will be completed in
2008, will have an annual capacity of around 20 tonnes of solar-grade silicon.

The 22% remaining share in Padaeng at 31 December 2007 is reported as discontinued
operation (note 39).
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Umicore’s share in the aggregated profit and loss items of the joint ventures would have
been as follows:

(€ thausand)
31/12/06 /120017
Operating result 18,69 390
Finandial result 414 (1,513)
Tax {7,060) (3,116
— A —
Net result Group 12,045 4,32




18 Available-for-sale financial assets and loans granted

(€ thousand)
Available-for-sate

NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS Notes financial assets Loars granted
At the beginning of 2006 ' 31,016 5324
- increase 14,139 557
- decrease {12,194) (2,368} )
- impairment losses (included in “Depreciation and Impairments”) (18} N {1,817)
- reversals of impairment losses (included in “Oepreciation and tmpairments™) 9 ) i
- translation adjustments {144) ~ {287) |
- fair value recognized in equity e | ]
- fair value derecognized out of equity {1,409) {
- other movements {941) { 1,193
Al the end of 2006 48,09 | 2,606
- discontinued in opening (90 v
- increase {a) 81,455 | o 1,294
- decrease (b) (3,545} ] (1,095)_—1
- impairment losses {included in “Depreciation and Impairments”) (817) |  {456) |
- ranslation adjustments {85} (60)__‘
- fair value recognized in equity {¢) 29N _ |
- fair value derecognized out of equity (& {18,665) ]
- other movements {1,126) _ 36077%
At the end of the financial year 108,230 1,651
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS )
At the end of the preceding financial year ) 328 37,181
- discontinued operations in opening (39.973) |
- inuease i 10673
- decrease v+(,9£0,)“‘
- write-downs (included in “Depreciation and Impairments™) ) 63
- translation adjustments . 7 105
- Other (2712) 41
At the end of the finandial year 64 7181

(2) is mainly related to the stake Urnicore retains in Nyrstar, following the initial public
offering on Euronext Brussels. Nyrstar is headquartered in Londen, United Kingdom.
Umicore also increased its stake in Ouksan Hi-Metal Co, a publicly traded company based
in Ulsan, South Kerea.

{b) is mainly related to the sale of Cumerio shares.
{&} s mainily related to the fair value adjustment on Nyrstar and Duksan shares.
{d) is mainly retated to sale of the Cumerio and Nymex shares.

Loans granted are mainly floating interest rte loans to associates and non-consolidated
affiliates. their fair value can henge be considered as equal to their nominal valve.

margin calls have a fair value equivalent to their nominal value as they are calculated at
normal marke! conditions.

The current loans granted include margin calls for EUR 6.1 miltion (EUR 36 million
in 2006) held mainly by Umicore sa/nv and Umicore Precious Metals Nj (USA). Those

19 Inventories

(€ thousand)
Analysis of inventories nHzjes | 31/12/07
Base product with metal hedging - gross value 866462 | 7M1
Base product without metal hedging - gross value 236,779 A 240,685 |
Consumables - gross value U0 60820
Write-downs (#5,153) | ()
Advances paiq 7013 | 308
Contracts in progress 1,772 2,210
Total inventories 1,152,272 963,668

tnventories have decreased by EUR 184 million. This is mainly due to the combined Based on metal prices and currency exchange rates prevailing at the clasing date, the

effect of the outflow of inventories to discontinued operations (EUR 229 million) partly
compensated by the inflow of inventories acquired through business combinations
(EUR 47 millicn).

tn line with the declining zinc price towards year end, a EUR 10 million impairment
charged was booked on the permanently tied up zine inventories at the business unit
Building Products in France.

value of metal inventory would be about EUR 964 million higher than the current book
value. However, most of these inventories cannot be realized as they are tied up in
manufacturing and commercial operations.

There are no pledges on, of restrictions to, the title on inventories
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20 Trade and other receivables

(€ thousand)
NON CURRENT Hotes 31/12/06 nMz/fo7
(ash guarantees and deposits ’ 3,765 [ 2,486
Trade receivables maturing > 1 year 1,645 __J[__ _
Other receivables maturing = 1 year (20 ., 1340 |
Assets employee benefits 879 913
Total ' 6,269 4,740

1

CURRENT 1
Trade receivables (at cost) 832,719 7 4,240
Trade receivables {write down) . {17,667) ( 1,520)
Other receivables (at cost) 172,094 117,125
Other receivables (write down}) (9,330) i(8,063)
Interest receivable 57 SR
Fair value receivable financial instruments held for cash-flow hedging 32 27,506 7,312
Fait value receivable other financial instruments R 29,723 7,431
Deferred charges and accrued income 12,052 11,899
Total 1,047,155 810,033

(€ thousand)

Overdue between
d Total Not due 0-30days  30-60days  60-90 days > 50 days

AGEING BALANCE ANALYSIS 2006
Trade receivables {not including doubtful receivables) - at cost 817,950 590,146 165,%¢4 37,106 15,168 9,564
Other receivables - at cost 172,094 130,187 30,887 1,691 2,606 6,752
AGEING BALANCE ANALYSIS 2007
Trade receivables (not including doubtful receivables) - at cast 21,146 472,182 175,766 44914 13,235 < 15648
Other receivables - at cost 17,125 89,842 14,904 3,719 807 7,853

Trade receivables have decreased by EUR 169 million. This is partly due to the combined
effect of the outflow of receivables to discontinued operations (EUR 113 millions) partly
compensated by the inflow of receivables acquired through business combinations

{EUR 58 million). The decline of the zinc price and of the US dollar at the end of the
period also plays a role.

cedit limits, The indemnification in case of non payment amounts to 95% with ¢n annual
maximum limit of EUR 20 million.

Some specific units operate withou t credit insurance but set credit limits based on
financial information and business knowledge, which are duly approved by man: gement.
No major write down for non payrient was necessary in the previous and current year
The decrease in other receivables is mainty due to a decreased amount of VAT receivable.

By default, all units use credit insurance as a means to mitigate the credit risk related to
trade receivables, EUR 423 million, of the group trade receivables are covered by insured

Credit risk - trade receivables

(€ ttousand)
Trade receivables Other receivables E[
(write-down) {write-down) 107AL
AT THE BEGINNING OF 2006 {17,239) (5.174) (22,113
- Impairment losses recognized in P&L (8,669) (398) (9l067)
- Reversal of impairment losses 1,687 12| 1292_8_:!
- Impairment written off against asset carrying amount 353 147 &
- Decrease 162 1,562 1\ 1721_‘
- Change in scope (5) J; (L
- Other movements 5,757 (5,770) {13)
- Translation adjustments 287 17 299
AT THE END OF 2006 (17,667) {9,330) (26,597)
I
AT THE BEGINNING OF 2007 {17,667) (5,330) (2511_991)
- Discontinued activities in apening 2,003 1,33 3236
- Impairment losses recognized in the P&L {2,603) {42) {2:645)
- Reversal of impairment losses 10,189 .80 10,270
- impairment netted with asset carrying amount (3,439) {3,039
- Translation adjustments {4) (5) j" (%
AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR (11,520) {8,063) (19}%‘{
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21 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

{€ thousand}
Tax assets and liabilities 31/12/06 3/12/07
Income 1ax receivables 9,189 6,233
Deferred tax assets 259,699 119,472
Income tax payable (49,729) (46,204)
Deferred tax liabilities (44,246) (37,566)
Assets tiabilities Net

2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007
At the end of preceding financial year 139,253 259,699 (40,8%9) (44,246) 98,354 215,7133_1
Discontinued operations in opening {133,969) 7377 (126,5?1)1
Deferred tax recognized in the P&L 43,599 790 {7,199) 9,480 36,400 10,270
Defesred tax recognized in equity 17,729 (10,452) 3,736 {4,751) 81,465 {1 5,20}Lq
Acquisitions through business combination 4,359 {5,888) (I,Ei_i)i
thange in scope (602) (54) (iSl)_{
Translation adjustments {1,025) {46) 3 319 (782} E?L
Transfer 329 {209) (328) 197 1 @‘
Other movements {185) {99} 20 16 (99}
At the end of financial year 259,699 119,472 (44,246) {37,566) 115,453 81,90‘.’ﬂ
Deferred tax in respect of each type of temporary difference B
Intangible assets & equity transaction expenses 1,236 1,190 (667) (1,011) 569 179
Goodwill on fullly consalidated companies 2,257 2,006 (554) {595) 1,703 1,411_‘
Property, plant and equipment 13,315 12,180 {19,265) {18,573) (5,950) (6,393)
Long term receivables 16 126 2,092) (1,467) {1,976 (1,341)
Inventories 10977 16,431 (42,696) (31,044) (31,719) (14613))
Trade and other receivables 7,287 9,063 (30,966) {30,087) (23,679) {21,024)
Group Shareholder's equity (14,494) {12,153) {14,494) (12,1_5&
Long Term Financial Debt and other payable 1,490 1,380 1,490 1 ,3&1
Provisions Employee Benefits 51,216 24,567 (391) (222 50,825 24,345
Provisions for Environment 4,286 2,500 (8,593) {14,507 {4,307) {11,607)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 27,071 38,09 {1,388) (623) 25,683 37413
Current Financial Debt 593 593
Current Provisions for Environment 10,108 14,766 10,108 14,766
Current Provisions for Other Liabilities & Charges 3,760 6,476 (188) 3,760 6,288
Trade and other payables 151,569 29,555 {1,763) (2,626} 149,806 26,929
Total deferred tax due to temporary differences 284,688 159,329 (122,869) (113,096) 161,819 46,233
Tax losses to carry forward 89,379 74,127 89,379 74,727
Investments deductions 1,477 1,489 1,477 1,489wi
Notional interests carried forward 2,158 2,158
ROT carried forward 628 808 628 808
Other 6,652 2,344 6,652 2,344
Deferred tax assets no! recognized {46,658) {43,695) {46,658) {43,695)
Total tax assets/liabilities 338,322 195,002 {122,869} (113,096) 215,453 81,906
Corpensation of assets and liabilities within same entity {78,623) {75,530) {78,623} {75,530)
Net amount 159,699 119,472 {44,246) {37,566) 215,453 81,906

Base Base Tax Tax ]

ount of deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or tax credits for
hich no deferred tax asset is recognized in the balance sheet 138,049
Expiration date with no time limit 138,049 129,303 46,658 43,596

e changes of the period in lemporary differences are charged in the income statement
xcept those arising from events that were recognized directly in equity. The main
ovements in deferred tax recognized directly in equity affect the lines *Trade and

ther receivables” (negative by EUR 3,774 thousands), “Trade and cther payables”
negative by EUR 7,003 thousands) and “Provisions for employee benefits” (negative by
UR 5,215 thousands).

f a tax benefit is expected in future periods.

eferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that their utilization is probable, i.e.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets of EUR 43,695 mainly arise from tax losses
{EUR 33,272 thousands) and temporary differences on property plants and equipment

(EUR 7,487 thousands) and provisions {EUR 997 thousands).

The actual tax results in future periods may differ from the estimate made at the time
the deferred taxes are recognized.
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22 (ash and cash equivalents

(€ thousand)
Cash and cash equivalents 31/12/06 31)12/07
Short-term investments: bank term deposits 18,320 1,312
Short-term investments: term deposits (other) 3,319 17,276
Cash-in-hands and bank current accounts 152,979 1_;0,321

Total cash and cash equivalents 174,617 i _31?_,& ]
Bank overdrafts {included in current financial debt in the balance sheet) 11,675 7,485
Net cash as in Cash Flow Statement 162,943 201,429

All cash and cash equivalents are fufly available for the Group.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of
the underlying businesses, the group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed credit lines.

23 (Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Excess liquidities are invested for very short periods and are spread over a limited
number of relationship banks. Th2se institutions are essentially banks enjoying a
minimum credit sating AA- (Stancard & Poor’s)

(€ thousand)
Part of the Group |
Currency i
Share translation Total for Equity of |
capital and and other Treasury Minwity  continuing  discontinued !
premiums Reserves reserves shares interest operations operations | Tolallequity
Balance at 1 Janvary 2006 456,918 678,811 {136,055) (28,578) 44,326 1,015,422 1,015,422
Changes in available-for-sale financial assets reserves 16,332 6 16,337 16,337
Changes in cash flow hedge reserves {248,977} (43) {249,020} {249,020}
Changes in past employment benefit reserves 631 {113) 513 518
Changes in share-based payment reserves N2 7,712 7,712
Changes in deferred taxes directly recognized in equity 86,090 53 86,143 36,143
thanqges in currency translation differences (38,543) {5,478) (44,021} (i4,021)
Net income {expense) recognized directly in equity (176,756} {5,575) {182,331) (1‘_ 2,3131)
Result of the period 195,848 4,925 200,773 2)0,773
Total recognized income 195,848 (176,756} (650) 18,442 18,442
(apital increase 6,948 6,948 | 6,948 J
Dividends {47,156) (4,447) (51,603) {i1,603) |
Transfers 2 |
Changes in treasury shares (10,944) (10,944} {10,944) !
thanges in scope 9,876 19,876
Impact of discontinued operations )
1
Balance at 31 December 2006 463,866 827,503 (312,810 (39,521) 49,105 938,142 918,142
Discantinued operations in cpening n71,m {14,246} 203,465 217,711) ( 4,246)
Changes in available-for-sale financial assets reserves (15,743) {10} {15,753) {15,753)
Changes in cash flow hedge reserves 33,606 {10} 33,596 190,332 2 3927
Changes in post employment benefit reserves 14,716 73 14,790 1,864 16,654
Changes in share-based payment reserves 5,812 5812 __iss2_
Changes in deferred taxes directly recognized in equity (15,814) {55) {15,869) (63,286) (19,155)
Changes in currency translation differences (36,086) (2,260) {38,346) 420 (:47,926)
Change in scope from discontinued operations 85,736 i 5736
Net income (expense) recognized directly in equity {13,508) {2,261} {15,769) 215,065 119,296
Reslt of the period 653,083 9,300 662,383 652,383
Total recognized income 653,083 {13,508) 7,039 646,613 215,065 831,678
Capital intrease 5,555 445 6,000 16,000
Dividends (53,209) (1,006) (54,305) (14305)
Transfers 454 {454) |
Changes in treasury shares {257,441) {257,441) (237,441)
Cost of capital increase |
thanges in scope 724 74 | 724
Balance at 31 December 2007 469,411 1,427,811 {109,062) {296,963) 41,970 1,533,196 (2,645) 1,510,551

The legal reserve of EUR 73,839 thousand which is included in the retained earnings is
not available for distribution.
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The share capital of the Group as at 31 December was composed of 130,986,625 shares

with no par value.

The detail of the currency translaion differences and other reserves is as follows:




(€ thousand)

Available-for- Deferred taxes
sale financial Cash flow recognized Post- Share-based Currency
assets hedge directly in employment payment translation
reserves reserves equity  benefit reserves feserves differences TOTAL
Balance at 1 Janvary 2006 9,291 (90,603) 42,415 {62,553) 3,255 {37,858) {136,053)
Gains and losses recognized in equity 17,788 {356,815) 123,077 (2,017) 7,712 (210,255)
Gains and losses derecognized in equity {1,409} 108,080 {(36,739) (353) 69,579
Exchange differences (47} {242) (248) 3,001 {38,543) {36,079)
Balance al 31 December 2006 25,622 {339,580) 128,505 {61,922) 10,967 (76,401) (312,810)
Balance at 1 January 2007 25,622 (339,580) 128,505 (61,922} 10,967 (76,401) {312,810)
Discontinued operations in opening 316,063 (107,310) 5,994 2,964 17,11
Gains and losses recognized in equity 2,971 20,856 {11,962 12,597 5,812 30,274
Gains and losses derecognized in equily {18,665) 12,949 {3,660) (1,219} {10,595)
Transfer from/to retained earnings 459 459
Exchange differences {49) {206) (192) 2,420 (36,081) {34,102)
Balance at 31 Detember 2007 9,879 10,088 5,381 (41,671) 16,778 {109,518) (109,063)

Gains and losses recognized in equity on available-for-sale financial assets relate to the
fair value adjustments of the period on Nyrstar and Duksan shares (refer to note 18 on
available-for sale financial assets). Gains and losses derecognized in equity on available-
for-sate finandial assets relate to the sale of Nymex and Cumerio shares.

The net gains recognized in equity regarding cash flow hedges (EUR 20,856 thousand) are
the changes in fair value of new cash fliow hedging instruments or existing enes at the
opening but which have not yet expired at year end. The net gains derecognized from

equity (EUR 12,949 thousand) are the fair values of the cash-flow hedging instruments
which expired during the year.

New net actuarial gains on the defined post-employment benefit ptans, have been
recognized in equity for EUR 12,597 thousand.

The 2007 shares and stock option plans have led to a share-based payment reserve
increase of EUR 5,812 thousand {refer to note 10 on employee benefits)
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24 Financial debt

(€ thousand)

Bank : Other M
NON-CURRENT loans loans " Total
At the beginning of 2006 95,433 154,996 150,429
- Increase 535,500 35 35,535
- Decrease {385,039) {382) (i8s,421}
- Translation adjustments 1) (1}
- Transters {351) 13 . (338)
- Other movements {(129) ©(129)
At the end of 2006 245,543 154,532 100,074
- Discontinued operations in opening (543} r o {543)
- Acquisitions through business combinations 110 .10
- Increase 2,810 3,229 " 6,039
- Derease (225,130) (406) {1125,536)
- Translation adjustments (221 {1} . (22)
- Transfers (420} | (420)
- Other movements 1,699 k1,699
At the end of the finandial year 24,157 157,045 ‘181,201

}1

CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM 1
FINANCIAL DEBTS Bank loans Other loans | Total
At the end of the preceding financial year 351 382 1}_ 733
- Discontinued operations in opening (351) i (3s51)
- Increase / derease 530 685 i 1,216
At the end of the financial year 530 1,068 Il 1,598

I

Short term loan: |

Short term commercial *
CURRENT bank loans  Bank overdrafts Securitization paper Other loans i Total
At the end of the preceding financial year 228,228 11,675 125,000 203,168 18,989 !;87,060
- Discontinued operations in opening {16,717) (1,239) {52,331 (8,804) 29,193 149,898)
- Increase / decrease {97,000) {2,951} {72,669) {111,369} (39,136) §f23,126)
At the end of the financial year 114,511 7,485 82,995 9,046 ji14,036

The net financial debt of the group has decreased by EUR 605.1 million mainly a5 a result
of the disposal of the biggest part of the Group’s share in Nyrstar.

In view of its improved fiquidity position resulting from the Nyrstar IPO proceeds, Umicore
sharply reduced its recourse to the EUR 300 miltion commescial paper programs.

During 2007, Umicore has stopped its securitisation program by repurchasing in July 2007,
the Zinc Allays receivables for EUR 52,331 thousand which represents the value of

those receivables less service fee and global deferred purchase price. The reasoning is
the same for the November 2007 repurchase of the receivables of Umitore Group for
EUR 72,669 thousand. The program existing at the end of 2006 covered trade receivables.
The securitization was a true sale of the receivables without recourse. However there is

a global default reserve. As a consequence, an individual unpaid invoice or a number of
unpaid invoices will, as long as the cumulated unpaid amount is below the global default
reserve, remain at the expense of Umicore, However, due to a global default reserve, an
individual unpaid invoice or a number of unpaid invoices, will, as long as the cumulated
unpaid remains below the default reserve still were a charge for Umicore. Under this
program, the trade receivables were still recognized as assets and the financing obtained
was recognized as a liability. The carrying amount of the original assets remains identical
compared to the carrying amount recognized in the balance sheet and the carrying
amount of the associated liabilities.

The fair value of the EUR 150 million 8-year bond which was issued in 2004 was
EUR 150.6 miilion as at 31 December, based on the bond value as quoted on Euronext at

that date. The effective interest rate for this bond is 4.875% which is equal to the fixed
interest rate.

The long-term bank loans consist of a EUR 20 million bank loan maturing in 203
and bearing an interest of 5.36% per annum. Its fair value was EUR 21.2 mitlior. on
31 December 2007

There were no outstanding advances under the EUR 45 million Syndicated Bank {redit
fadility maturing in 2013.

The repricing date of the short term bank loans are very short term and are made at
the convenience of the treasury department at market conditions as part of its Jaily
management of treasury operations

Part of the non-current financial cebt is subjected to standard financial covenants
included in the loan agreements.

Umicore has not {aced any breach of covenants or loan defaults in 2007 or in previous
years. The debt covenant monitoring is the responsibility of the Group treasury
department. In order to monitor this activity, compliance certificates are issued twice a
year by the treasury department .and sent to the agent bank. This methodolegy is a loan
agreement condition and requirernent as the interest margin is based on the net debl to
EBITDA ratio

(€ thovsand)
ANALYSIS OF LONG TERM DEBTS BY CURRENCIES EUR uso Other 'l
(INCLUDING CURRENT PORTION) Euro US Dollar umencies . Total
Long-term bank loans 22,099 2,588 24,687
Other long-term loans 158,107 5 *'58,112
Non-cusrent financial debts 180,206 2,593 f'82,799
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25 Trade debt and other payables

(€ thousand)

-~ Non-current Notes 31/12/06 3n/12/07
Long term trade payables 74 74
Other long term debts 254 51
Investment grants and deferred income from grants 3,126 4,401
3,454 4,987

Current 31/12/06 31/12/07
Trade payables 566,376 589,468
Advances received on contracts in progress 4,913 236
Tax payable - othes than income 68,920 10,143
Payroll and related charges 121,263 113,074
Other amounts payable 47,725 39,452
Dividends payable 4,889 5522
Accrued interest payable 8122 7,686
Fair value payable financial instrument held for cash flow hedging 2 350,621 7119
Fair value payable other financial instruments 32 23,140 14,656
Accrued charges and deferred income 83,927 77,459
1,279,896 864,817

Trade debt and cther payables decreased by £UR 415 million.

This decrease is mainly due ta the outflow to discontinued operations (EUR 340 million}
partly compensated by the inflow through business combination (EUR 40 million). The
dedine of the Zinc price and of the US doflar at the end of the period also plays a role.

The impact of fair value of hedging instruments is a decrease of EUR 41 million. VAT

payables of continued operations have decreased by TUR 38 million.
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26 Lliquidity of the financial liabilities

(€ thousand)
i
3 Months :
December 2006 <1 Month 110 3 Months 10 1 Year 1t05 Years > 5 years | TOTAL
Financial debt
Current
Short-term bank loans 92,493 110,312 25,424
Bank overdrafts 11,675
Securitization 68,830 56,110
Short-term loan: commercial paper 194,364 8,304
Other loans 11,284 7,706
Current portion of long-term bank loans 351
Current portion of other Jong-term loans 382
Non-current
Bank loans 25,425 220117
Other loans 1,808 152,723 4
Trade and other payables 7H’r o
Curmrent N
Trade payables 47541 85,690 5217 | :sg.;&m ]
Advances received on contracts in progress 424 4,165 325 . 4913 .
Tax payable - other than income tax 54,249 {946) 15,617 _\.6_8122_0_7
Payroll and related charges 46,870 62,560 11,833 _ g_t_!ﬁ__.%_
Other amounts payable 19,564 25,927 2,234 ‘_\,4225___1
Dividends payable 4,889 I 4,889
Accrued interest payable, third parties 1,497 80 6,546 u 8,122
Fair value payable financial instrument i
held for cash Row hedging 21,105 41917 286,598 -}iﬂéﬂy—«
Fair value payable other financial instruments 3,807 13,067 6,266 B |
Accrued charges and deferred income 14,513 14,668 54,746 !183,927 ]
Non-current j‘ N __j
Long term trade payables L) _l _M
Other long term debts 54 254
Investment grants and deferred income from grants 3,12 1[3,126
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{€ thousand)

3 Months
December 2007 <1 Month 1 to 3 Months to 1 Year 1to 5 Years > § years TOTAL
Financial debt »
Current
Short-term bank loans 42,348 41,713 30,453 114,511
Bank overdrafts 4113 293 2479 7,485
Securitization _
Short-term loan: commercial paper 82,995 82,995
Other loans 76 8,969 9,046
Current portion of leng-term bank loans 2 130 397 530
Current portion of other long-term loans 32 65 9 1,068
|
Non-current . ]
Bank loans 4,157 20,000 24,157 »
Other lpans 154,079 2,965 157,044
Trade and other payables B
Current o T
Trade payables 489,830 91,749 7,890 589,468 7
Advances received on contracts in progress 20 15 236
Tax payable - other than income tax 11,304 240 (1,401) 1(.),1-13.__<
Payroll and related charges 44,073 60,781 8,220 113,074
Other amounts payable 21,43 14,205 3,815 39,452
Dividends payable 5,522 5,522
Accrued interest payable, third parties 972 6,570 144 7,686
Fair value payable financial instrument
held for cash flow hedging M9 7 6,827 7,118
Fair value payable other financiaf instruments 6,459 6,340 1,857 14,656
Accrued charges and deferred income 18,507 33,868 24,685 77459 )
—
Non-current )
Long-term trade payables 74 . N
Other long-term debts 511 511
investment grants and deferred income from grants 530 3,872 4,401
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27 Provisions for employee benefits

The Group has various legal and constructive defined benefit obligations, the vast majority of which are situated in the Belgian, French and German operations, the majority of them

being “final pay™ plans.

(€ thousand)
Termination
Post-employment Post- benefits early  Other long-term
benefits, pensians emplayment tetirement & employee -
and similar __ benefits - other similar benefits ! Total
At the end of the preceding financial year 120,953 21,835 58,193 13,684 115,665
- Discontinued operations in opening (3,633} {12,655) (8,136} {2,275) ]?6,699)
- Acquisitions through business combinations 374 [ I 3
- increase (included in “Payroll and related benefits™) 8,187 9,864 2,540 Ak _ane |
- Reversal {included in “Payroll and related benefits”) (452) (mn (81) jl_(ﬁo)_q
- Use {included in “Payroll and related benefits”) {17,492) (786) {13,759) {1,007) j&i,ﬁlj)_ ]
- Interest and discount rate impacts {included in “Finance cost - Net”) 4,418 539 1,804 530 Rl
- Translation adjustments {(373) (154) (€] | (530{ )
- Transters {536) 365 7 e _‘_:
- Recognized in equity {9,316) (2,04'9) ‘1&3*65)fﬂ
- Dther movements (852) (1) (94) {958)
At the end of the financial year 101,267 17,958 40,599 11,972 1?1,796

This table shows the balances and the movements in provisions for employee benefits of
the fully consolidated subsidiaries only. There is a difference in the line “Recognized in
equity” compared to what is shown in note 23 as that note also includes associates and
joint ventures that are accounted for according to the equity method.

The 2007 movements show declining balances for plans in Belgium mainly refated

to the impact of the discontinued operations and by additional funding contribulions
made. Management expects cash outflows in the short term to stay in the samr order of
magnitude as the outflows of pricr and current year.

The following disclosure requirements under IAS 19 amended were derived fror1 the
reports obtained from external re-ognized actuaries

(€ thousand)
Movements 31/12/06 2007 3h2/07
Belgium 67,457 @.893) | 9564
France 28,360 {9,067) 19,293
Germany 108,817 (7,783) J 1,034
Subtotal 204,634 {44,743) 159,891
Other entities 11,031 874 11,505
4 —_—
Total 215,665 {43,869) 111,79
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(€ thousand)

Change in benefit obligation 2006 2007
Benefit obfigation at beginning of the year 295,637 304,840
Discontinued operations in opening __(an211)
Current service cost 18,675 _ e
Interest cost 12,889 1 1,50:I_____<
Plan Participants' Contributions 42 _307 |
Amendments (2,555} 10,803
Actuarial (gain)/loss {1,894) {10,688)
Benefits paid from plan/company (22,924) (24,872)
Expenses paid {25) {31)
Net transter in/{out) (including the effect of any business combinations/divestitures) 6,635 14,808
Ptan combinations

Pan Curtailments {315)
Plan Seftlements (99)
Exchange rate changes {1,640) (1,022)
Benefit obligation at end of the year 304,840 275,282
Change in plan assets 2006 2007
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 76,455 38220 |
Discontinued operations in opening (13,572)
Expected return on plan assels 4,251 3,747
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (3,219} (789}
Employer contributions 2731 7912
Member contributions 42 307
Benefits paid from plan/company (22,924} {24,872)
Expenses paid (25) {31 L
Plan settlements (215)
Net transfer in/ (out) {including the effect of any business combinations /divestitures) 7,294 12,636
Exchange rate changes {785) {578)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 88,220 102,765
Pension plans mainly in Belgium, France, Liechtenstein, Netherlands, USA and Norway Umicore Zinc Alloys France in return of cash compensation to receive and include also

are wholly or partly funded with assets covering a substantial part of the obligations. All EUR 1.2 million linked to the first time consalidation of Umicore Nederland defined

other plans have no material funding or are unfunded. benefit plan.

The amendments include EUR 9.6 million linked to the Nyrstar set-up agreement, The net transfer in (out) includes for as well the benefil obligation as the assets

whereby Umicore France took over all medical plan liabilities of retirees from ex EUR 12.7 million linked to the defined benefit plan of Umicore Nederland.
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{€ thousand)

Amount recognized in the balance sheat 2006 2007
Present value of funded obligations 116,018 71} 3,830

Fair value of plan assets 88,220 - 112,765
Deficit (surplus) for funded plans 27,798 \[1,065
Present value of unfunded obligations 188,822 __14|L1,_4_52
Unrecognised past service {cost) benefit (955} (721}
Net liability (asset) 115,665 1:?1,196
Components of pension costs:

Amounts recognized in profit and loss statement )

Current service cost 18,675 10,321
Interest cost 12,889 ot
Expected return on plan assets {4,251) | N 3,747)
Amortization of past service cost incl. §58(a) {2,247) o __: 0,803
Amortization of net (gain) loss incl. §58(a) {3,259) 1,297
Curtailment {gain}/loss recognized (315)
Settlement (gain)/loss recognized 116
Total pension cost recognized in P&L account 21,807 §§9,976
Actual retum on plan assels 1,032 ;’2,142
Amounts recagnized in statement of recognized income and expense '
Cumylative actuarial gains and losses 33,668 118,252
Discontinued operations in opening 5,866)
Actuarial gains and losses of the year 4,584 {11,365)
Transfer from/to retained earnings .
Minorities 3 |
Exchange differences . {1e)
Total recognized in the SoRIE at subsidfaries 38.252" 2!1_,_533 ) |
Discontinued operations in opening at assotiates and joint ventures + (128)
Actuarial gains and losses at associates and joint ventures 23,670 ;;{)-,-2-&1
Total recognized in the Post employment benefit reserves Group 61,922 fen !

* The 2006 total recognized in the SoRIE for the subsidiaries has been restated to allow the link with the post-employment benefit reserve (see Note 23),

The interest cost and return on plan assets as well as the discount rate impact on the
non-post emplayment benefit plans included in the amaortized actuarial losses or gains,
are recognized under the finance cost in the Income statement (see note 11). All other
elements of the expense of the year are classified under the operating result.

Actuarial gains of the year recognized in equity originate mainly from an increa;e in
discount rates on the pension plans,

The policy to amortize the actuarial gains and losses is the experience policy

(%)
Principal actuarial Assumptions 006 | f'2007 :
Weighted average assumplions to determine benefit obligations .
Discount rate 43 | 4506
Rate of compensation increase 2.36 j 295
Rate of price inflation 207 1
Weighted average assumptions to determine net cost e =
Discount rate 4.16 43
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets during financial year CA L I R I
Rate of compensation increase 2.28 _laa
Rate of price inflation 1.82 jf 7
i
Plan assets 2007
Percentage Expected] retum

of plan assets on plac. assets
Equity securities 470 n; 689
Debt securities 12.20 ) 384
Real Estate 0.84 450
Other 71.26 451
Total 100.00 5.00

Other plan assets are predominantly invested in insurance contracts and bank term
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deposits, The expected long term rate of return on assets assumptions is documented
for the individual plans




History of experience gains and fosses 2006 2007
Differente between the expecled and actual return on plan assels ]
Amoun{ 3219 789 L
Percentage of plan assets (%) 4,00 120
Experience (gain)/loss on plan liabilities L
Amount (4,996} 9,129‘__4
Percentage of present value of plan liabilities (%) (2.00) 330
Required disclosures for post-retirement medical plans 2006 2007
Assumed health care trend rate
immediate trend rate (%) 5.1 L
Ultimate trend rate (%) .75 6.75
Year that the rate reaches ultimate trend rate 2006 2007
2007 T
Yaluation trend Vvaluation trend
Sensitivity to lrend rate assumplions +1% (1%) ]
Effect on total service cost and interest cost components n (290)_|
Effect on defined benefit obligation 2,151 {2,415)
{€ thousand)
Balance sheet reconciliation 2006 2007
Balance sheet liability (asset) 17,875 215,666
Discontinued operations in opening 0 (26,65%)
Pension expense fecognized in PEL in the finandial year 21,807 B |
Amounts recognized in SORIE 4,584 (10,506)
Employer contributions via funds in the finandial year {8,707) (25,5§Q)_‘
Employer contribution paid directly in the finanial year (18,424) {12,362) _
Net transfer in/(out) (including the effect of any business combinations/diversitures) (659) 1M _
Amounts recognised due to plan combinations _ _4
Other 45 )
change rate adjustment - {gain}/loss (855) (444)—1
lance sheet liability {asset) as of end of the year 215,666 | 171,?ﬂ

e contribution expected to be paid to the plans during the annual period beginning
fter the balance sheet date amounts to EUR 19.7 million.
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28 Stock option plans granted by the company

0ld exercise price New exercise price ;
EUR before Cumerio EUR after Cumerio '
demerger (the exercice  demerger {the exercice Number of
price may be hijherin  price may be higher in aplinns still
Plan Expiry date Exercise certain cow ntries) certain countries) | o be eyercised
ESOP 1999 (10 years) 10.06.2009 once a year: from 7.2 5.22 60,825 |
May 20 until June 10 7.46 5.36 ' 37,400
198,225
1SOP 2001 (7 years) 14.03.2008 all working days of 8.29 6.19 311,850
Euronext Brussels 8.36 626 |
8.49 6.39 | 83,000
194,850
1SOP 2002 (7 years) 14,03.2009 all working days of 7.60 5.50 ]; 1,375
Euranext Brussels 9.22 7.2 38,300
9.63 1.53 266,150
£59,10 |
760 7.60 :
306,325
1S0P 2003 (7 years) 13.03.2010 all working days of 6.84 4.74 _1359,250
Euronext Brussels 7.0 4.92 [ 71,800
431,050
150P 2003 bis 13.03.2010 all warking days of 8.80 6.70 | 20,000 |
Euronext Brussels i J
20,000 |
1SOP 2004 11.03.20m all working days of 10.41 3.31 266,750
Euronext Brussels 10.74 3.64 145,500 ;
012,250
150P 2005 16.06.2012 alt working days of 12.92 470,000 ;
Euronext Brussels 13.66 | 8500
478,500
150P 2006 02.03.2013 all working days of 2255 651,125
Euronext Brussels 24.00 ‘Ji 12,500
663,625
1S0P 2007 16.06.2014 all working days of 26.55 ,:’717,750
turonext Brussels 27.36 (25,000
742,750
Total 341,575

- ESOP refers to “Employee Stock Option Plan” (worldwide plan for hourly and monthly-

paid employees and managers).
- ISOP refers to “Incentive Stock Option Plan” (worldwide plan for managers).

The stock options, which are typ cally vested at the time of the grant, will be « ettled wit
existing treasury shaves. Options which have not been exeicised before the expiry date
elapse automatically.

- The ISOP 2003 bis plan was set up in the first semester of 2004 for executives of PMG
who joined Umicore as a resul? of the acquisition.

{E thousand)
Details of the share options outstanding during the year 2006 2007 ‘{
Weighted Weighted
Mumber of  average exercise Number of  average :xercise
share gptions price share options 1 _price
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,933,100 7,32 4,109,650 JIRTXE
Granted during the year 732,625 22,59 742,750 I 26.57
Forfeited during the year !
Exercised during the year 1,561,075 7,10 1,604,825 7.08
Expired during the year R
oOutstanding at the end of the year 4,109,650 10,13 3,247,575 1539
Exercisable at the end of the year 4,109,650 10,13 3 247,575 ,[ 15.39

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining
contractua! life untill December 2011.
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29 Envirenmental provisions

(€ thousand)
Provisions for soit Other
clean-up & site environmental
rehabilitation provisions TOTAL
At the beginning of 2007 100,910 34,786 135,696
- Discontinued operations in opening (26,232) | (30,967} i (57,199) B
- Change in scope B
- Acquisition through business combinations 518 518 B
- Increase 45,835 1,780 47,615
- Reversal (46) {46} By
- Use (included in *Other operating expenses”} {11,186} (920) (12,107
- Discounting (included in “Finance cost -Net”) (3,782 (3,782
- Translation adjustments - 102 (24) 78
- Other movements 41 (14) (3
At the end of the financial year 106,011 4,759 110,770
of which - Non Current 65,561 2,665 68,226
- Current 40,451 2,093 42,544

Provisions for environmentat legal and constructive obligations are recognized and
measured by reference to an estimate of the probability of future cash outflows as well
as to historical data based on the facts and circumstances known at the reporting date.
The actual fiability may differ from the amounts recognized.

Provisions for environmental matters a1 the Zinc Alloys businesses included in the
balance sheet at the beginning of the period were moved to discontinued operations for
EUR 57,199 thousand.

Provisions at the continued operations increased overall by EUR 32,273 thousand, with
additional provisions being only parily compensated by uses of existing provisions.

e increase of provisions for environment is mainly related to the rehabilitation
regarding radio-active materials stored at the Olen facility in Belgium for

EUR 26,093 thousand. This follows discussions with the federal authorities regarding
the possible measures for dealing with these materials in a structured manner. These
iscussions have allowed the calculation and booking of a first reliable estimate.

An increase of EUR 5,402 thousand is linked to the rehabikitation of the Guarulhos site in
Brazil, following the decision to relocate the activities there to a new site in Americana.
An increase of EUR 9,841 thousand is linked to the Nyrstar set-up agreement, whereby
Umicore bought back the Calais site in France, including its related rehabilitation
liabilities, immediately prior to the creation of Nyrstar at the end of August. Umicore
obtained compensation for the same amount for taking over these fiabilities; this
compensation is booked under Other Income.

Most of the uses of provisions for the period are linked to the realization during the
period of site rehabilitation programs and treatment of waste materials in Belgivm and
France.

A material portion of the pravisions for soif clean-up and site rehabilitation relates to
projects in Belgium and France. Management expects the most significant cash outflows
on these projects to take place within 5 years.
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30 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

(€ thousand)
Provisions {or Provisions for other {
reorganization & liabilities and \
restructuring tharges : TOTAL
At the end of the preceding financial year 18,579 52,673 1,711,252
- Discontinued operations in opening (2,579} (3,957) ,,fj‘-: 7(@,5576)74
- Change in scope B N
- Acquisition through business combinations 1,512 2,329 138N
- Increase 4936 28,303 ey 33289
- Reversal {28} (11,762) L 4[11,791)
- Use (included in “Other operating expenses”™) (2,617) (5,068) ! (7.15)
- Discounting (included in “Finance cost - Nel") 1,012 R
- Translation adjustments (30) 1,078 1,048
- Transfers 53 (50) 1
- Finandial charges M
- Other movements {23 (64) o (295)
Al the end of the financial year 19,616 64,474 1 24,110
)
Of which - Non Current 10,31 45,125 155,49
- Current 9,255 19,359 128,615

Provisions for rearganization and restructuring and for tax, warranty and litigation risks,
onerous contracts and product returns are recognized and measured by reference to an
estimate of the probability of future outflow of cash as well as to historical data based on
the facts and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual liability may differ
from the amounts recognized

Provisions for other liabilities and charges at the Zinc Alloys businesses included in the
balance sheet at the beginning of the period were moved to discontinued operations
for EUR 6,556 thousand, of which EUR 2,980 thousand related 1o provisions for onerous
tontracts finked to the IAS 39 effect.

Provisions at the continued operations increased overall by EUR 19,414 thousand, with
additional provisions being only partly compensated by reversals and uses of existing
provisions.

The Delphi acquisition accounted for the majority of the EUR 3,871 thousand opening
impact of business combinations and relates mainly to some restructuring diabilities and
warranty risks taken over by Umicore. .
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The increase of the provisions fcr recrganization and restructuring is mainly lirked to
the restructuring of the Guarulhos site in Brazil. The use of provisions in this citegory is
linked to the restructuring progiam of the precious metals refining operation i1 Hanay,
Gesmany, 3 restructuring for wh ch a provision was made in 2006,

The increases, reversals and uses in provisions for other liabilities and charges concern
liabilities that are mainly related to warranty risks and litigation. They affect 3 wide range
of subsidiaries, mainly in Germany, Brazil, South Africa, Belgium and France a1 d ase
mainly related to the Precious Metals Products and Catalysts businesses.

They also include provisions for onerous contracts related to the IAS 39 effect
(see note 9). The net increase of the period an pravisions for oneraus contracts is
EUR 6,306 thousand. The closing balance of this provision is EUR 11,78¢ thous ind
classified as current provision.

No assessment is possible regar fing the expected timing of cash outflows relited to the
non-current part of the provisions for other liabilities and charges.




31 Financial instruments by category

(€ thousand)
Carrying amount
Held for trading  Held for trading Loans,
- no hedge . -hedge receivables Available-
As at 31 December 2006 FAIR YALUE accounting accounting and payables for-sale
ASSETS
Available-for-safe financial assets 43,420 48,420
Available-far-sale financial assets - Shares 48,420 . 438,420
- Loans granted . 39,787 39,787
Loans to associates and non consolidated affiliates 39,787 39,787
Trade and other receivables . 1,053,423 19,183 27,506 996,194
Non-current
Cash guarantees and deposits 3,765 3,765
Trade receivables maturing i more than 1 year 1,645 1,645
Other receivables maturing in more than 1 year (20) (20)
Assets employee benefits ' 879 879
Current
Trade receivables {at cost) 832,719 . 832,719
Trade receivables {write-down) (17,667) (17,667)
Other receivables (at cost) 172,094 172,094
Other recetvables {write-down) (9,330} (9,330}
Interest receivable 57 57
Fair value of financial instruments held for cash-flow hedging 27,506 27,506
Fair value receivable other finandal instruments DB 29,723
Oeferred chasges and accryed income 12,052 12,052
Cash and cash equivalents 174,617 174,617
Short-term investments: bank term deposits 18,320 18,320
Short-term investments: term deposits (other) 3,319 3319
Cash-in-hand and bank current accounts 152,979 . 152,979
Total of financial instruments {Assets) 1,316,247 29,723 27,506 1,210,598 48,420
LIABILITIES
Financial debt 991,167 987,867
Non-curvent
Bank loans 245,542 245,542
Other loans 157,832 154,532
Curent
Short-term bank loans 228579 2285719
Bank overdrafts 11,675 11,675
Securitization 125,000 125,000
short-term loan: commercial paper 203,158 203,168
Other {pans 19,371 19371
Trade and other payables 1,283,350 23,140 350,621 909,589
Non-cusrent
Long-teem trade payables 74 T4
Other long-term debts 254 254
Investments grants and deferred income from grants 3126 3,126
Cutrent .
Trade payables 566,376 566,376
Advances received on contracts in progress 4913 4913
Tax - other than income tax - payable 68,920 68,920
Payroll and related charges 121,263 121,263
Other amounts payable 47,725 47,725
Dividends payable 4,839 4,889
Acciued interest payable 8122 8122
Fair vafue finandal instrument held for cash flow hedging 350,621 350,621
Fair value payable other financial instruments 340 23,140
Accrued charges and deferred income 83,907 33,927
ota! of finandial instruments (Assets) 2,104,517 3,140 350,610 1,397,456
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(€ thousand)

Carrying amount
Held for trading  Hel for trading Loans,
- 0o hedge - hedge receivables Available-
As at 31 December 2007 FAIR VALUE accounting accounting and payables “or-sale
ASSETS
Available-for-sale financial assets 108,294 118,294 '
Available-for-sale financial assets - Shares 108,294 108,294
Loans granted 9,832 9,832
Loans to associates and non consolidated affiliates 9,832 9,832
Trade and other receivables 884,773 1241 17,312 855,031
Non-current
. Cash guarantees and deposits 2,486 2,486
Trade receivables maturing in more than 1 year
Other receivables maturing in more than 1 year 1,340 1,340
Assets employee benefits 93 913
Current
Trade receivables (at cost) 734,240 734,240
Trade receivables {write-down) (11,520) {11,520
Other receivables (at cost) 117,125 117,125
Other receivables (write-down) {8,063) (8,063)
Interest receivable 641 &1
Fair value of financial instruments held for cash-flow hedging 17,312 17,12
Fair value receivable other financial instruments 12,431 12,41
Deferred charges and accreed income 17,899 17,899
Cash and cash equivalents 218,915 218,915
Short-term investments: bank term deposits 71,312 7,312
Shart-term investments: term deposits (other) 1,276 1,176
Cash-in-hand and bank current accounts 140,327 140,327
Total of financial instruments (Assets) 1,221,814 12,431 17,312 1,083,778 108,294
LIABILITIES
Financial debt 398,637 396,837
Non-current
8ank loans 25,357 24,157
Other loans 157,645 157,045
Current
Short term bank loans 115,041 115,041
8ank overdralts 7,485 7,485 .
Securitization
Short term loan: commercial paper 82,995 82,995
Other foans 10,114 10,114
Trade and other payables 870,224 14,656 7,119 848,449
Non-current
Long term trade payables 74 74
Other long term debis 511 511
Investments grants and deferred income from grants 4,401 4,401
Current
Trade payables 589,468 589,468
Advances received on contracts in progress 236 236
Tax - other than income tax - payable 10,143 10,143
Payroll and related charges 113,497 113,497
Other amounts payable 39,452 39,452
Dividends payable 5522 5,522
Accrued interest payable 7,686 7,686
Fair value financial instrument held for cash flow hedging IALL) 1119
Fair value payable other financial instruments 14,656 14,656
Accrued charges and deferred income 17,459 77,459
Total of finandial instruments (Liabilities) 1,268,861 14,656 e 1,245,286
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Loans and debt have been issyed at market rate which would not create any major

differences with effective interest expense. All cateqories of financial instruments of
Umicore are 3t fair value except the non current bank and ather loans for which the
carrying amounts differ from the fair value {see note 24).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date.

The fair value of finandial instruments that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuation techniques, mainly discounted cash-flow, using for the
market assumptions the ones existing at balance sheet date.

In particular, the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of
the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange and metal
contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange and metal rates at the balance
sheet date .

The fair value of quoted financial assets held by the Group is their quoted market price at
balance sheet date. The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash Rows at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values.

Sensitivity analysis on financial fnstruments

Umnicore hedges its structural and transactional metal, currency and interest rate risks
using respectively metal derivatives (mainly quoted on the London Metal Exchange),
currency derivatives and Intesest Rate Swaps with reputated brokers and banks,

a) commodity prices

The fair value on financial instruments related to cash flow hedging would
have been EUR 17.0 million lower/higher if the metal prices have weakened/
strengthened by 10%. .

32 Fair value of financial instruments

Umicore hedges its structural and transactional metal, currency and interest rate risks
using respectively metal derivatives (mainly quoted on the London Metal Exchange),
currency derivatives and interest Rate Swaps with reputated brokers and banks.

a) financial instruments related to cash-flow hedging:

The fair value on other commodity sales financial instruments would have been
EUR 13.3 million lower/higher and the fair value on other commodity purchases
financial instruments would have been EUR 8.9 million higher/lower if the metal
prices have weakened/strengthened by 10%.

b) Foreign currency

The fair value of forward currency contracts related to cash flow hedging would
have been EUR 20.6 millien higher if the Euro strengthened against USD by 10% and
would have been EUR 24.2 million lower if the Euro weakened against USD by 10%.

The fair value of other forward currency contracts sold would have been
EUR 5.7 million higher if the Euro strengthened against USD by 10% and would have
EUR 7.0 million lower if the Euro weakened against USD by 10%.

The fair value of other forward currency contracts bought would have been
EUR 0.3 million lower if the Euro strengthened against USD by 10% and would have
been EUR 0.4 million higher if the Euro weakened against USD by 10%.

The fair value of balance sheet items exposed to USD would have been
EUR &.1 rmillion higher if the Euro strengthened against USD by 10% and would have
been EUR 7.4 million tower if the euro weakened against USD by 10%.

¢} Interest rate

The fair value of the interest rate swaps contracts would have been EUR 1.3 million
lower/higher and the fair value of cash and cash equivalents and financial debt
would have been EUR 1.7 miltion lower/higher if the interest rate decreased/
increased by 1%.

{€ thousand)

Notional or Contractual amount Fair value

31/12/2006 3/12/2007 31/12/2006 31/12/2007
Forward commodities sales 411,1M 166,870 {350,294) {3,963)
Forward currency contracts sales 458,020 235,626 26,420 13,117
Forward IRS contracts 142,000 172,000 760 1,036
Total fair value impact subsidiaries (323,115) 10,191
Recognized under trade and other receivables 27,506 17,312
Recognized under trade and other payables (350,621) (7.119)
Total fair value impact associates and joint ventures (16,565)
TOTAL (319,680) 10,191

The principles and documentation on the hedged risks as well as the timing related
to the Group’s cash flow hedging operations are included in note 3 Financial risk
management.

The fair values of the effective hedging instruments are in the first instance recognized
in the fair value reserves recorded in equity and are derecognized when the underying
forecasted or commilted transactions occur {see note 23)

the forward commodities sales contracts are set up to hedge primarily the following
commodities: zinc, gold, silver, copper and lead.

The forward currency contracts are set up to hedge USD towards Eure and AUD,

The average maturily date of finandial insttuments related to cash-flow hedging is
January 2009 for the forward commodities sold, November 2008 for the forward currency
contracts and March 2008 for the forward IRS contracts.

The terms and conditions of the ferward contracts are common market conditions,

In those circumstances whereby the hedge accounting decumentation as defined under
145 39 is not available, financial instruments used to hedge structural risks for metals and
currencies are measured as if they were held for trading. However, such instruments are
being used to hedge future probable cash-Nows and are not speculative in nature,

Umicore has not faced any ineffectiveness on cash flow hedging in P&L in 2006 and 2007.

.
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b) other finandial instruments

(€ thousand)

National or Contractual amount Fair value

31/12/2006 517122007 31/12/2006 31/1/2007
Forward commodities sales 191,227 134,734 (21,926) l{1,101)
Forward commodities purchases {193,306) {90,856) 27,81 1,963}
Forward currency contracts sales 81,385 63,741 1,235 | 843
Forward currency contracts purchases (47,980) (3,338) (596) L)
Total fais value impact subsidiaries 6,584 j'2,225)
Recognized under trade and other receivables 29,723 (2,431
Recognized under trade and ather payables (23,140) ( 4,656)
Total fair valye impact Associates & Joint Yentures 422 i
TOTAL GROUP 7,006 12,225)

The principles and documentation related to the Group's transactional hedqing are
included in note 3 “Financial risk management”. in the absence of hedge accounting
documentation as defined under 14$ 39, financial instruments used to hedge transactional
risks for metals and currencies are measured as if they were held for trading. However,
such instruments are being used to cover existing lransactions and firm commitments and
are not speculative in nature.
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The fair values are immediately secognized in the income statement under Other
operating inceme for the commodity instruments and the Net Finance cost for the
turrency instruments.




¢} Embedded derivatives In 2007 an amount of EUR 6.2 million was recognized in the Income statement. This

In 2006, 2 contractual situation was iQentiﬁed at Umicore Zinc Alloys France, This entity }:’;;1 m:’ l;:: li:?’ga"::j ;’;O;m%ﬁ; el:‘st::;ozs:g}gt;ﬂ ge'snel:L‘f:gf:nztafg;%"g::!::;?ge
has been part of the‘dlscon.lmuauon in 2007. No amount is maintained at the level of conditions and creditwoithiness of the mine owner for EUR - 3.3 million and actual
Umicore Group an this specific contract recognized income for EUR 9.5 million.
ince 2 ontractual situation is acti i i justments : o : P
?en(lgedog:dadcerivative) occur on the s;tlzr%:‘;it‘z:::f::t)viaﬁgg lg;cl?l:c:;::i‘ici;ation and xcg?éiz(?ns&:e;:::fléul:‘r:Jﬁ:lc:?\?aluzlz‘s EUR 5.8 million felated to Aurifére de Guinée is
loans of Aurifére de Guinée, a gold mining concession in Guinea. .
(€ thousand)
Farliest contractual maturity (undiscounted)
3 Months -
As at 31 December 2006 - < 1 Month 1 to 3 Months 1 Year 1to 5 Years Total
Financial Instruments Assets
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate swaps 760 760
Commodity risk
Total forward sales {CFH) {92) 69 178 171 326
Total forward sales {other) 102 257 359
Total forward purchases (other) 7,237 5,985 13,996 992 28,210
FX Risk
Forward cursency contracts sales (CFH) 1,399 3,283 12,389 9,348 16,419
Forward currency contracts sales (other) 997 87 151 1,235
Financial tnstruments tiabilities
Commadity risk
Total forward sales (CFH) (21,107) {42,922) (165,435) (121,159} (350,621)
Total forward safes (other} (9,283) {3,772) (8.887) (342) . (22,284)
Tota! forward purchases (other) {170) {160) % (339)
FX Risk
Forward currency contracts purchases {other) (16) (62) (518} (596)
As at 31 December 2007
Finantial tnstruments Assets
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate swaps 1,036 1,036
Commodity risk -
Total forward sales (CFH) (736) 119 (1) 3,774 3,157
Total forward sales (other) 327 3 330
Total forward purchases (other) 351 51 2,328 2,130
FX Risk
Forward currency contracts sales {CFH) 1,007 642 7,063 4,405 13,117
Forward currency contracts sales {other) 810 33 843
Financial Instruments Liabilities
Commodity risk
Total forward sales (CFH) (350) (375) {3,812) (2,583} {7.119)
Total forward sales {other) 187 (977) {641) {1,431)
Total farward purchases {ather) {1,142) (2,359) {1,139) (57) (4,692)
FX Risk
Forward currency contracts purchases {other) {4) {4)
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33 Notes to the cash flow statement

Definitions
The cash flow statement identifies operating, investing and financing activities for the
period.

The investing cash flows related to acquisitions (and disposals) of subsidiaries are
reported net of cash acquired {or disposed of) {see note 8, “Business combinations”}.

Umicore uses the indirect methoc for the operating cash {lows. The net profit and loss is
adjusted for: :

- the effects of non-cash transa-tions such as provisions, impairment losses, €tc., and
the variance in operating capi'al requirements,

- items of income or expense a:sociated with investing o5 financing cash fows

(€ thousand)

31/12/06 31/12/07
Adjustments for non cash transactions j\
Depreciations 134,37 1f§3,_283
Adjustment 1A$ 39 20,065 9%
Reclassification of discontinued charges J
Negative goodwill taken in result (including acquisition costs) (2,212) 1|.2,843)
(Reversal} Impairment charges 14,785 ;3,659
Exchange difference on long-term loans . 12,840 { :D,638)
Inventories and bad debt provisions 10,172 ;B,463
Depreciation on government grants (2,376) (2,960}
Share-based payments .12 115,2501
Change in provisions 2,643 16,639
Other 139 528
198,139 158,477
Adjustments for items to disclose separately or under investing and financing (ash flows ]
Tax charge of the period 52,362 57,460
Interest {income} charges 33,117 17,440
{Gain) loss on disposal of fixed assets (15,002) {29,40%)
Dividend income : {1,284) 1,756}
69,19 © sim
{
Change in working capital requirement analysis i
Inventories (237,584) 183,604
Trade and other receivables {706,523) 17],639
Trade and other payables 813,433 {415,649)
As in the consolidated balance sheet {130,674) (61,407)
145 39 effect (26,643) 33,749
Effect of discontinued operations 13,383
Non-cash items or otherwise disclosed {226,029) (’é },882}
Change in scope 6_ 194
Currency translation differences (32,203) (11,792}
As in the consolidated cash flow statement (415,545) ] , 245

A) Net cash flow generated by operaling activities

Operating cash flow after tax is EUR 406.4 million positive. Working capital requirements
decreased by EUR 6.2 million. The main factors were lower inventories in Zinc Specialties
as a result of a lower zinc price, a reduction in working inventory in Precious Metals
Services and lower working capital requirements in the precious metals products
businesses due to seasonal effects. These more than compensated for the increase in
working capital requitements in Automotive Catalysts, brought about by the increased
activity levels and higher precious metal prices.

B) Net cash flow used in investing activities

Net cash generated by investing activities increased by EUR 565.3 million in 2007, mainly
due to a net cash movement of EUR 578.2 million linked to the disposal of the Zinc Alloys
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activities to Nyrstar. The Group ha: alse acquired subsidiaries for EUR 82.3 million, net of
cash acquired (see Note 8, business combinations).

Capital expenditure reached EUR 152.9 million. The most significant increase tool: place
in Precious Metals Sesvices due to the investment in the pre-concentration praject,
Investments were high in most of the Precious Metals Products and Catalysts burinesses
as well as the Cobalt and Specialty Materials business.

C) Net cash flow used in finzncing activities

The use of cash generated by finar cing activities is mainly the consequence of the

net decrease of indebtedness {EUR 511.3 million), the net share buy-back pragram of
EUR 257.4 millian, the payment of dividends {EUR 53.1 million) and the net interest paid
(EUR 26.7 million).




34 Off balance sheet commitments

(€ thousand)

RIGHTS AND COMMITMENTS NOT REFLECTEC IN THE BALANCE SHEEY 2006 2007
Guarantees constituted by third parties on behalf of the Group 285,175 12,192
Guarantees constituted by the Group on behalf of third parties 8,296 4,338
Guarantees constituted by the Group on own assets and for own account
Guarantees received 16,342 19,513
Goods and titles held by third parties in their own names but at the Group's risk 582,787 611,329
Commilments 1o acquire and sell fixed assets 644 1,500
Commercial commitments for commodities purchased (to be received) 311,273 296,718
Commercial commitments for commaodities sold {to be delivered) 558,845 508,320
Property and securities of third parties held by the Group 1,478,620 1,869,413
Miscellaneous rights and commitments 5,566 4,845

) 3,247,548 3,328,168

In order ta improve comparability, some 2006 figures have been restated. Those changes have
been done in the lines “Guarantees received” and “Commercial commitments”.

A. Guarantees constituted by third parties on behalf of the Group

are secured and unsecured guaraniees given by third parties to the creditors of the group
guaranteeing that the Group’s debls and commitments, actual and patential, will be
satisfactorily discharged.

B..Guarantees constitued by the Group on behalf of third parties

are quarantees oi irrevocable undertakings given by the Group in favour of third parties
guaranteeing the satisfactory discharge of debts or of existing or patential commitments by the
third party to its creditors.

{. Guarantees received

are pledges and guarantees received quaranteeing the satisfactory discharge of debis and
existing and potential commitments of third parties towards the Group, with the exception of
gquarantees and security in cash.

The guarantees received are mainly related to supplier guarantees backed by bank institutions.
Those guaranitees are set up to cover the good execution of work by the supplier. Some
guarantees received are related to customer guarantees, received mainly from a customer’s
mother company on behalf of ene of its subsidiaries. A minor part of the received guarantees is
related to rent guarantees,

All guarantees are taken at normal market conditions and their fair value is equivalent to the
carrying amount. N re-pledge has been done or any of those guarantees.

D. Goods and titles held by third parties in their own names
but at the Group’s risk

represent goods and titles for which the Group bears the risk and takes the profit, but where
these goods and titles are not present on the premises of the Group. it concerns mainly
inventories leased out to third parties or held under consignment or under tolling agreement
by third parties.

E. Commercial commitments

are firm commitments to deliver or receive metals to customers of from suppliers at fixed
prices.

F. Goods and titles of third parties held by the Group

afe goods and titles held by the group, but which are not owned by the Group. It toncerns
mainly third party inventories leased in or held under consignment or tolling agreements with
third parties.

There ate no loan commitments given to thid parties.

The Graup leases metals from and to banks and other third parties for specified, mostly short
term, periods and for which the group pays or receives fees. The Group holds sufficient metal
inventories to meet all obligations under these lease amangements as they fall due. As at

31 December 2007, there was a net lease in position for EUR 175 millien vs EUR 119 million at
end 2006.
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35 Contingencies

The Group has certain pending files that can be qualified as contingent liabilities or
contingent assets, according to the definition of IFRS,

Environmental issues

See note 29 on environmenta! provisions where the topit is covered in detail induding
the status from a contingency point of view.

Barclays Physical Trading Ltd

Pursuant to the opening of the insolvency proceedings against Enron, Umicore put an end
to two centracts for the sale of copper cathodes as it had not abtained payment for the
lots sold. Before delivery by Umicore, Enron had apparently already sold 11,000 lonnes to
Barclays Physical Trading Ltd within the frame of a financing arrangement entered into by
these two companies.

In January 2002 Barclays Physical Trading Ltd initiated lega! proceedings against Umicore
to obtain delivery of these cathodes or a payment of USD 16.2 millien (interest to be
added). In june 2003 the Brussels Court rejected this claim as unfounded and ordered
Barclays Physical Trading to pay damages of EUR 793 thousand to Umicore. Barclays
lodged an appeal against this judgment before the Brussels Court of Appeal and claims
damages at the highest official value of 11,000 tonnes of cathode with a minimum of
UsD 16.2 million.

In its decision dated 23 March 2008, the Brussels Court of Appeal confirmed the decision
of the Brussels Court except regarding the additional damages daimed by Umicore.

The judicial administration of Enron and Umicore also executed a settlement Agreement
whereby both parties waived all reciprocal claims.

Plastic investment Company

In June 1999, Umicore seld to Plastic Investment Company (PIC), a subsidiary of the
Belgian-listed company TrustCapital, its stake in Overpelt Plascobel (OVP) for a price of
EUR 15.45 million (BEF 625 million). In April 2000, PIC initiated a legal procedure aiming
at obtaining damages amounting to the original purchase price for use of fraudulent and
deceptive actions by Umicore during the negotiation process to mislead the purchaser
about OYP's substance and its level of profitability. Umicore strongly abjected to this

and filed a memorandum detailing its position with the Commercial Coust of Brussels in
September 2002. At the time of writing the proceeding is still pending but Umicore also
believes that the case developed by PIC is without any merit.

The pleadings will take place in the course of 2008.
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Former employees of Gécamines

Several former employees of Gécamines, the Congolese state-owned entity which took
over the assets of Unjon Miniére in 1967 following its expropriation, filed claims against
Umicore for the payment of amouits due by Gécamines follawing their dismissal by the
latter. Société Générale des Minerais, whose rights and abligations have been taken over
by Umicore following several reorganizations, had indeed accepted, from 1967 tn 1974,
to pay certain employees of Gécaraines certain elements of their remuneration in the
event of default by Gécamines. In 1974, Gécamines had agreed to held Umicore harmless
in this respect. The validity of this guarantee might be contested, however Umicare
believes that this position is without any merit.

Even if Umicore would be forced in certain ¢ases to pay certain amounts to former
employees, the company believes that overall, and based on current prevailing vase law,
the outcome of these procedures thould not have a major financial impact on the Group.
It is, however, impossible te make any prediction on the final outcome of this proceeding.

VAT settlement with the Belgian special tax inspection, examined by the
European authorities

Although the company believed it had solid arguments to successfully defend itcelf
against the claim of the Belgian siecial tax inspection {"BBI/IS1") before the co irts,

in December 2000 the Group ente.ed inte a settlement agreement with the Belgjian
spedial tax inspection regarding VAT allegedly due on the intra-community delivery of
silves to Italian and Swiss companies. The company’s settlement with the Belgia tax
authorities on this issue is legally valid, final and subject to confidentiality. Howuver, a
complaint against unknown persotis was filed by a few individuals leading to an official
investigation. This has led to documents pertaining to the settlement being seized both
at the premises of the company a: well as the premises of the special tax inspe :tion.
This procedure was closed on 13 Navember 2007 by the Brussels Counsel Chamt er.

The EU Commission aunched on 7 September 2004, an official investigation to review
the settlement agreement in the context of the state aid regulations. This invest gation
was suspended during the criminal investigation. It cannot be excluded that the EU
investigation will now be resumed,

Others

in addition to the above, the Group is the subject of a number of claims and legal
proceedings incidental to the normal conduct of its business. Management does not
believe that such dlaims and proceedings are likely, on aggregate, to have a malenial

adverse effect an the financial condition of Umicore




36 Related parties

(€ thousand)

TRANSACTIONS WITH JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES 31/12/06 31/12/07
Operating income 102,303 69,146
Operating expenses (57,202) {61,786)
Financial income 4 13
Financial expenses {557) {626)
Dividends received (17.895) (16,950)
OUTSTANDING BALANCES WITH JOINT YENTURES AND ASSOCIATES 31/12/06 31/12/07
Current trade and other receivables 14,463 13,916
Current trade and other payables 4,414 4,444
Key management compensation
BOARD OF DIRECTORS * 2006 2007
- Sallaries and othes compensation: 365,500 412,253

fixed portion (€) 162,000 193,753

variable portion (based on attended meetings) (€) 203,500 218,500
- Number of shares held 113,790 117,290
- Number of stock opticns 20,000 ¢
* excluding Th. Leysen (see Executive Lommitee)
No variable or other compensation element (apart from attendance-related fees) is
associated with directorship. No loan or guarantees have been granted by the company
to members of the Board

{€ thousand)

EXECUTIVE COMMITEE 2006 2007
- Salaries and other compensation: 4,410,269 4,864,868

Fixed portion 2,483,519 2,596,996
Variable portion (based on the year performante) 1,926,750 2,267,872
- Exira-legal pension scheme (€) 1,243,642 1,335,296
- Number of shares held 991,750 1,072,000
- Number of stock options 1,072,125 1,062,125

37 Events after the balance sheet date

Following the Board of Directors meeting of 13 February 2008, Umicore annouced that
a gross dividend of EUR 0.65 per share wauld be proposed to the Annual Shareholders *
Meeting, comresponding 1o a total dividend payment of EUR 78,048,656 based on the
total number of outstanding shares but excluding treasury shares.

In early January 2008, prior to the one-for-five stock split, Umicore bought back 90,000 of
its own shares. The Extraordinary General Meeting of 5 February agreed the cancellation
of 1,197,325 shares (pre-split). The total number of outstanding shares at this date
stands 3! 25,000,000 (pre-split}. Subsequent te the cancellation of shares, Umicore held

1,064,419 shares in treasury (pre-split). This corresponded to 4.26% of the new number
of outstanding shares, On 29 February 2008, the company proceeded with a one-for-

five stock split. This took place on 29 February. The number of shares now stands at
125,000,000, with the consequent effect on the price per share, According to IAS 33

§ 64 all infermation included in the present financial statements that refer to number of
shares have been restated to take into account the one-for-five stock split that took place
on 29 February.

Umicore was included in the Standard & Poor's Europe 350 Index as from
29 January 2008. The company was classified in the Materials sector (Specialty Chemicals
sub-industry) according to the Global Industry Classification Standard.
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38 Earnings per share

(€).
2006 2007
Exctuding discontinued operations
EPS - basic 1.70 1.81
EPS - diluted 1.67 ' 1.79
Excluding discontinued operations
EPS - basic 1.55 5.21
75 - diluted 1.52 5.15

The following earnings figures have been used as the numerator in the calculation of
basic and diluted earnings per share:

(€ ‘housand)

2006 2007
Net consolidated profit - Group share
- without discontinued operations 215,252 217,257
- with discontinued operations 195,848 613,083
The following numbers of shares have been used as the denominator in the calculation of
basic and diluted earnings per share:
For basic earnings per share:

2006 2007
Total shares outstanding as at 1 January 129,055,250 130,60 r5),125
Total shares outstanding as at 31 December 130,050,125 130,9 ?,625
Weighted average number of outstanding shares 126,469,895 125,2 53,790

During 2007, 936,500 new shares were created as a result of the exercise of stock
options with linked subscriptions rights. All remaining subscription rights were cancelled
in late 2007. During the year Umicore used 699,475 of its treasury shares in the context
of the exercise of stock options. On 31 Oecember, Umicore owned 10,911,770 of its own
shares, representing 8.33% of the tofa) number of shares issued as at that date.

For diluted eamnings per share:

Treasury shares, which are held tc cover existing stock option plans or are avaitible for
resale, are not included in the number of sutstanding shares.

2006 (2007
Weighted average number of outstanding shares 126,469,895 1252 ;5,790
Potential dilution due to stock option plans 2,280,115 1,6 '5,360
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares 128,750,010 126,8°p,150

The denominator for the calculation of diluted earnings per share takes into accaunt an
adjustmment for stock options .
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39 Discontinued operations

Umicore and Zinifex announced on 23 Apsil 2007 that they signed a binding Business
Combination and Shareholders’ Agreement (BCSA) to combine their respective zinc
smelting and alloying businesses. The combined businesses operating under the
name Nyrstar is the world's pre-eminent zinc metal producer with operations on four
continents, producing some 1.2 million tonnes of zinc and zinc alloys per year and
employing some 4,500 people.

Umicore announced on 3 September 2007 that, as of 31 August 2007, it had complated
the transfer of its zinc smelting and alloying assets to Nyrstar, thereby formally launching
the joint-venture with Zinifex.

Fallowing assessment of the relevant criteria under IFRS 5 by management and the
Board, the net profit of the Zinc Alloys activities prior to its contribution te Nyrstar

(EUR 36.5 million negative), the remaining share in Padaeng Industry and the capital
gain achieved through the completion of Nyistar IPO are reported in the consolidated
statements of Umicare as “discontinued operations” for 2007. More detailed elements
of the financial statements of the discontinued operations have been prepared below in
accordance with [FRS 5,

The cash flow statement below represents the cash flows of the Zinc Alloys activities prior
to its contribution to Nyrstar as at 31 August 2007.

(€ thousand)

INCOME STATEMENT 2006 2007
Operating income 1,095,804 1,195,180
Operaling expenses {1,135,026) {1,241,007)
Income from othes financial assets 4 -
RESULT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {43,218) {45,827)
Finance Cost - Net {4,755) (8,062)
Share in result of companies accounted for using the equity method 17,540 10,844
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (30,433) {43,045)
Income taxes 11,029 12,0M
PROFIT (LOSS) OF THE PERIOD (19,404) (30,974}
Discontinued result in Umicore 456,800
TOTAL PROFIT (LOSS) FROM OISCONTINUED 425,826
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Profit of the period {30,974)
Net cash fow generated by (used in) operating activities (43,390)
iet cash flow used in investing activities (68)
Net cash flow generated by financing activities 56,505
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (34}
Net cash flow 13,013
Net cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 49,546
Net cash & cash equivalents at the end of the peried 61,559

The net boss of EUR 31.0 million of the discontinued activity includes a post tax charge
of EUR 73.0 mitlion that the zinc alloys group incurred when transferring their strategic
hedge to Umicore. At the same time, the discontinued result reported in Umicore

(EUR 456.8 millien) includes a post tax revenue of the same amount,

Excluding this intragroup effect within the discontinued aperations’ result would have
shown a real operating performance for the first 8 months of the year of EUR 42.0 million
positive while the discontinted result disclosed by Umicore would have drepped to

EUR 383.6 million. These EUR 383.6 million are the result of the net capital gain after
related charges (EUR 426.6 million) less the post tax charges of EUR 43.0 million incurred
by Umicore in unwinding residval zinc price hedges that were related to the discontinued
business.

40 FRS developments

The fallowing standards and interpretaticns, effective in 2007, are relevant for the Group:

- IFRS 7, “Financial instruments: Disclosures”, and the complementary amendment to
145 1, “Presentation of financial statements - Capital disclosures”, requires additional
disclosures about the significance of financial instruments for an entity’s financial
position and performance, and qualitative and quantitative disclosures on the nature
and extent of risks. These disclosures are presented in the relevant sections of these
consolidated financial statements.

- IFRIC 7 Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29, Financial reporting in hyper-
inflationary economies;

- IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2;

- IFRIC 9 Re-assessment of embedded derivatives;

- IFRIC 10 Interim financial reporting and impairment,

Following new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
published that are mandatory for the accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007 have not been adopted early by the Group:

{FRS 8 Operating Segments (applicable for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2009). The standard is relevant for the Group.

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and an amended version of 1AS 27 Consalidated and
Separate Financial Statements. The new requirements take effect on 1 july 2009 and
are subject to endorsement by the European Union. The standard Is relevant for the
Group.

The tax expense related to the discontinued operations but booked in Umicore entities
amounts to EUR 8.3 million.

The assets of discontinued operations as disclosed in the face of the balance sheet
include the value of the 22% shares Umicore still holds in Padaeng {Thailand) and the
cash amount set aside at Umicore to settle the unwinding of the strategic hedges with
the brokers.

The liabilities of discontinued operatians are alsa related to the unwinding of the
strategic hedge and represent the amount payable to the brokers.

- TAS 23 (Amendment) Borrowing Costs (applicable for annual perods beginning on
of after 1 January 2009, the amendment is subject to endorsement by the European
Union). The Group will apply 1AS 23 (amended) from 1 January 2009, but it is not
expected to have any impact on the Group's accounts.

- 145 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements (applicable for anrual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, the amendment is subject to
endorsemnent by the European Union). The amendment will affect the presentation of
owner changes in equity and of comprehensive income. The requirements regarding
the presentation of comprehensive income are similar to those in SFAS 130 Reporting
Comprehensive Income. The standard is relevant for the Group,

= IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 Group and Treasury share Transactions (applicable for accounting
years beginning on or after 1 March 2007} IFRIC 11 is not relevant for the Group's
operations.

- FRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements {(3pplicable for accounting years beginning
on or after 1 January 2008, IFRIC 12 is subject to endorsement by the European
Union). IFRIC 12 is not relevant for the Group’s operations.

- IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programs (applicable for accounting years beginning on or
alter 1 July 2008, IFRIC 13 is subject to endorsement by the European Union). IFRIC 13
is not relevant for the Group's operations,

- IFRIC 14 *{AS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
tequirements and their interaction® (applicable for accounting years beginning on or
after 1 January 2008, IFRIC 14 is subject to endorsement by the European Union). IFRIC
14 is not relevant for the Group's aperations.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the new standards, interpretations and

amendments listed above.
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Parent company separate summarized financial

statements

The annual accounls of Umicore are given below in summarized form.
In accordance with the Companies code, the annual accounts of Umicore, together with the management report and the statutary auditor’s report will be deposited with the National

Bank of Belgium.

These documents may also be obtained on request from:

UMICORE
Rue du Marais 31
8-1000 Brussels (Belgium}

The statutory auditor did not express any reservations in respect of the annual accounts of Umicore.

(€ thousand)
SUMMARIZED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 31/12/2005 31/12/1006 3f1z/2007 |
1, ASSETS i
FIXED ASSETS 3,033,931 3,311,672 1,390,869
I Formation expenses M 1,834 N
I, Intangible assets 16,982 12,540 :f 13250 |
Il Tangible assets 278,406 127,868 lass613” |
IV. Financial assets 2,735,752 3,069,431 128,129
CURRENT ASSETS 767,006 775,952 093,006
¥. Amounts receivable after more than one year 17,2714 388 ) _SiL
V1. Stocks and contracts in progress 312,039 257,007 || 235,382
¥il. Amounts receivable within one year 400,060 457,268 ]_554,6-19
VIl tavestments 2479 $462 29391
IX. Cash at bank and in hand 3,399 15,181 4510
X. Defersed charges and accrued income 6,756 12,645 | 8476
TOTAL ASSETS 1,800,937 4,087,624 4,483,875
2. LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY |
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 718,386 132,752 1423473
I. Capital 459,679 463,223 ja_es_,sgL
Il, Share premiums account 936 4,391 _‘\ 5,610
lll. Revaluation surplus 9% 98 s
IV. Reserves 154,738 167,367 437,585
V. Result carried forward 64,721 36,614 JI;Z}EL
« ¥his. Result for the period 37,925 59,328 . }@,5{5_‘
vl Investment grants 240 1,733 } 2,718
PROVISIONS AND DEFERRED TAXATION I
Vil. A, Provisions for liabilities and charges 126,019 93,662 110,216
CREDITORS 7,956,532 3,256,210 2,950,186
VIIl. Amounts payable after more than one year 4,405,074 1,433,074 1[063,074
iX. Amounts payable within ane year 1,500,928 1,751,420 i{753,974
X. Accrued charges and deferred income 50,529 71,116 128,138
- TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLOERS' EQUITY #,800,937 4,087,624 1483,875
INCOME STATEMENT J.[
I. OPERATING INCOME * 990,215 2,415,039 11357,566
II. OPERATING CHARGES (' 991,727) (2,411,935) (iiz_@_niaz
Il OPERATING RESULT (1,512) 3,104 116,528
IV, FINANCIAL INCOME 176,945 185,080 D204
V. FINANCIAL CHARGES {201,104) (132,259) j@gs;) :
V1. RESULT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXES {25,671) 55,925 338,776 |
VIl. EXTRAORDINARY INCOME 69,966 15,379 559,206
¥Ill. EXTRAORDINARY CHARGES (6177) {12,104) j:iiiﬁﬁi”
IX. RESULT FOR THE PEREQD BEFORE TAXES 38,119 59,200 764,552
X. INCOME TAXES (194) 127 J'[ (3,997)
XI. RESULT FOR THE PERIOD 37,925 59,328 Jg_sz,gss__
X0l TRANSFER FROM/TO UNTAXED RESERVE o
XIil. RESULT FOR THE PERIOD AVAILABLE 37,925 59,328 762,555
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(€ thousand)

APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT

A. Profit (Joss) 10 be appropriated 152,895 161,973 858,496
1. Profit (loss) for the financial year 37,925 59,328 762,555
2. Profit {loss) carried forward 114,970 102,645 95,941

(. Appropriation to eguity (2,926} {12,629) (270,218)
2. To the legal reserve (1,897) (2,966) (14,282L
3. To the reserve for own shares {1,029 (9,663) (255,929)

0. Profit (foss) to be carried forward O (103,081) 5,941 509,904
2. Profit (loss) to be carried forward (103,081) 95,941 509,904

k. Profit to be distributed (" {46,888) (53,443) (78,374)
1. Dividends ;

- ordinary shares EUR 0.65 (46,888) (53,403) (78,374)

(1) The total amount of these two items wilt be amended to allow for the amount of the
company’s awn shares held by Umicore on the date of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders on 29 April 2008; the gross dividend of EUR 0.65 per share wilf pot change.

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL - (€ thousand) Number of shares
A. Share capital

1. Issued capital
At the end of the preceding financial year 463,223 130,050,125
At the end of the financial year 466,558 i 130,986,625

2. Structure of the capital
2.1, Categories of shares

Ordinary shares 466,558 130,986,625
2.2. Registered shares or bearer shares
Registered 149,920
Bearer 130,836,705
E. Authorized unissued capital 1" 46,000
6. Shareholder base ¥ ' % capital Number of shares Notification date
Parfimmo $A, Rue du Bois Sauvage 17, 1000 Brussels 3.46 4,532,135 11/12/1007
Others 8.2 115,542,720
Own shares held by Umicore 7.95 10,411,770 n/12/2007
Own shares held by Umicore Finance 0.38 500,000
100.00 130,986,625
of which free float 100.00 130,986,625

{1) The extraordinary general meeting held on 21 November 2007 authorized the Board of
Directors lo increase the capital by an amount of EUR 46,000,000.

{2) At 31 Decesnber 2007, 3,247,575 options on Umicore shares are still (o be exercized, This
amount includes 3,247,575 atquisition rights of existing shares held by Umicare,

The legal reserve of EUR 73,839 thousand which is included in the retained eamings is not
available for distribution.

Brussels, 31 March 2008
Board of Directors .
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Assurance Statement for Environmental, Health, Safety and Social Reporting to Umicore

Scope and objectives

ERM CV5 was commissioned by Umicore to provide
independent assurance on the information and data reported
in the Environmental and Social Reports in the Umicore 2007
Report to Shareholders and Society (the “Repert”).

The obijective was to provide assurance that the following

are an appropriate presentation of Umicore’s performance

during 2007;

¢  The information and data set out in the Environmental
and Secial Reports on pages 38-77; and

s Urmicore's declaration that its report meets the
requirements of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
G3 application level C+ set out on pages 150-151.

Respective responsibilities and independence

Umicore is responsible for preparing the Report and the
information contained within it.

ERM CVS5, responsible for reporting to Umicore oniits
assurance conclusions, is a member af the ERM Group. The
work that ERM CV5 conducts for clients is solely related to
independent assurance activities and training programmes
related to auditing techniques and approaches. Cur
processes are designed to ensure that the work we undertake
with clients is free from bias and conflict of interest. ERM
CVS and the staff that have undertaken work on this
assurance exercise provide no other services to Umicore in
any respect.

Assurance approach and limitations

We based our work on Umicore's internal guidance and
definitions for the reported metrics, Our assurance approach
was developed with reference to the International Standard
for Assurance Engagements 3000: Assurance Engagements
other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Information
issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board (ISAE 3000); as well as principles that ERM
V5 has developed and refined for report assurance
assessments. The project team included specialists in both
environmental and social issues.

Between September 2007 and February 2008 we undertook a
series of activities, including:

*  Visits to five operational sites to verify data and data
management processes at the reporting units. These
sites included Olen (Belgium), Guarulhos {Brazil), Pasir
{Malaysia), Changsha {China) and Bray et Lu (France).
Twao further sites {Port Elizabeth (South Africa) and
Providence (USA)) were visited by Umicore personnel
and six sites participated in telephone based
interviews;

s Meetings with leaders of Umicore’s four Business
Groups and those with overall responsibility for
Environmental and Social performance;

e  Evaluation of corporate data management systems and
selected interrogation of source and consolidated data;

*  Meetings with personnel responsible for collecting,
reviewing and interpreting the data and information
for representation in the Report,

We did not attend any stakeholder engagement activities.

Conclusions

Based on the assurance activities undertaken, we condlude
that, in all material respects, the information set out on pages
38-77 and Umicore’s assertion that the report meets the
requirements of GRI G3 application level C+ are an
apptopriate presentation of Umicore’s environmental and
social performance during 2007.

Recommendations

The internal process for collecting and reporting HSE and
Social data that was introduced in 2006 has been further
developed, with improvements in the definition and
interpretation of the individual metrics. However, without
affecting our conclusion above, there remain some
challenges in establishing efficient processes that deliver
consistent and complete data.

We recommend that Umicore:

*  Embeds formal process at site level to review
sustainability risks and stakeholder expectations and
integrate the management of envirenmental and social
objectives alongside wider business goals;

s Puts processes in place to pericdically evaluate
whether the sodial and environmental objectives
continue to address the sustainability issues that are
material to Umicore’s business;

¢ Develops more detailed guidance for reporting,
especially for those metrics that are not under local
regulatory control; and embeds formalised procedures
at site level for data gathering and reporting, including
second party review of data;

¢ Begins planning at an early stage how it will develop
its reporting processes to enable achievemnent of a
higher G3 application level in future years. In
particular, through:

o Incorporating to a greater extent how Umicore
has addressed the G3 reporting principles;

o Clearly presenting its management approach to
addressing the sustainability topics associated
with risks and opportunities core to Umicore’s
business;

o Aligning more of its indicators with the detailed
definitions set out in the G3 guidelines.

gl

Leigh Lloyd, Managing Director
31 March 2008

ERM Certification and Verification Services, London

WWW.ermcvs.com

Email: post@ermevs.com

ERMCVS
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GOVERNANCE REPORT

Introduction

Umicore has published a Corporate Governance Charter in line
with the Belgian Code on Coiporate Governance. The Corporate
Governance Charter desciibes in detail the governance bodies,
policies and procedures of the Umicore Group. The Charter is
available on request from Umicore’s head office or can be con-
sulted al www.governance.umicore.com.

Umicore has articulated its mission, values and basic organiza-
tional philesophy in a document called “The Umicare Way”. This
document spells out how Urnicore views its refationship with its
customers, shareholders, employees and society.

In terms of organizational philosophy, Umicare believes in de-
centralization and in entrusting a large degree of autonomy to
each of its business units, The business units in turn are ac
countable for their contribution to the Umicore Group’s value
creation and for their adherence to group sirategies, policies,
standards and sustainable development approach.

In this context, Umicore believes that a good corporate gover-
nance system is a necessary condition to ensure its long term
success. This implies an effective decision-making process
based on a clear allocation of respensibilities, It has to allow for
an optimal balance between a cullure of entrepreneurship at
the fevel of its business units and effective steering and over-
sight processes.

The Corporate Governance Charter deals in more detail with the
responsibilities of the Shareholders, the Board of Directors, the
CEOQ and the Executive Committee, This reporl provides infor-
mation on governance issues which relate primarily to 2007,

Corporate structure

The Umicore Board of Direciors (*the Board") is the ultimate
decision-making body of Umicore with the exception of matters
reserved to the shareholders by the Companies Code or by the
Articles of Association, The Board of Directors is assisted in its
role by an Audit Committee and 3 Nomination & Remuneration
Committee.

The day-to-day management of Umicore has been delegated
to the Chief Executive Officer who is also the chairman of the
Executive Committee. The Executive Committee is responsible
for elaborating the overall strategy for the company and sub-
miting it for approval to the Board of directors. it is responsible
for implementing such strafegy and for ensuring the effective
oversight of the business units and corporate functions. The
Executive Committee is also responsible for screening the vari-
ous risks and opportunities that the company might encounter
in the shert, medium or longer term {see Risk Management
section). The Executive Committee is jointly responsible for
defining and applying Umicore’s approach to sustainable
development. *
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Umicore is organized in business greups which in turn com-
prise business units that share common characteristics in terms
of products, technologies and end-user markets. Some busi-
ness units are further subdivided into market-focused business
lines. Each business group is represented on the Executive
Committee.

In arder to provide a Group-wide support structure based along
geographical lines, Umicore has ntroduced complementary re-
gional management plaiforms in certain areas. Umicore’s cor-
porate cenire is based in Brussels, Belgium. This centre provides
a number of corporate and suport functions in the areas of
finance, human resource co-ordination, intemal audit, legal and
tax, infermation technology and public and investor relations,

Shareholders

Issued shares

At 31 Decernber 2007 there wer2 130,986,625 Umicore shares
in issue. A history and update of the number of shares in issue
can be found at www.investorrelations.umicore.com along with
a list of significant sharehofders. )

During 2007 936,500 new shares were ¢reated and delivered to
Belgian-based managers following their exercise of stock op-
tions with linked subscription rights.

During 2007 Umicore bought back 8,365,735 of its own shares
and delivered 699,475 of its treasury shares in the framewark
of the stock optien plans and 58,750 shares in the context of a
share grant. On 31 December 2007 Umicore owned 10,911,770
of its awn shares. In November 2007 the company decided
to proceed with a share buy-back programme for a totat of
€400 millien. Information concerning the shareholders’ autho-
rization for Umicore to buy back its own shares and the status of
such buy-backs can be consulted in the Corporate Governance
Charter and on Umicore’s website respectively.

N.B. On February 5, 2008 the Extraordinary General Meeting
of shareholders decided to cancel, 5,986,625 own shares. This
Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders also decided
to split each Umicore share by 3 factor of five. Consequently,
since 29 February 2008, there are 125,000,000 Umicore shares
in issue. Al these shares are either dematerialized shares or
registered shares.




Dividend policy and payment

Umicore’s policy is to pay a stable or gradually increasing divi-
dend - there is no fixed pay-oul ratio. The dividend is proposed
by the Board at the Ordinary General Meeting of shareholders.
No dividend will be paid which would endanger the financial
stability of the company.

In 2007 Umicore paid a gross dividend of €0.42 per share re-
lating to the financial year 2006. This compared with €0.37 in
2006 relating to the financial year 2005. On 13 February 2008
the Board decided 1o propose to shareholders a dividend of
€0.65 per share relating to 2007,

Shareholders” meetings 2007

As from 2008, the Qrdinary General Meeting (OGM) of share-
holders takes place on the last Tuesday of April at 5 p.m. The
place of the meeting is communicated at least 24 days prior lo
the “record daie” which is presently the method retained by
the Board in the convening notice (the meeting normally takes
place in Brussels, Belgium five working days after the “record
date”).

The 2007 QGM took place on 25 April. At this meeting share-
hotders approved the standard resolutions regarding the annual
accounts, the apprapriation of the resulis and the discharges
to the Board of Directors and auditors regarding their 2007
mandates and auditing assignment respectively. In addition
the shareholders also approved the remuneration of the Board,
the re-appointment of Mrs 1sabelle Bouillot as a Director for a
further three years and the appointment of a new Director -
Mr Shohei Naito. On the same day an Extraordinary General
Meeting was also held at which shareholders approved various
changes to the Articles of Association related to the abolition
of bearer shares in Belgium, a change to the set date for the
Ordinary General Meeting (see above) and a new approval for
the company to acquire its own shares.

The Board of Directors

Compositien

The Board of Directors, whose members are appointed at the
Shareholders’ Meeting, must consist of at least six members.
Their term of office may normally not exceed four years, but
they may be re-elected.

On 31 December 2007, the Board of Directors consisted of ten
members; ning non-executive directors and one executive
director.

Eight of the ten directors are independent within the defini-
tion of independence set out in Annex 3 of Umicore’s Corporate
Governance Charter.

Compensation
- Chairman’s annual retainer:
fixed portion: €40,000
variable portion: €5,000 per attended meeting.

- Director’s annual retainer:
fixed portion: €20,00Q
variable portion: €2,500 per attended meeting.

The total amount of remuneration granted to Directors in 2007
in respect of their activities in the company amounted to
€412,253.

No variable or other compensation element (apart from atten-
dance related fees) is assaciated with directorship. No loan or
guarantees have been granted by the company to members of
the Board.

As of 31 December 2007, the members of the Board of Directors
held a tota! of 1,078,290 shares.

During 2007, the Board of Directors held seven meetings.
Agenda items for these meetings covered the performance re-
view of the Executive Committee and Chief Executive Officer,
review of the company’s business plans for 2008 and beyond,
reviews and approvals of the various steps leading up to the cre-
ation and IPQ of Nyrstar, analysis of various acquisition projects,
a {ull environment, health and safety review, and an analysis of
the options to address the company's capital structure follow-
ing the receipt of proceeds from the Nyrstar IPO. The Board also
reviewed the company’s technology portfolic and conducted a
visit to the company’s operations in Brazi! where it approved
the investrnent plans for the operations in South America.
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Committees

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of three members who are all
independent non-executive directors.

Four Audit Committee meetings were held in 2007,

During 2007 key items discussed and decided on by the Audit
Committee included the approval of the 2006 accounts and
those of the first half of 2007, 3 review of the fees paid to the
Group auditor, a review of an internal project aimed at further
improving the financial control systems within the company, the
annual internal audit report, the implementation of the Code of
Conduct, a review of the IT environment within Umicore and
the effects of the 1PO of Nyrstar on the financial statements.
The Audit Committee also canducted a review of its own per-
formance and charter in November 2007,

Compensation:
- chairman: €6,000 per attended meeling

- member. €4,000 per atiended meeting.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three
members who are all non-executive directors. It is chaired by
the Chairman of the Board.

One Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held in
2007.

During 2007 the Nomination ancd Remuneration Committee
discussed and decided on the level of remuneration for the
Executive Committee and the senior management stock option
plans for 2007.

Compensation:
- chaifman: €4,000 per attended m eeting

- member: €3,000 per atiended meeting.

Executive Committee

Composition

The Executive Committee has the form of a “Comité de Direction/
Directiecomité” within the meaning of Article 524bis of the
Belgian Companies Code. Hereundar "Executive Committee” is
used within this definition.

The Executive Committee is compased of at least four mem-
bers. It is presided over by a chairman, appeinted by the Board
of Directars. The members of the Executive Committee are
appointed by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Comnmittee. The Executive
Committee as a whole or any individual member can be dis-
missed at any time by the Board of Directors.

Name Board meetings Comimittee  Total remuneration Shares held at

attended meetings attended (in€) 31/12/2007
Karel vinck Tof7 10of 1 79,000 100,000
Thomas Leysen 70f7 see Executive 961,000

Committee

Isabelle Bouillot 7of7 Sof5 56,500 -
Uwe-Ernst Bufe 50f7 32,500 -
Jean-Luc Dehaene S5of 7 32,500 165
Arnoud de Pret 6of7 40f4 51,000 5,000
Shohei Naito 40f 4 23,753 -
Jonathan Oppenheimer 7of7 37,500 .
Guy Paquot Jof7 10of1 40,500 5,000
Klaus Wendel 6of7 40f 4 59,000 7,125
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Performance Review

A review of the performance of each Executive Committee
member is presented annually by the C£Q to the Board of
Directors and discussed by the Board. The Board also meets
annually in executive session to review and discuss the perfor-
mance of the CEQ.

Compensation

For the year 2007, an aggregate gross amount of €4,864,863
was atiributed 1o the members of the Executive Commiitee
including the Chief Executive Officer {(CE0). Of this amount,
€2,267,872 was variable pay relaling to 2007 performance.
A portion of this variable pay, €936,796, will be paid out in
Umicore shares, which the Executive Committee members
have commiited to retain for a period of at least two years.
For the members of the Executive Committee, benefits include
an extra-legal pension scheme, the cost of which amounied to
€1,335,296.

0f the above amount, the remuneration of the CEO consisted of
a fixed portion of €500,000, a variable portion of €473,616 and
€123,592 in other benefits, The totaf variable pay has been paid
out in Umicore shares, which the CEO has committed to retain
for a period of at least two years.

For the Executive Commitltee members variable remuneration
can range from 0 to 64% of the fixed compensation. In the
case of the CEO it can go up 10 100% of the fixed compensa-
tion. variable remuneration contains a component related to
individual performance (including adherence i¢ Group values)
and another component related to the overall Group return on
capital employed. The Executive Committee members (excl.
the CEQ) were also awarded 2,500 shares each (500 shares pre
share split). These awards are included in the variable pay re-
ferred to in the previous paragraph.

During 2007, 300,000 stock options (60,000 pre-split) were
granted 10 the Executive Committee members as part of the
variable compensation package, at an exercise price of €26.546
(€132.73 pre-split). The Chief Executive Officer received 125,000
options (25,000 pre-splity and other members of the Executive
Committee received 25,000 options each (5,000 pre-split).

In total, at the end of 2007 1,062,125 stock aptions (212,425
pre-split) granted by the company were outstanding in the
name of the Executive Committee members, with exercise pric-
es between €4.736 (€23.68 pre-split) and €26.546 (€132.73
pre-split). During 2007, the Executive Committee members ex-
ercised 310,000 optiens (62,000 pre-split) granted by the com-
pany. As of 31 December 2007, the members of the Executive
Committee together owned a total of 1,072,000 shares (214,400
shares pre-split).

In case the employment of an Executive Committee member
is terminated within 12 months of a change of control of the
Company, that member would stand to receive a total compen-
sation equivalent to 36 months' base salary.

Companies Code - Article 523

On February 13, 2008, prior 10 the Board discussing the impfe-
mentation of incentive stock option plan 1SOP 2008 Thomas
teysen declared that he had a direct material interest in these
rmatters insofar as he would be a beneficiary of this stock option
plan. in accordance with Article 523 of the Companies Code,
Thomas Leysen was not present during the Board's discussions
concerning these decisions and did not take part in the voting.

Changes to the company’s net worth as a result of these de-
cisions have been disclosed in accordance with the Belgian
Companies Code in the statutory annual Board report.

Remuneration of the statutory auditor

The world-wide audit remuneration for Umicere's statutory au-
ditor and its affiliated companies totalted €4.2 million includ-
ing €1.8 million for the statutory audit missions (€0.4 mil-
lion for the audit of the mother company) and €2.4 million for
non-statutory audit services, The latter includes €0.2 miltion of
services rendered by affiliated companies of the statutory audi-
tor. The remaining €2.2 million relates to services rendered by
the group statutory auditor, of which €1.6 million is related to
attestation services {mainly for the spin-off of the Zinc Alloys
business and the subsequent IPC of Nyrstar) and €0.6 million 1o
other services. In accordance with article 133 of the Companies
Code, the audit committee of Umicore has granted an exemp-
tion to exceed the one-tg-one ratio.

The statutory auditor’s mandate is subject for renewal at the
2008 Ocdinary General Meeting.

A policy detailing the independence criteria for the statutory
auditor may be requested frem the company or accessed via
Umicore's website.
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Code of Conduct

Umicore aperates a Code of Conduct for all employees, repre-
sentalives and Board members, This Code is fundamental to
the task of creating and maintaining a refation of trust and pro-
fessionalism with its main stakeholders namety its employees,
commercial partners, shareholders, government autharities
and the public,

The main purpose of Umicore’s Code of Conduct is {0 ensure
that all persons acting on behalf of Umicore perform their ac-
tivities in an ethical way and in accordance with the laws and
regulations and with the standards Umicore sets through its
present and {utuce policies, quidelines and rules.

Annex 5 of Umicore's Corporate Governance Charter contains a
specific policy related to the application of Belgian legislation
regarding market manipulation and insider trading. Umicore’s
Code of Conduct, Corporate Governance Charter and policy re-
garding Insider Trading and Market Manipulation are available
on request fram the company or can be accessed via www.
governance.umicore.com.

Compliance with the Belgian Code on Corporate
Governance

Umicore's corporate governance systems and procedures are
in line with the Belgian Code of Corporate Governance with
the exception of article 8.9 regarding sharehalder meetings. For
reasons of efficiency, Umicore has decided not to endorse the
principle providing for the towering of the ownership threshold
required to allow a shareholder 1o include items on the agenda
of the general shareholders meeting from 20% to 5% of the
share capital. However, without prejudice to its right of rejec-
tion, the Boaid of Directors will consider any timely proposal
submitted by a sharehalder.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Umicare’s management takes an entrepreneurial approach fo
developing the company’s business. This approach means that
taking calculated risks is an integral part of the development
of the company. In order to successfully exploit business op-
portunities and at the same time limit possible business losses
Umicore operates a comprehensive risk management system.
The aim of this system is to enable the company to identify
risks and to mitigate these identified risks to an acceptable level
wherever this is possible.

Risk Assessment

The first step in the risk management system is to enable and
channe! the identification of various risks. Umicore has a decen-
tralized business structure and therefore the primary source of
risk identification lies with the business units themselves.

Umicore has established a Business Risk Assessment (BRA) pro-
cedure that éach business unit and corporate department will
undertake each year. The BRA process requires that all units
carry out a risk scan in order to identify all significant risks (fi-
nancial and nen-financial) that might affect the business’s abil-
ity to meet its objectives. The process then requires that these
risks be described in detail, and an impact and likelihood as-
sessment be carried out. Finally the businesses are expected
to outline the short, medium and long-term controls in place to
mitigate or offset these risks. These BRAs are then fed back to
the member of the Executive Committee responsible for that
particular business area. A consolidated review takes place at
the tevel of the Executive Committee, the outcome of which is
presented to the Board of Oirectors.

Wherever possible each business unit and corporate depart-
ment is responsible for managing its own identified risks. The
Executive Comrrittee has the responsibility to intervene in cas-
es where managing a certain risk is beyond the capacities of a
particular business unit. The Executive Committee and the Chief
Executive Officer are also responsible in a broader context for
identifying and dealing with those risks that affect the broader
Group such as macro-economic risks.

A specific monitoririg role is given o Umicore's infernat Audit
department in order to provide assurances that the risk manage-
ment process is respected and that the unit and departmental
risk identification and management is carried out effectively.

The Executive Committee has the responsibility to inferm the
Board of Directors of the most significant risk exposures and the
related risk management plans in place. The Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors carries out an annual review of the
company’s internal cantrol and risk management systems.

Risks .
Umicore faces risks that in broad terms can be cateqorized as
follows:

Strategic: including risks related to macro-econemic and finan-
cial conditions, corporate reputation, political and legislative
environment.

Operational: including risks related to changing customer de-
mand, supply of raw materials, distribution of producis, credit,
productian, labour relations, human resources, IT infrastructure,
occupational health and safety, emission control, impact of cur-
rent / past activities on the environment, product safety, asset
and data security, disaster recavery.

Financial: including risks related to treasury, tax, forecasting
and budgeting, accuracy and timeliness of reporting, compli-
ance with accounting standards, metal price and currency fluc
tuation, hedging.

Most industrial companies would normally expect to face a
combinaticn of the risks similar to that listed above. It is not the
intention to provide exhaustive details on each risk posed to
the company in this report. However, the most noteworthy risks
either in their relevance to Urnicore or in the company’s way of
dealing with them, have been highlighted below.

supply risk

Umicore is reliant on supplies of metals-containing raw materi-
als in order to produce its products. Some of these raw ma-
terials are comparatively rare. In order to mitigate the risk of
supplies becoming difficult to source Umicorg adopts a policy of
attempting where passible to enter into longer-term contracts
with its suppliers. In some cases the company holds strategic
reserve stocks of certain key raw materials. The company also
attempts 10 source its materials from a geographically diverse
range of locations. Umicore's focus on recycling also means
that its supply needs are only partially dependent on supplies
of virgin material from mines - a significant proportion of the
company’s feed coming from secondary industrial sources or
end-of-life materials. Where possibte Umicare seeks to partnes
with customers in a “closed-loop” business model thereby in-
tegrating sales and the recycling of the customer’s residues in
one package,

Credit risk

Unicare is exposed 1o the risk of non-payment from any coun-
terparty in relation to sales of goods or other commercial op-
erations. Umicore manages this risk through application of a
credit risk policy. Credit insurance is often used to reduce the
overall level of risk but in certain businesses where the costs of
insurance are not justifiable in proportion to the risks involved,
and where customer concentration levels permit, no insurance
is used.
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Currency risk

Umicore is exposed to structural, transactional and translational
curfency risks. Structural currency risk exists where the compa-
ny generates more revenues in one cuirency cornpared to the
costs incursed in that currency. The single biggest sensitivity of
this nature exists for the US dollar. At the end of 2007 Umicore’s
sensitivity to movements in the EUR-USD exchange rate (in the
absence of any hedging arrangements and for non-metal-price
related elements only) was approximately €1 million for every
US cent change in the exchange rate. This sensitivity is based
on the exchange rate prevailing at the end of 2007.

Umicore also faces transiational currency risks where it consoli-
dates the earnings of subsidiaries not using the Eure as their
reporting currency. This risk is not hedged.

For more detaifs on currency risks and current sensitivities
please see the Financial Statements note 3.

Metal price risk

Umicore is exposed 1o risks relating to the prices of the met-
als which it processes or recycles. The structural metals-related
price risks relate mainly to the impact that metal prices have on
surplus metals recovered from materials supplied for treatment.
Transactional metals price risks are linked ia the exposure to
any fluctuations in price between the moment raw materi-
als are purchased (i.e., when the metal is “priced in”) and the
moment the products are sold {i.e., when the metal is “priced
oui”). A risk also exists in the company’s permanently tied up
metal inventories. This risk is related to the market metal price
moving below the carrying value of these inventories. For mare
information on these risks including details on the risk manage-
ment approach please refer to page 90 of this report.

Technology risk

Many of Umicore’s operations develop products that are tech-
nologically innavative and are present in markets characterized
by rapid and significant developments that can render existing
products and technalogies non-competitive or obsolete. Beth
Umicore’s current products and those under development face
such risks. In erder to mitigate this risk Umicore channels signifi-
cant investments into its research and development efforts for
both product and process technologies. In 2007 this investment
amounted to some &% of Group revenues (excluding metal
content). Absolute spend on R&D increased from €115 million
in 2006 to €125 million in 2007. The company afso increased
its patenting of processes and technologies in order te defend
itself against the infringement o its intellectual and technologi-
cal property. Umicore filed some 50 patents in 2007 cempared
to 34 in 2006.
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Substitution risk

Achieving the best cost-performance balance for their praducts
is normally a priority for Umicare’s customers. There is always
a risk that customers will seek alternative materials to integrate
in their preducts should those of t) nicore not pravide this opti-
mum balance. The risk is especially present in those businesses
producing materials containing expensive metals (especially
those with historically volatile pric ng characteristics). Umicore
actively seeks to pre-empt this search for substitute materials
by developing such substitutes itself using less costly materials
with lower pricing volatility and where possible without im-
pacting the performance provided for the customer’s product.

Requlatory risk

Like all companies, Umicore is eposed to the evolution of
the regulatery envirenment in the countries or regiens within
which it does business. It should bz noted that Umicare’s busi-
nesses stand to benefit from certa n regulatory trends, notably
those regarding mare stringent ernission controls for vehicles
and enforced recycling of end-of-lif2 products such as electronic
goods. Some environmental legislation does present operation-
al challenges, however, The REACH Directive came into force in
the European Unicn in June 2007 and it introduced the need for
new operational procedures regarding the reqistration, evalu-
ation and authorization of chemical substances. Umicore has
created an operational network of REACH managers at business
unit level coordinated by a REACH implementation manager.
Product inventories have been updated regularly. Futhermore,
at the end of 2007, Umicore had 2ntered into eight consortia
with other companies in order to help develgp the necessary
data for many of its substances. Customers have been infarmed
about the REACH approach and suppliers have been notified of
the chemicals covered by the Directive.

The EHS competence platform at R&D will play an important
role in the support of the Umicore REACH netwark activities.

Climate Change

In 2007 the company launched a project to review the current
scope of its greenhouse gas management and reporting. This
project is also looking at screenirg the most important risks
due to climate change effects an the product life cycle. Further
updates on the preqress of this project will be provided in the
2008 Report. For more information on Umicore’s approach to
reducing its emissions of greenhouse gases please see page 45
of this report.




STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS

Umicore is a publicly traded corporation. As such, it interacts
with a number of parties who have an interest in the way in
which the company does its business. The relationship that the
company is able to toster with these parties - or.stakeholders -
has a direct impact on the company’s success.

Stakeholder engagement at Umicore is, in the first instance,
based on a localized approach whereby all sites are required to
identify their respective stakeholders and to establish suitable
plans for engagement. This approach was formalized with the
introduction of the Group-wide social sustainable development
objectives in 2006. Each site is expected to have formulated
a clear plan for stakeholder identification and engagerment by
2010. At the end of 2007 same 60% of all sites had cutlined
their pians in this regard. In many instances, for example the di-
alogue with custemers and suppliers, the stakeholder relation-
ships are primarily managed by the business units themselves,
in line with Umicore’s de-centralized approach to managing its
businesses.

Al Group level the company has taken the first steps lowards
initiating an identification process for its main stakeholders and
to undertake a more formal, structured dialogue with these
parties. The first outcome of this approach has been the es-
tablishment of an annual stakeholder event that takes place in
Belgium. In May 2007, Umicore arganized this event for the sec-
ond time, Umicore invited a series of NGQs, representatives of
local gavernments and cther interested parties in areas where
Umicore is present. Questions to management {which included
the CEQ) focused on the status of the clean-up of the radioac
tive waste at the Olen site, the remediation of company-owned
industrial land near its then Balen site as well as the relocation
of people living there. The remuneration of Umicore's chief ex-
ecutive officer was alse one the discussion topics. This example
of Group stakeholder dialogue remains rather regional in nature
- focusing primarily on the issues that are prevalent for Flemish
stakeholders. in 2008 the company will study further the possi-
bilities for estabfishing a broader stakeholder identification and
feedback mechanism.

Highlighted below are Urnicore’s main stakeholder groups.
These have been cateqorized in broad terms using generic
stakehalder categories that apply to maost industrial organiza-
tions. Also shown are the nature of the transactions that occur
and a brief description of how the dialogue between Umicore
and the stakeholders operates.

suppliers
Umicore provides: profits
Suppliers provide: goods and services

Umicore operates four business groups on five continents.
These business groups not only require materials to make their
products but also energy, transportation and a range of oth-
er services. Overall Umicore has mare than 10,000 suppliers
world-wide. These suppliers benefit frorm Umicore's presence
as a customer; during 2007 Umicore paid these suppliers some

~ €6.5 billion (including the metal content of raw materials).

Umicore is engaged in canstant dialogue with its suppliers, pri-
marily to ensure mutually acceptable terms and conditions for
continued partnership such as prompt and uninterrupted deliv-
ery of materials / services and timely payment. The business
units are primarily responsible for the purchases of raw materi-
als while the corporate Purchasing and Transportation depast-
ment is involved in ensuring the Group's transportation, energy
and other provisioning needs are met.

Umicore takes care to source its materials and services from
suppliers of good standing and reputation. Where Umicore be-
lieves that sourcing from a particular supplier would involve a
breach of our own standards or Code of Conduct a mechanism
exists 1o review the status of that supplier. Umicore has formal-
ized this approach through a Group-wide Procurement Policy.
This policy sets out standards regarding the procurement pro-
cess and also expectations about how procurement should be
in line with the Group Code of Conduct and supportive of the
cornpany’s approach g sustainable development.
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Customers
Umicore provides: materials
Customers provide: profits

Umicore’s business is based on the desire to produce “materials
for a better life”. The company’s materials can be found in a wide
variety of applications that make day-to-day life more comfort-
able and which help contribute to a cleaner environment.

Umicore has an international customer base, with 43% of 2007
turnover being generated outside Evrope (excluding Metals
Management operations).

Umicore’s customer base tends to be other industrial compa-
nies who use Umicore's materials to make products. Only in a
very few instances does the company make products that are
sold directly to the public.

Intesaction with custemers is an on-going process and is man-
aged by the business units. All business units have a customer
teedback process where they are able 10 gauge periadically the
level of custommer satisfaction with their products and services.

In the more technologically advanced businesses the relation-
ship with the customer is often more integrated. Developing
advanced products often involves years of research and devel-
opment work in direct collaboration with such custormers,
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Employees
Urnicore provides: remuneration ¥ training
Employees provide: skills & produ ctivity

Umicore and its associates employ some 14,000 people around
the world. The company invests significant resources in ensur-
ing its status as an employer of choice in all the regions in which
it operates. During 2007 Umicore peid a total of €427 million in
the forrn of salaries and other benefits for its employees. Social
security payments totalled €119 mi.lion.

Umicore is committed not only to providing good salaries and
working conditions to its employees but also to providing the
necessary occupational and professional training opportunities,
Employees are expected to adhere t2 the principles and policies
outlined in The Umicore Way and Urnicore’s Code of Conduct.

Open dialogue is promoted betwee 1 the company and its em-
ployees. This dialogue includes a three-yearly employee satis-
faction survey (see pages 72 and 7= for the results of the 2007
survey). Umicore respects the principle of collective bargaining
wherever it is requested. While such practice is commonplace
in Europe, in some other tocations cellective bargaining mecha-
nisms and trade unions are less common or face local legal
restrictions. '

in September Umnicore signed a sustainable developrent agree-
meni with the International Metalworkers’ Federation and the
International Federation of Chemical, Energy, Mine and General
Workers” Unions on the global Grow p-wide implementation of
its policies on human rights, equal ¢pporiunities, labour condi-
tions, ethical conduct and environmental pratection. The agree-
ment will allow both trade unions ta pariicipate constructively
in the pursuit of these abjectives. A joint monitoring commitiee
composed of both parties will see to the implementation of the
agreement.

Supplementary channels of compar y-wide communication in-
clude the Group intranet and 3 worlc-wide in-house newspaper
“Umicore Link”.

investors and funders
Umicore provides: return on investment
Investors provide: capital and funds

Umicore’s investor base has divers fied significantly in recent
years. At the end of 2007 the company’s sharehalders were
primarily situated in Europe and North America.

Umicore strives to provide limely and accurate company infor-
mation to the investment community. These communication
efforts include management roadstows and site visits, con-
ferences, investar {airs far individual investors, webcasts and
conference calis. During 2007 14 equities firms published eq-
vity research nates on Umicare. In 2007 Umicore was awarded
the prize for Best Investor Relations by a Non-FT Global 250
Company in the IR Magazine Continental Europe Awards. This
was the result of an independent poll of some 500 investors
and analysts.




Banks make up the vast majority of the company’s creditors and
debt investors. Umicore has credit lines with nurmerous banks
both in Belgium and elsewhere. Dialogue with the banks is pri-
marily the respensibility of the corporate Finance Department
although each legal entity within Umicore maintains business
refationships with the banking community. Umiccre also has in
issue a €150 millien bond with a maturity date of 18 February
2012. The bond is listed on the Brussels stock exchange.

Society

Umicore ‘provides: wealth and innovative products and
processes

Society provides: licence to operate

Through employment Umicore participates in the generation of
wealth in the areas in which it operates. Although wealth gen-
eration is an obvious benefit, the manner in which this wealth
is generated is also of greal importance. Ultimately Umicore can
only continue operating if it has the licence to do sa from so-
ciety. In order to maintain this licence, Umicore tries its utrmost
to operate in a way which promates sustainable develcpment.
This goes beyond operating within the legally defined boundar-
ies set for all companies. Umicore sets its own standards which
are applicable across the Group and which frequently surpass
the demands of legislation in many areas where the company
operates,

In addition to this commitment to sound operating practices,
Umicore also strives to develop materials which will enhance
peoples’ quality of life.

Contact with the communities in which Umicore cperates is the
most direct way in which the company can interact with so-
ciety. Open and transparent dialogue with such communities
is an integral part of Umicore's stakeholder engagement and
makes up one of the company’s social objectives for 2010 (see
page 68).

Certain civil society groups (known as non-governmental orga-
nizations) also periodically declare a stake in Umicore's opera-
tions and the way the company does is business. Umnicore wel-
comes such interest and attempts to engage with such groups
in an open and constructive manner. The company is 3 mem-
ber of Business and Society - a Belgian alliance of companies
and civil society groups, and of the world Business Council for
Sustainable Development.

Public sector and authorities
Umicore provides: taxes
Public sector and authorities provide: services

Umicore paid a total of €74 million [n taxes as a result of its op-
eraticns in 2007. Umicore’s employees also contributed a total
of some €119 million in secial security payments.

Umicore periodically enters inte partnerships with public insti-
tutions such as universities with the primary aim of furthering
certain research projects. Similarly, partnerships and research
grants are gccasionally contracted with public organizations. No
significant grants were received in 2007.

The company has a policy of not making donations 10 political
parties or organizations.

when specific issues arise which are of interest to Umicore the
company usually communicates its position through the indus-
try groups to which it is affiliated. The company is mindful of
the sensitivity of taking positions on issues of public interest,
with this in mind Umicere has developed Group-wide guide-
lines regarding how this should be done in a responsible way.
The main organizations on which Umicore is represented {both
at corporate and business unit level) in 2007 are listed below:

Corporate:

" World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD)

+ Eurometaux

- Agoria (Belgian multi-sector federation for the technology
industry)

- world Fuel Cell Council

Advanced Materials:

- Cobalt Development Institute
- International Nickel Association

Precious Metals Products and Catalysts:

- Emission control associations at regiona! and naticnal level
(US, SA, Brazil, China, European Union) - see http://www.
automotivecatalysts.umicorz.com/en/links/ for a selection
of links

- German Chemical Federation (VCI)

Precious Metals Services:

- Eurgpean Electronics Recyclers Association

- International Association of Electronics Recyclers
- International Platinum Association

- Internaticnal Precious Metals Institute

Zinc Specialties:

- International Zinc Association

Severat of Umicore's business units are signatories of the
“Responsible Care” programme for the chemicals industry and

some are alse members of the European Chemical Industry
Council (CEFIC).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Karel Vinck, 69, Chairman
independent, Non-Executive Director

Before joining Umicore, Karel Vinck was Chief Executive Officer of
Elernit and Bekaert. He was Chairman of the Executive Commitiee
of S.C.R.-Sibelco, Antwerp. He is a member of the Board of Suez-
Tractebel, Tessenderlo Group and of Théatre Royal de la Monnaie.
He is co-ordinator of the European Rail Traffic Management System
with the European Commission. He is Chairman of Cumerig, ho-
norary chairman of VEY, the Flemish employers association and
Chairman of the Flemish Science Policy Council. He was Chief
Executive Officer of the Belgian Railways from 2002 until 2005.

Director since: 17 October 1994

Expiry of mandate: Ordinary General Meeting of 2009

Chairman since: 1 October 2002

Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee singe: 1
Januvary 2003

Thomas Leysen, 47
Chie! Executive Officer, Executive Director

Thomas Leysen became Chief Executive Officer of Umicore in 2000,
after having held various positions within Umicore and its affiliates.
He is also Chairman of Carelio, a Belgian media company. He is a
member of the Board of Cumerio, of the micro-electronics research
centre IMEC, a member of the supervisory Board of Bank Metzler,
Germany, and a member of the board of Compagnie Maritime Belge
{CMB). He is Chairman-elect of the Belgian Employers Federation
(FEB/VBO), a position thai he will take up in April 2008.

Director since: 10 May 2000
Expiry of mandate: Ordinary General Meeting of 2009
Chief Executive Officer since: 10 May 2000

Isabelle Bouillot, 58
Independent, Non-Executive Director

Isabelte Beuillot holds a diploma of the French “National School
of Administration”. She has occupied different positions in French
public administrations, among them economic advisor for the
President of the Republic between 1989 and 1991 and Budget
Director at the Ministry of Economy and Finance between 1991
and 1995. She joined the Caisse des Dépdts et Consignations as
Deputy Chief Executive Officer in 1995 and was in charge of finan-
cial and banking activities. Between 2000 and 2003, she was Chief
Executive Officer of the Investment Bank. of the Group CDCIXIS. She
is presently President of China Equity Links and a member of the
beard of Atcor and Saint-Gobain.

Director singe: 14 April 2004

Expiry of mandate: Ordinary General Meeling of 2011

member of the Audit Committee since: 13 April 2005

Member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee since: 13 April
2005

Uwe-Ernst Bufe, 63
Independent, Non-Executive Director

Uwe-Ernst Buie was CEO of Dagussa until May 2000. He is now Vice
Chairman of the UBS Investment Banking and Deputy Chairman of
UBS Deutschland. He is also a member of the Board of Akzo Nobe!
N.V. and Solvay 5.A.

Director since: 26 May 2004
Expiry of mandate: Ordinary General Meeting of 2008
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Jean-Luc Dehaene, 67
Independent, Nan-Executive Director

Jean-Luc Dehaene has occupied several ministerial posts and was
Prime Minister of Belgium from 1992 to 1999. He is a member
of the Board of InBev, Corona-Letus and of Thrombogenics. He is
Chairman of the Board of the College of Europe {Bruges) and mem-
ber of the European Parliament,

Director since: 1 October 1999
Expiry of mandate: Ordinary General Mesting of 2009

Arnoud de Pret, 63
Independent, Non-Executive Director

Arnoud de Pret was with Morgan Guaranty Trust Company in New
York from 1972 until 1978. From 1578 until 1981 he was group
treasurer of Cockerill-Sambre, and unsil 1990 he was group finance
manager and member of the Executie Committee of U(B. He was
Chief Financial Officer and member of the Executive Committee of
Umicore from 1991 until May 26C0. He is a member of the Board of
InBev, Delhaize Group, Sibelco, UCB and L'Intégrale. He is a member
of the Supervisory Beard of the French company Lesafire § Cie and
of Euronext BV Amsterdam.

Director since: 10 May 2000
Expiry of mandate: Ordinary General Me 2ting of 2008
Member of the Audit Committee since: 1 January 2001

Shohei Naito, 64
Independent, Non-Executive Director

Shohei Naito started his career at the Japanese Ministry of Foreign
Affairs. At the Ministry he served as Director General for Consular
Affairs & Migration and as Chief of Protocel. Mr Naito has filled
several diplomatic functions overseas and he was appointed as
Ambassador in 1996. Since that date he has served as Japan's am-
bassador to Cambodia, Denmark concurrently with Lithuania and
Belgium. He lefi the diplomatic service at the end of 2006. He is
now Senior Fellow at The Japan Instilute of International Affairs.

Director since: 25 April 2007
Expiry of mandate: Ordinary General Mezting of 2010

Jonathan Oppenheimer, 38
Non-Executive Direcior

jonathan Cppenheimer joined the De Beers Group in 1994 and be-
came a Directar of De Beers S.A. in 2006. He is also a member of its
Executive Commitiee. He is also the chairman of De Beers (anada
Inc., of Williamson Diamond Mine L'd. (Tanzania) and of Element
Six Abrasives Group of companies. In view of his chairmanship of
Elernent Six {in which Umicore has a stake), he is considered to be
a non-independent Direcior,

Director since: 5 September 2001
Expiry of mandate: Ordinary General Meeting of 2008




Guy Paquot, 66
Independent, Non-Executive Director

Guy Paquot joined the Bank Nagelmackers group in 1969 and be-
came Chairman and managing director of Financiére tecocq (a
Nagelmackers subsidiary} in 1986. (n 1994 Financiére Lecocq became
known as Compagnie Mabiliére et Fonciére du Bois Sauvage. In 2003
he left his position as managing director but remains Chairman of
Compagnie du Bois Sauvage. He is Chairman of Neuhaus and a mem-
ber of the Boards of Recticel, Noel Group, Nomacorc, Serendip and
Fauchon as well as the Quartier des Arts joundation.

Director since: 13 April 2005

Expiry of mandate: Ordinary General Meeting of 2008

sMember of the Nomination and Remunesation Committee since:
13 April 2005

Klaus Wendel, 64
Independent, Non-Executive Director

klaus wendel, after a career in financial management with
General Electric {USA), Siemens, Cockerill Sambre and CBR, joined
Société Générale de Belgique in 1988 as member of the Executive
Committee, responsible for group contrel. Since 2000 he has been
an independent cansultant. He is member of the Board of Recticel.
in accordance with Umicore’s Governance Charter, the Board of
Directors considers Mr Wendel to be an independent director even
though he has served more than three terms. Apart from his em-
ployment with Société Générale de Belgique, from which he retired
in 2000, Mr Wendel has had no other assignment with any com-
pany directly or indirectly related to Umicore.

Director since: 26 July 1989
Expiry of mandate: Ordinary General Meeting of 2009
Chairman of the Audit Committee since: 13 April 2005

1. Uwe-Ernst Bufe 6. Klaus Wendel

2. Arnoud de Pret 7. Shohei Naito

3. Jean-luc Dehaene 8. Guy Paquot

4.Thomas Leysen Jonathan Oppenheimer and
S. Karel Vinck Isabelle Bouillot not pictured
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Thomas Leysen, 47
Chief Executive Officer

Fhomas Leysen became Chief Executive Officer of Umicore in 2000,
after having held various positions within Umicore and its affiliates.
He is also Chairman of Corelio, a Belgian media company. He is a
member of the Board of Cumerio, of the micro-electronics research
centre (MEC, 3 member of the supervisory 8oard of Bank Metzler,
Germany, and a member of the board of Compagnie Maritime Belge
(CMB). He is Chairman-elect of the Belgian Employers Federation
(FEB/VBO), a position that he will take up in April 2008,

Martine Verluyten, 56 _
Chief Financial Officer. Finance, information Systems

Martine Yerluyten joined Umicore in 2006 from Mobistar, Belgium’s
second largest mobile phone operator, where she also held the
position of Chief Financial Officer. Before that she held a number of
international positions at advanced plastics firm Raychem, both in
Belgium and the United States. She started her career with KPMG
as an auditor.

Alain Godefroid, 59

Execulive Vice-President: Legal Affairs; Environment, Health &
Safety

Alain Godefroid holds a Law doctorate from the University of
Brussels (ULB} and a m(J from the University of Texas at Austin.
After working as a lawyer in the United States and in Europe, he
joined Umicore in 1978 as Legal Counsel. He was appointed to his
present function in 1992. He also fulfills the role of Compliance
Officer at Umicore.

Marc Grynberg, 42
Executive Vice-President: Automotive Catalysts

Marc Grynberg holds a Commercial Engineering degree from the
University of Brussels (Ecole de Commerce Solvay). After seve-
ral management positions in the finance function at DuPont de
Nemours in Brussels and Geneva, he joined Umicore in 1996 as
Group Controller. He was Umicore’s CFO from 2000 until 2006. In
2006 he was appointed to head the Automotive Catalysts business
unit.
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Martin G. Hess, 55

Executive Vice-President: Precious Metals Products, Cobalt &
Speciality Materials, Corparate Development

Martin G. Hess joined Degussa in 1972 as a commercial trainee.
He served in a variety of functions and business units, gathering
exlensive internationa! experience in Africa and Asia. Between
1999 and 2006, he headed the business unit Automotive Catalysts.
Subsequently he managed the business group Zinc Specialties du-
ring the transition of the zinc refining activity into Nyrstar. He joi-
ned the Umicore Executive Committee in 2003.

Hugo Morel, 57
Executive Vice-President: Precious Metals Services; Procurement

Hugo Morel holds a Masters degree in Metallurgical Engineering
from the University of Leuven. He joined Umicore in 1974 and held
several jobs in production, commercial departments, strategy and
general management of different un ts. He was appointed to his
present position in 2002.

Pascal Reymondet, 48

Executive Vice-President: Zin¢ Specialties

Pascal Reymondet holds an MSc from Stanford University and
an Engineering degree from the Ecole Centrale in Paris. He held
different management positions within the Degussa group inclu-
ding management of the Port Elizabzth and Burlingtan automo-
tive catalyst plants. He joined the Urnicore Executive Committee
in 2003 to be in charge of the Precicus Metal Products business.
In September 2007, he was appointec to head the Zinc Specialties
business group.

Marc Van Sande, 55
Executive Vice-President: Chief Technclogy Officer

Mar¢ van Sande holds a PhD in Physics from the University of
Antwerp as well as an MBA. He joined MHO, a predecessor compa-
ny of Umicore in 1980, and held several jobs in research, marketing
and production. In 1993 he was appainted Vice-President of the
Electro-Qptic Materials business unit and he was appointed as an
Executive Vice-President in 1999, He assumed the newly-created
role of Chief Technology Officer in 2005.




1. Alain Godefroid

2. Martin G. Hess

3. Martine Verluyten
4. Pascal Reymondet

5. Hugo Morel

&. Thomas Leysen
7. Marc Grynberg
8. Marc vVan Sande

Wmicore / Annual Report 2007 / 147



SENIOR MANAGEMENT

1. Jan Vliegen, Senior Vice-President Catalyst Technologies

2. Michel Cauwe, Senior Vice-President Electro-Oplic Materials

3. Joerg Beuers, Senior Vice-President Jewellery and Electroplating

4. Guy Ethier, Senior Vice-President Environment, Health and Safety

5. Luc Gellens, Senior Vice-President Corporate Development

6. Ralf Drieselmann, Senior Vice-President Precious Metals Management
7. Marc Grynberg, Executive Vice-President Automotive Catalysts

B. Ignace de Ruijter, Senior Vice-President Thin Film Products

9. Pascal Reymondet, Executive Vice-President 2inc Specialties

10. Alain Godefroid, Executive Vice-President Legal Affairs and Environment,
Health and Safety

11. Thomas Leysen, Chief Executive Officer

12. Martine Verluyten, Chief Financial Officer

13, Marc Van Sande, Executive Vice-President: Chief Technology Officer
14, Stephan (soma, Senior Vice-President Umnicore South America

15. Ernst Pleyer, Senior Vice-President Butlding Products (refired)
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16. Tomn Kreuzer, Senior Vice-President RET Automaotive Catalysts (retired)
17. Guy Beke, Senior Vice-President Zinc Chemicals

18. Michael Neisel, Senior Vice-President Autoriotive Catalysts Europe and
Africa

19. Ursula Saint-Léger, Senior Vice-President (osporate Human Resources
20. Joerg Plessow, Senior Vice-President Technizal Materials (retired)

21. Martin G. Hess, Executive Vice-President Coiporate Development, Precious
Metals Products, Cobalt & Specialty Materials

22. Edwin Hondt, Senior Vice-President Inforraation Systems

23. 0irk Uytdewilligen, Senior Vice-President (cbalt & Specialty Materials
24. Dietmar Becker, Senior Vice-President Techriical Materials

25. Bill Staran, Senior Vice-President R&T Automotive Catalysts

26. Klaus Dstgathe, Senior Vice-President Umiccre Greater China

27. Hugo Morel, Executive Vice-President Precious Metals Services
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GRI INDEX GC

GRI REPORT

Umicore has been applying the principles of the Global Reparting Initiative (GRI} to its reporting framevark since the publication of
the 2005 Report to Shareholders and Society. This is the first time that the reporting has been aligned w th the current GRI guideline
G3. The index shows where to find information on the core elements and indicators of the GRIin this reg ort. It is Umicore’s intention
to move to a B+ level reporting in its 2008 Report 1o Shareholders and Society.

A {ull GRI index is available on Umicore’s website (www sustainabledevelopment.umicore.com/grilndex). More information on the
GRI, the full set of indicators and the various application levels can be found at www.globalreporting.o-g

GRI Reference Indicator Pages

Strategy and Analysis

11 CEO and Chairman Statement 3; comments on internationally agreed standards /

organization membership can also be found on p. 143

1.2 Description of key impacts, risks, and opportunities. 5;25 29; 33; 37,90 - 91; 139 - 140
Organizational Profile

21-22 Name, products / services Front cover; inside cover; 23; 27; 31; 35;

23-27 Structure, geographical presence, markets served 23; 27; 33; 35; 93-94; 64-65; 102, 142;

inside back cover

28 Scale 4; 10-11; 64 - 65; 82 - 83

29 Significant changes in size, structure or ownership Inside caver; 10 - 11

2.4 Awards received 69; 142

Report Parameters

31-34 Report profile, contacts points Front cover; inside coves;

: back cover

34-313 Report scope and assurance Inside cover; 3; 41; 67; 75; 77, 132 - 133;

141 - 143; 150-151

Governance, Commitments, and Engagement

41-44 Structure and governance Inside cover; 134 - 138; 142

4.8-4.10 Internal guidelines and policies Inside cover; 134 - 138; 142;
refer also the website for access
to Corporate Governance Charier

(www.governz nce.umicore.com/en/charter)
and Code of Conduct
(www.governance.umicore.com/en/CodeOfCanduct)

412-4.13 Adherence to external initiatives Inside caver; 51; 143

4.14- 416 Stakeholder engagement Inside cover; 141 - 143

Economic Performance

EC1 Economic value generated and distribuled, 9-11;70; 54 - 59

EC3 Coverage of the organization's defined benefit plan abligations 112115

Indirect Economic Impacts

EC8 Developmant and impact of investments for public benefit 9; 54 - 59; 68
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GRI Reference Indicator Pages

Environmental performance indicators

Materials
EN2 Recycling ratio 5; 25; 29; 33; 37; 41 - 42
Energy
EN3 - EN5 Direct and indirect energy consumption by primary energy source 42; 47; 51 NB: direct and indirect energy
consumption is grouped in one inditator
ENG Initiatives to provide energy-efficient or renewable energy based products 14-19; 25; 29; 33; 37
EN7 Energy efficiency and initiatives to reduce energy consumption 47,51
Water
ENS Water used : 42

Emissions, Effluents and Waste

EN16-18; EN20 Gseenhouse gases, other emission_s to air 44-45; 47; 49-50 (NB: direct and indirect
greenhouse gas emissions are grouped in
one indicator)

EN21 Water discharge 44; 49 - 50
EN22 Waste 43

LAT-LA2 Employment, operational changes and collective bargaining 4; 5; 64 - 65; 69 (N8: regional daia not
) reported for these indicators)
LA7 Health and safety &9; 77 (NB: regional data collected but not
reported for this indicator)
LA10-LATY Training 70-71
LA13 Composition of governance bodies and breakdown of employees per 71; 144 - 149
category
Human rights
HR3; HRS-7 Training, collective bargaining, child labour, forced / compulsory labour 71; see also Code of Conducl at
www.governance.umicore.com/en/
CodeOiConduct
Society
SO01 Community relations 63; 68
502 - 504 Corrupticn Umicore is a signatory of the UN Partnership
Against Corruption Initiative {PACI)
505 - 506 Public policy 143
Product Responsibility
PR1 Customer health and safety 52
PR3 Product and service information 52
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Financial calendar™

29 April 2008

07 mMay 2008

22 Augqust 2008
end October 2008
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28 April 2009

General meeling of shareholders
{financial year 2007}

Press-release and trading update
for the first quarter of 2008

Share traded ex-dividend
Payment ¢f dividend

Press-release and interim results for
the the first half of 2008

Press-release and trading update for
the third quarter of 2008

Press-release and results for the
financial year 2008

General meeting of shareholders
(financiat year 2008)
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Additional information

Euronext Brussels

Tim Weekes
Phone: 32-2-227.73.98
E-mail: tim.weekes@umicore.com

Mark Dolfyn
Phone : 32-2-227.73.22
E-mail : mark.dolfyn@umicore.com

Berl Swennen
Phone: 32-2-227.74.45
E-mail: bert.swennen@umicore.com

This report is also available in French and
Dutch

This report can be downloaded from the
Umicore website: www.umicore.com

Umicore

Rue du Marais 31

B-1000 Brussels - Betgium
Phone: 32-2-227.71.11

Fax: 32-2-227.79.00

tnternet: www.umicore.com
E-mail: info@umicore.com
Company Number: 0401574852
VAT No: BE 0401 574 852

Umicore Corporate Communication
Bart Crols

Phone: 32-2-227.71.29

E-mail; bart.crols@umicore.com
Concerto

Umicore, Dimitri Lowette, Belga,
Michel de Wouters (IPF)

Dereume

(1} Dates aré subject to change. Please check the Umicore website for updates 1o the financial calendar

This document has been produced using Era Pure paper. This paper is produced in a process which is constantly developed
to reduce the impact on the enviranment as much as possible, The mills used to produce the paper are all certified
FSC (Forest Stewardship Councif) or PEFC (Programme for the Endarsement of Forest Certification Schemes).
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Press release Regulated Information 04 April 2008
CP-2008-08-R 07:30 CET

Umicore reaches agreement to sell its minority
shareholding in Padaeng Industry Public
Company Limited (Padaeng)

Umicore has reached an agreement to divest its minority shareholding of 22 % in Thai zinc producer
Padaeng to Thai stockbroker Asia Plus Securities Public Company Limited. The transaction will generate
cash proceeds of some € 30 million. It will also result in a net capital gain of some € 3 million on the bock
value of the holding.

n.v. Umicore s.a.
Corporate Communication

Broekstraal 31 Rue du Marais Phone; +3222277128 BTW: BE401 574 852
B-1000 Brussels Fax: +32 22277903 Bank: 210-0053806-23
www.umicore.com e-mail:  info@umicore.com TRB : 85382
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For more information

Investor Relations:
Mr. Tim WEEKES — +3222277398 - tim.weekes@umicore.com

Mr. Geoffroy RASKIN — +322 227 7147 - geoffroy.raskin@umicore.com

Media:

Mr. Bart CROLS - 43222277129 - +3247698 0121 — bart.crols@umicore.com

Umicore profile

Umicore is a materials technology group. Its activities are centred on four business areas: Advanced
Materials, Precious Metals Products and Catalysts, Precious Metals Services and Zinc Specialties. Each
business area is divided into market-focused business units.

Umicore focuses on application areas where it knows its expertise in materials science, chemistry and
metallurgy can make a real difference, be it in products that are essential to everyday life or those at the
cutting edge of new technological developments. Umicore’s overriding goal of sustainable value creation is
based on this ambition to develop, produce and recycle materials in a way that fulfils its mission: materials
far a better life.

The Umicore Group has industrial operations on all continents and serves a global customer base; it

generated a turnover of € 8.3 billion (€ 1.9 billion excluding metal) in 2007 and currently employs some
15,000 people.

04/04/2008 - 07:30 CET CP.2008-08-R 212
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TRADING UPDATE Q1 2008

Highlights

e |

were up by 15%.

« Advanced Materials' revenues were up by 21%, driven primarily by a positive evolution In the
division’s cobalt-related activities and in solar cell substrates

¢ Preclous Metals Products and Catalysts’ revenues were up by 18%. Revenues from the !
newly-acquired business accounted for the improvement in Automotive Catalysts while the
majority of the other business areas recorded underlying revenue growth

' Umicore's businesses continued to perform very well in the first quarter. Revenues for the Group—l
|
i
l

e Precious Metals Services recorded a 9% growth in revenues as a resulit of supportive market
conditions and continued operational excellence

l e Zinc Specialties’ revenues grew by 8%, largely due to the favourable comparison with a very
weak prior year in Building Products.

The posltive impact of revenue growth was tempered by a negative impact on results from the
strengthening Euro.

As of 25 April, some €225 million of the company’s €400 million share buy-back programme had been
completed. At this date the company held 8,641,447 of its own shares In treasury, 6.91% of the
outstanding shares.

Karel Vinck has announced his intention to retire as Chairman on 19 November 2008. He will be
succeeded by Thomas Leysen. Marc Grynberg, currently the Executive Vice-President of the
Automotive Catalysts activities, will succeed Thomas Leysen as Chief Executive Officer. For more
information please see the separate press release issued foday.

Qutlook

Based on current market trends, Umicore expects full year recurring EBIT to be between

€365 million and €390 million. The increase from previous guidance is to be attributed primarily to
further improvements in Precious Metals Services

Note : All comparisons are made with the first quarter of 2007, unless mentioned otherwise.

n.v. Umicore s.a.
Corporate Communication

Broekstraat 31 Rue du Marais Phone: +3222277128 BTW: BE401 574 852
B-1000 Brusse!ls Fax: +3222277903 Bank: 210-0053806-23
www.umicore.com e-mail:  info@umicore.com TRB : B5382
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ADVANCED MATERIALS

Cobalt & Specialty Materials

Across all business lines the ability to secure consistent raw material supplies in a very tight cobalt market
has provided a positive competitive advantage and further opportunities to increase sales volumes.

In Rechargeable Battery Materials sales volumes of lithium cobaltite increased in line with the growth in the
rechargeable battery market. The Tool Materials business recorded good volume growth in ultra-fine and
extra-fine cobalt powders, particularly for tools used in oil and gas drilling. In the Ceramlcs and Chemicals
activities sales volumes were up year-on-year; this was particularly the case for cobalt chemicals for catalytic
applications and nickel salts in general.

The recycling and refining activities in Belgium operated at full capacity through the first quarter and were
able to generate improved margins as a result of the high cobalt price.

The activities of the business unit Electronic Powders have been discontinued. This will involve the closure of
the Leduc plant in Canada and the loss of 30 jobs. Umicore will invest in increasing the cobalt powder
capacity for tool applications at the nearby Fort Saskatchewan plant.

Electro-Optic Materials

Sales volumes of Substrates for solar cell applications continued to grow. This is primarily due to demand
from the satellite market, but also orders for terrestrial concentrator photovoltaic applications. In germanium
Optics, demand increased and the business also benefited further from its recycling offering in a higher
germanium price environment. A contract with a new key customer has been agreed for deliveries of GASIR-
based oplical assemblies for use in predictive maintenance applications.

Element Six Abrasives

Net earnings were negatively impacted by adverse currency movements and higher interest charges. Sales
volumes and revenues were up in most product categories. In the more uncertain economic climate the
substitution of other abrasives by diamond and related-materials is accelerating with customers being more
focused on enhancing productivity and reducing costs. The newly-acquired carbide materials activities
contributed to earnings in line with expectations.

289/04/2008 - 07:30 CET CP-2008-09-R 2/6
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PRECIOUS METALS PRODUCTS & CATALYSTS

Automotive Catalysts

Revenues in the business unit increased as a result of the inclusion of the operations acquired from Delphi in
the last quarter of 2007. Earnings were lower due to the previously announced expiry of an important engine
platform in the US.

Production of light-duty vehicles in the North-American market fell by 9% with both US domestic and foreign
manufacturers recording declines. Rising fuel prices have moved the auto sales mix towards smailler vehicles.

The European market was stable, with diesel engines continuing to grow market share. Umicore continues to
grow its position through its complete catalyst system portfolio, benefiting, for example, from the introduction
of lean-burn engines, where it is a leading supplier of catalyst solutions. Umicore is building additional
production capacity in the region to support business growth, especially for catalysed diesel particulate filters.

The South Korean and Chinese markets continued to grow strongly and Umicore benefited from its leading
pasition in these countries. The third production line in Suzhou, China, is scheduled to come on stream in
mid-year. Umicore has also decided to expand the capacity of its plant in Onsan to keep pace with the
development in the South Korean market. The Japanese market declined slightly while the South American
market continued to grow.

Complementary to the investments in production capacity, Umicore is installing new heavy-duty testing
capabilities in Germany, South Korea, Brazil and the US. The integration of the operations acquired from
Delphi continued smoothly. As anticipated the operations started to contribute modestly to earnings.

Catalyst Technologies

Revenues in Precious Metals Chemistry were lower in all regions, excepl for Japan. This was particularly
the case for products sold into the life science sector in Europe. In Fuel Cells, the catalyst materials and
Solvicore activities posted a net development spend in line with the average of the previous year. In
Recycling Solutions further promising discussions have been held with major rechargeable battery
producers and collection networks.

Technical Materials

Revenues in Contact Materials were ahead of the previous year, driven once again by the European and
South American operations. The Chinese operation introduced more advanced technology in order to better
serve its key customers. BrazeTec revenues were slightly up year-on-year across the different product
categories and in the main regions of Europe and Asia. Sales of copper-based products for chemical brazing
— primarily in the automotive sector — continued to grow at a steady rate. Sales volumes in Electronic
Packaging Materials were stable year on year. Customer destocking in the memory sector for consumer
electronics has led to lower deliveries of ball grid array products from Duksan, in which Umicore holds a 16%
stake

28/04/2008 — 07:30 CET CP-2008-09-R 36
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Platinum Engineered Materials

Sales volumes grew well, mainly as a result of increased sales in the Glass Industry Applications business
line. The LCD glass industry continues to grow rapidly, driven by increasing demand for LCD screens in a
number of applications. Sales in the business line Performance Catalysts were driven by high demand from
the fertiliser industry. The qualification of Umicore's newly-developed N,O abatement catalyst is progressing
well. In the Industrial Speclalties business line revenues were up as a result of increased sales for
automotive ignition and thermo-coupling applications.

Jewellery & Electroplating

Umicore's Jewellery and Industrial Metals business performed strongly with demand for jewellery in luxury
brands and industrial metal applications, such as silver coin blanks, increasing year-on-year. The high metal
prices continue to highlight the benefits of the unit's recycling offering. The integration of the recently
acquired Canadian operations is progressing well. In Electroplating revenues were stable compared with a
very strong first quarter in 2007.

Thin Film Products

Revenues for the business unit were stable, although currency movements had a negative impact on
margins. In Large Area Coatings sales volumes of ITO targets for display and photovoltaic applications
increased, with the first commercial sales recorded for rotator targets, Electronics & Data Storage recorded
lower revenues largely as a result of lower sales in the shrinking optical data storage market. Revenues in
Optics & Wear Protection were stable.

PRECIOUS METALS SERVICES

Precious Metals Refining

The business unit continued to perform very strongly in the first quarter of 2008. The availability of secondary
materials remained high, particularly supplies of by-products from the precious metals and copper refining
industries. Supplies of end-of-life materials were also up especially for the unit's intake of spent automotive
catalysts. Umicore’s offering is particularly advantageous for industrial customers in a high metal price
environment. Through fast and efficient treatment of precious metal containing residues and non-ferrous
impurities Umicore enables customers to focus on their core refining flowsheet, thereby improving
operational efficiency and their overall returns.

Construction of the new pre-concentration plant has been completed. The installation is currently being
tested and will become fully operational by the second half of the year. Umicore is moving its spent
automotive catalyst collection facility in North America from Covington (Tennessee) to Maxton (North
Carolina).

Precious Metals Management

The first quarter was characterised by high volatility in the prices of a number of metals, thereby providing
additional opportunities for the business unit's trading operations. Physical deliveries of gold and silver for
industrial applications was lower, but delivery volumes of precious metals for investors more than doubled.

29/04/2008 - 07:30 CET CP-2008-09-R 4/6
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ZINC SPECIALTIES

Zinc Chemicals

The average received zinc price in Euro for the recycling operations was significantly lower as a result of a
lower market zinc price and lower prices contracted in previous periods.

Zinc oxide sales volumes were slightly lower year-on-year. While the Asian market remained strong, demand
in Europe was lower. Some of the volume shortfall was compensated by increased deliveries of materials to
zinc smelting customers. The first significant commercial contract for the nano product range was agreed
with a US sunscreen manufacturer. Sales volumes of paint-grade fine zinc powders were down due to
reduced demand for use in sea-going containers, especially in Asia.

Building Products

Sates volumes in all markets except Germany were above the levels of the same period in 2007 (when the
market was feeling the negative effects of customer destocking). Product premiums were higher and the
proportion of value-added products in the portfolio continued to increase. Underlying market demand,
however, is weak with a significant decrease in residential new-builds in Europe being only partly
compensated by activity in renovation and larger construction projects.

Zinc Battery Materials

Sales volumes of Umicore's more advanced and higher value-added zinc battery powders were up year-on-
year. Sales volumes of powders produced in Umicore’s Chinese operations were stable with a slowdown in
domestic sales being compensated by increased exports.

CORPORATE ITEMS

Discontinued operations

Umicore has divested its minority shareholding of 22 % in Thai zinc producer Padaeng. The transaction has
generated cash proceeds of some € 30 million.

Share buy-back

As at 25 April Umicore has completed €225 million of its previously announced €400 million share buy-back
programme. The number of shares currently held in treasury by the company stands at 8,641,447 or 6.91%
of the total shares outstanding. It continues to be Umicore's intention to buy-back between 8% and 15% of
daily traded volumes until completion of the programme.

29/04/2008 - 07:30 CET CP-2008-09-R 5/6
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For more information

Investor relations:
Mr. Tim WEEKES - +3222277398 - tim.weekes@umicore.com

Mr. Geoffroy RASKIN - +322227 7147 - geoffroy.raskin@umicore.com

Media relations:

Mr. Bart CROLS - 43222277129 - +32476980121 — bart.crols@umicore.com

Umicore profile

Umicore is a materials technology group. Its activities are centred on four business areas: Advanced
Materials, Precious Metals Products and Catalysts, Precious Metals Services and Zinc Specialties. Each
business area is divided into market-focused business units.

Umicore focuses on application areas where it knows its expertise in materials science, chemistry and
metallurgy can make a real difference, be it in products that are essential to everyday life or those at the
cutting edge of new technological developments. Umicore's overriding goal of sustainable value creation is
based on this ambition to develop, produce and recycle materials in a way that fulfils its mission: materials
for a better life.

The Umicore Group has industrial operations on all continents and serves a global customer base; it
generated a turnover of € 8.3 billion (€ 1.9 billion excluding metal) in 2007 and currently employs some
14,800 people.

A conference call and audio webcast will take place today at 10:00 CET in Brussels. Please visit
hitp:/fwww.investarrelations.umicore.com/enffinancialCalendar/confCall20080429.htm

29/04/2008 - 07:30 CET CP-2008-09-R 6/6
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Press release
CP-2008-10-R

Regulated Information

29 April 2008
07:30 CET

Karel Vinck to retire as Chairman of Umicore

in November 2008

Thomas Leysen to succeed him as Chairman

Marc Grynberg nominated as next CEO

of Umicore

Karel Vinck has expressed his desire to retire as Chairmman of the Board of Directors of Umicore upon
reaching the age of 70. The Board has elected Thomas Leysen as Chairman. He will take over from Karel
Vinck after the board meeting of 19 November 2008. The Board has elected Marc Grynberg to succeed
Thomas Leysen as CEO at that date.

Karel Vinck was CEO of Umicore from 1995 and 2000, a period during which he restructured the activities,
restored profitability and created solid foundations for the company to grow. In 2000, he assumed the
Chairmanship of the Board. In that capacity, he oversaw the continued transformation of Umicore into a
leading global materials technology group.

Karel Vinck commented: "Technology as well as qualified and motivated people are the main ingredients of a
successful company. During 13 years | have had the privilege to work with an oulstanding management
team and workforce, whose dedication and thoroughness were the foundations of the success of Umicore.
The transformation which the company went through has been remarkable, both in terms of financial resuits
as well as social and environmental performance. | am happy and proud to leave at a time when the
company is one of the recognized world leaders in its sector. Let me underline the unique relationship | have
built with Thomas Leysen, who is an exiraordinarily talented leader. With Thomas as Chairman and Marc
Grynberg as the new CEQ, the company will be in good hands.”

Thomas Leysen became CEO of Umicore in 2000. He has reshaped the company through significant
portfolio changes, such as the acquisition of PMG in 2003, the demerger of Cumerio and the IPO of Nyrstar
last year, and has fostered a new culture of innovation throughout the company.

n.v, Umicore s.a.
Corporate Communication

Broekstraat 31 Rue du Marais
B-1000 Brussels
www.umicore,com

Phone: +3222277128
Fax: +3222277903
e-mail:  info@umicore.com

BTW:
Bank:
TRB :

BE401 574 8§52
210-0053806-23
85382
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Thomas Leysen stated: "At the end of this year, | will have been CEQO of Umicore for almost 9 years. | feel
this is a good time to hand on the job. As | hold a number of different directorships and mandates, on top of
having recently assumed the Chairmanship of the Federation of Belgian Entreprises, stepping back from the
executive management of the group will allow me to belter balance the competing demands on my time. |
feel honored that the Board has given me the opportunify to succeed Karel Vinck, who has been an
outstanding Chairman, and a mentor for me personally.”

He added: "Umicore has reached a new dimension and a new performance level over the past few years. |
believe that the time is now ripe for new feadership to take the company to yet a higher fevel. | am convinced
that Marc Grynberg is highly qualified and ready for the job, having been an extremely successful CFQ of the
company and having honed his general management skills as Executive Vice President of the company’s
fargest division. | look forward to supporting him and the executive committee in my future role.”

Marc Grynberg holds a masters degree in business sciences from the Solvay Business School of the
University of Brussels. He joined Umicore in 1996 as Group Controller and became Chief Financial Officer in
2000. He is the Executive Vice President of the Automotive Catalyst business since 2006,

Marc Grynberg said: "The transformation of Umicore in recent years under the leadership of Thomas has
been impressive. | am honored by the trust the Board has expressed when electing me to succeed Thomas
as CEO of Umicore, | am excited by the growth opportunities that are ahead of us. Umicore has unique
technological strengths and can count on a great pool of talent to bring the company to the next stage of its
development.”

For more information

Investor Relations:
Mr. Tim WEEKES - +3222277398 - tim.weekes@umicore.com

Mr. Geoffroy RASKIN - +322227 7147 - geoffroy.raskin@umicore.com

Media:

Mr. Bart CROLS — +3222277129 - +32476980121 - bart.crols@umicore.com

Umicore profile

Umicore is a materials technology group. Its activities are centred on four business areas: Advanced
Materials, Precious Metals Products and Catalysts, Precious Metals Services and Zinc Specialties. Each
business area is divided into market-focused business units.

Umicore focuses on application areas where it knows its expertise in materials science, chemistry and
metallurgy can make a real difference, be it in products that are essential to everyday life or those at the
cutting edge of new technological developments. Umicore's overriding goal of sustainable value creation is
based on this ambition to develop, produce and recycle materials in a way that fulfils its mission: materials
for a better life.

The Umicore Group has industrial operations on all continents and serves a global customer base; it

generated a turnover of € 8.3 billion (€ 1.8 billion excluding metal) in 2007 and currently employs some
14,800 people.
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